Chorley

Council

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Agenda and Reports

For consideration on

Tuesday, 22nd January 2013

In Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Chorley
At 6.30 pm




PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MEETINGS

Questions must be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by no later than midday,
two working days before the day of the meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate
responses and investigate issues if necessary.

A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public
on an item on the agenda. A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public
questions if necessary at each meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. This will
provide an opportunity for members of the public to raise and ask questions on any issue
falling within the remit of the Committee.




Chorley

Council

Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

14 January 2013
Dear Councillor

2O(}{I%RVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 22ND JANUARY

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held in
Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Chorley on Tuesday, 22nd January 2013 commencing at 6.30 pm.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence

2. Minutes (Pages 1 -4)

To confirm the enclosed minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held
on 1 October 2012.

3. Declarations of Any Interests

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest in respect
of matters contained in this agenda.

If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally you
should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, however, have
the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the room to enable
you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you must not seek to
improperly influence a decision on the matter.

4. Public Questions

Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a question(s) on an
item on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to the Committee. Each member
of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary question within his/her allocated 3
minutes.

5. Consideration of call-in request: Chorley Remembers - Astley Coach House Gallery
(Pages 5 - 42)




10.

11.

12.

To consider a request by Councillor Paul Leadbetter for the following decision of the
Executive Leader on 11 December 2012 to be called in:

Chorley Remembers — Coach House Gallery

A copy of the call in request form which includes the call in procedure is attached, along
with a copy of the above report which was approved by the Executive Leader on 11
December 2012.

The Executive Leader will be present to answer any questions.

Budget and Medium Term Financial Strateqy (Pages 43 - 108)

Report of the Chief Executive to be considered by the Executive Cabinet on 17 January
2013 (enclosed)

Executive Cabinet Minutes (Pages 109 - 134)

To consider the enclosed minutes of the Executive Cabinet meetings held on 18 October,
22 November, 13 December 2012 (enclosed) and 17 January 2013 (to be tabled at the
meeting)

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel minutes (Pages 135 - 140)

To confirm the enclosed minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel
meeting held on Monday 17 December 2012.

Call-In Panel minutes (Pages 141 - 142)

To confirm the enclosed minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Call-In Panel
meeting held on Monday 17 December 2012.

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny

a) Community Safety Performance Report (Pages 143 - 150)

Report of the Chair of the Safer Chorley and South Ribble Partnership (enclosed)

b) PCSO Role, Duties and Productivity (Pages 151 - 158)
Report of the Chair of the Safer Chorley and South Ribble Partnership (enclosed)

c) Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) Service Funding Update
(Pages 159 - 162)

Report of the Chair of the Safer Chorley and South Ribble Partnership (enclosed)

Monitoring of Receipt and Use of S106 Contributions (Pages 163 - 170)

Report of Chief Executive (enclosed)

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2012/13 (Pages 171 - 172)

To consider the attached Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2012/13.



13.

14.

15.

16.

Councils Notice of Key Decisions (Pages 173 - 180)

To receive and consider the Notice of Key Decisions published on 14 January 2013
(enclosed).

Reports from the Task and Finish Groups

Adoption of Estates - Task and Finish Group
To receive a verbal update on the inquiry from the Chair, Councillor Matthew Crow.

Frequency of meetings in 2013/14

It is proposed to hold four main Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s and four Overview
and Scrutiny Performance Panels on an alternative basis in line with the Council’s
quarterly monitoring reports for 2013/14.

Any other item(s) the Chair decides is/are urgent

Yours sincerely

Gary Hall
Chief Executive

Dianne Scambler

Democratic and Member Services Officer
E-mail: dianne.scambler@chorley.gov.uk
Tel: (01257) 515034

Fax: (01257) 515150

Distribution

1.

Agenda and reports to all Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillor
Steve Holgate (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Julia Berry,
Matthew Crow, Graham Dunn, Robert Finnamore, Christopher France, Hasina Khan,
Marion Lowe, Joyce Snape, Kim Snape and Ralph Snape for attendance.

Agenda and reports to Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of
Partnerships, Planning and Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places),
Carol Russell (Democratic Services Manager) and Dianne Scambler (Democratic and
Member Services Officer) for attendance.

Agenda and reports to Alistair Bradley (Leader of the Council) and Terry Brown (Executive

Member (Places)) for attendance.

This information can be made available to you in larger print
or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.
Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service.



a1 Hiledlatl agaie amsfl didiell erami sl asia 8. a1 Aaal Al Hoaal

-,

HIE Sul S31, ML AR UR Flot SR 01257 515822

01257 515823 .__5:



Agenda Page 1 Agenda ltem 2

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Monday, 1 October 2012

Present: Councillor Steve Holgate (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors
Matthew Crow, Graham Dunn, Robert Finnamore, Christopher France, Hasina Khan,
Marion Lowe, Joyce Snape and Ralph Snape

Officers in attendance: Chris Moister (Head of Governance), Jamie Dixon (Head of Streetscene
& Leisure Contracts) and Dianne Scambler (Democratic and Member Services Officer)

12.0S.133 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillors Julia Berry and Kim Snape.
12.0S8.134 MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 3 September 2012 be held as a correct record for signing by the
Chair.

12.0S.135 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
No declarations of any interest were received.
12.0S.136 PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were no questions from any member of the public.
12.0S.137 MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel
meeting held on 17 September 2012 be noted.

12.0S8.138 EXECUTIVE CABINET

There were no issues raised by any member of the Committee for the Executive
Cabinet meeting held on 13 September 2012.

12.0S.139 UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF ACTIONS AGREED FOLLOWING THE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP INQUIRY INTO HIGHWAYS
ISSUES

The Committee received a report of the Director of People and Places that provided
an update on the implementation of the actions agreed following the Overview and
Scrutiny Task Group inquiry into highway issues.

The first six monthly update received by the Committee on 12 March 2012 had
reported that all of the agreed recommendations had been actioned and this report
provided further update on those actions that included:

e The street cleaning schedules and other highways information continued to
appear in ‘intheknow’ and members had the opportunity to discuss and issues
at the six monthly Neighbourhood meetings.

e Discussions regarding a longer term five year arrangement were currently
taking place to continue the Council undertaking the highway verge cutting,
previously done by LCC, in the outer Chorley area

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 1 October 2012



Agenda Page 2 Agenda ltem 2

e Arrangements for the Council to undertake the initial stages of overhanging
vegetation onto the highway are also now in place.

e The gritting of the Council’'s car parks had now been incorporated into a
Severe Winter Weather Action Plan (SWWAP) that had been produced to
outline the operational arrangements during the winter period and all Members
would be invited to a Winter Maintenance presentation on the 6 November to
be presented by officers from both Chorley and Lancashire County Council
that would provide information of the strategies to be put in place.

Members asked if the County Council could replenish the gritting bins more frequently
around the Borough in the winter months, particularly after a hard frost and if their
criteria on the allocation of grit bins could be looked into. It was also thought that more
publicity was needed on the appropriate use of grit for residents to deter them from
using it on their footpaths and driveways.

These were the types of issues that could be discussed at the Member Learning
Session in November as officers from Lancashire County Council would be in
attendance and Members of the Committee were urged to attend.

RESOLVED - That updated information in the report be noted.
12.0S.140 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONERS

The Monitoring Officer, Chris Moister delivered a presentation that gave some
information on the role and responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner
ahead of the forthcoming elections on 15 November 2012.

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 had introduced (amongst other
things), the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Police and Crime Panel.

The role of the Commissioner would be:

holding the chief constable to account for the delivery of the force
setting and updating a police and crime plan

setting the force budget and precept

regularly engaging with the public and communities

appointing, and where necessary dismissing, the chief constable

There were currently three confirmed candidates for the Election that was being co-
ordinated by Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council. The Election would be using a
Supplementary Vote system whereby the elector can chose first and second
preferences, the candidate who receives more than 50% of the vote or the most after
the second preference count will be elected as the Police and Crime Commissioner.

The role of the Police and Crime Panel is to

support the Police and Crime Commissioner

review and make recommendations on the Police and Crime Plan

review the Annual Report

power of Veto over the Police and Crime Commissioner’s proposed precept.
power of Veto of the Police and Crime Commissioner's Chief Constable
candidate

The constitution and appointment will consist of the following:
e each authority in the police authority area of Lancashire will appoint one
member to the Panel
e to achieve political balance, additional members (up to a maximum of three)
can be co-opted.
¢ Two independent co-opted members (non-political) will be appointed.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 1 October 2012



12.08.141

Chair

Agenda Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

The Monitoring Officer explained that there would be a local Count held at Chorley on
Friday 16 November and all Members would be invited to attend.

RESOLVED - That the Committee note the information received in the report.
(a) Notice of 'key' decisions

The Committee received the current notice of ‘key’ decisions for information.
RESOLVED - That the notice of ‘key’ decisions be noted.

(b) Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2012/13

The Committee received the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2012/13.
RESOLVED - That the Work Programme be noted.

REPORTS FROM THE TASK AND FINISH GROUPS

The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group — Adoption of Estates, Councillor
Matthew Crow updated the Committee on the work that had taken place to date on the
review and submitted the scoping document for approval.

The Task Group has held its first meeting and has agreed the following terms of
reference:

e To receive information on the number of un-adopted roads across the
Borough, to understand the extent of the problem.

e To understand the process for adopting roads on new housing estates.

e To hear from residents through public consultation on the Gillibrand, Kittiwake,
Buckshaw and Fairview Farm estates and to engage with Parish Councils and
representatives of these sites.

e To talk to Developers, Chorley and Lancashire County Council and United
Utilities Officers.

The Group’s main objective would be to look at past performance, to identify areas
where the process of adoption of estates had been both successful and less
successful to learn from those experiences and to make recommendations to the
Executive Cabinet as to how the process may be improved for the future.

RESOLVED - That the scoping document be approved.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 1 October 2012



Agenda Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 5 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 1
REQUEST FOR CALL-IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

| wish to register a request for the following Executive decision to be called in for reconsideration
prior to implementation. My objection to the decision and alternative decision/proposal are set out

halrag

EvEcuT vE AShosl WL L)

Decision taken_at/by Date published
Naciginn Title: CHpLLET REMEMBER] ~ CORACH ot = s

| am (nleasa tick annranriate oy

E( Chorley Councillor [[] the Chairor Secretaryof [ ] a proprietor or director
a voluntarv aroup with an of a local business
[l aresident of the Rorouah interest in the Borouah situated in the Borouagh

The Objection and Alternative Decision/Proposal

Continue an a senarate cheet if necassary (ANN wards maximum)

The Obiection is- ) g Couned rojmedt

. ol s el Bdhren L0 - meel

i Rt s o L T
Lo orgpned Her 7 g LI

&

Name: PALL- (exnBc Tl Signatufe\: % \§ Date:
(please print) N -l \k;:‘.}\ i Dec. et
Address: Daytime Tel No: (LS 1T TIAHSSsSA

Cese. caSTTAGE

g Mobile No: 57 (& R4S
CrAZaaocr. ZlcHpRD

T ca - {~ \ '\ \

LA Aswle fL ] S—= E-Mail: ?qc \.\&A&_\'\'&r‘(&) char ‘c_z\:,\\.\\\g

Flease compiete and return tnis rorm io tne rHead or bemocratic dervices, 1 own Haii, vnoriey,

PR7 1DP. Alternatively you may fax the form on 01257 515150. Should you have any queries
About comnletina the form please telenhone 01257 515118

P




Agenda Page 6 Agenda ltem 5

The objection

The report does not address whether the Councils proposed exclusive use of the gallery to a
sole organisation meets the original Heritage Funding condition requirements of that the
gallery is for community users.

The report does not address users concerns relating to a lack of disabled access in Astley
Hall

The report removes the widely accepted principle that the gallery is for all users groups and
no equality assessment impact has been undertaken.

Alternative

That an equality assessment is undertaken
That the gallery remains the accepted venue for all user groups
The Chorley Remembers project is found alternative accommodation for its fixed exhibition

The case for alternative

The Council has not undertaken an equality assessment

Astley Hall is the home of the town war memorial

The heritage funding for the coach house was for all community groups and to increase the
general footfall of the scheme encouraging greatest public user and any contracted
operations running from the park and coach house



Agenda Page 7 Agenda ltem 5

Call-in Request: ~ Accepted Rejected [

Reason for Rejection:

A/ e //

——

Bl | [of /12.

Signed: el
(Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

Guidance Notes

1. Requests can be made by members of the local community and Borough Councillors under the Council’s
‘call-in’ procedure for executive decisions that have not been implemented to be reconsidered by the person
or body who made them. The Council's Overview and Scrutiny Toolkit and Constitution provide more
information on what constitutes an executive decision. Both are available on the Council's Website
www.chorley.gov.uk/scrutiny. Alternatively further guidance can be sought from the contacts given above.

Decisions which relate to individual applications for licences or planning permission cannot bé called in as
they are not executive decisions.

2. Call-in requests must be made in writing received by the Head of Democratic Services at the address giver
overleaf within 10 working days of the relevant decision being published. All requests must state the decisic
reference number, title, and the reasons for the objection to the decision and present an alternative decision
of proposal for consideration.

3. All requests for call-in are considered initially by the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
who will reject any considered to be frivolous, defamatory, incomplete or otherwise outside the scope of the
call-in procedure or inappropriate for consideration. Call-in requests accepted by the OSC Chair will, where
practicable (having regard to when the decision is likely to be implemented), be submitted to the next meeting
of the OSC (provided they are received before the meeting agenda has closed). If it is not practicable for
consideration of a call-in request to wait until the next OSC meeting, the Chair with the agreement of 3 other
Members of the OSC may decide to call-in the decision.

4. Where a decision is referred back to the original decision-maker no steps shall then be taken to implement
the decision until it has been reconsidered by the body or person who made it. If a decision is referred to
Council, the Council will decide at its next meeting whether to review or scrutinise the decision and if so,
when and how. But there is no obligation in that event to postpone any implementation of the decision. If the
Council does decide to review or scrutinise the decision, the Council will only have power to express views or
make recommendations to the body or person who made it, uniess it was not in accordance with the Policy
Framework or was contrary to or not wholly consistent with the Budget.

i
5.  The OSC may itself decide within 2 months of a decision being made to review and scrutinise it and formulate-
views or recommendations for consideration by the Cabinet and or the body or person who made the
decision. Those views or recommendations must then be considered within three months.

6. Where the OSC refers a decision back, the decision-maker is under an obligation to reconsider the original
decision in the light of the representations made. There is no requirement however, to change the decision.
Following such reconsideration, the decision, with or without modification, may be implemented and it cannot
be call-in again.

7.  Call-in requests will be acknowledged within 5 working days of receipt. Decisions regarding the request will
be notified to the originator of the call-in request by the Head of Democratic Services within 5 working days of
the decision being taken. :

8.  Where a call in request is not appropriate, it could be that a request for a scrutiny inquiry is an alternative
form of action.

Chorler

Council



Agenda Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

Chorley

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Director of People & Places
(Introduced by the Executive Executive Member Decision 11 December 2012
Leader, Alistair Bradley)

CHORLEY REMEMBERS - COACH HOUSE GALLERY

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To provide an update on expansion and enhancement of the memorial room at Astley Hall
element of the Chorley Remembers Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) project.

2.  To consider the feedback and comments received regarding the proposed change of use of
the gallery in the Coach House and make a decision regarding the future use of the gallery
room for the Chorley Remembers exhibition.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

3. To approve the use of the Coach House Gallery for the Chorley Remembers exhibition to
include a review after 2 years.

4. That the Council continue to work with the local groups affected to provide suitable
alternative arrangements as detailed in section 21 of the report.

5. To approve the commissioning and completion of the necessary works as detailed in
sections 24 to 26.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

6. The report provides an update on the expansion and enhancement of the memorial room
element of the Chorley Remembers HLF project. The recommendation is approve the use
of the gallery room in the Coach House and work with the various local groups to provide
suitable alternative exhibition space.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

7.  To approve the use of the Coach House Gallery for the use of the Chorley Remembers
exhibition and to ensure that more of the funding can be focused on providing high quality
display material rather than the upgrading electrical and lighting systems.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

8.  To locate the Chorley Remembers exhibition in the Memorial room and Townley room at
Astley Hall.




Agenda Page 10 Agenda ltem 5

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

9.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all

Clean, safe and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more

to meet the needs of residents and X
the local area

BACKGROUND

10.

11.

12.

The original proposal was to develop the Memorial and Townley Parker rooms at Astley
Hall to accommodate an enhanced exhibition display. A significant element of the project
funding is directed towards upgrading the limited electrical supply and lighting.

At the Executive Cabinet on 21 June 2012, Members approved the option to use part of
the Coach House to accommodate this element of the Chorley Remembers project.

The Coach House already has adequate electrical and lighting, it would mean that more
funding could be directed towards improving exhibition materials and display equipment.
The exhibition would also be more accessible and would enhance the overall offer to
visitors.

UPDATE

13.

14.

15.

16.

Following the Executive Cabinet decision on 21%' June 2012 approving the option to use
part of the Coach House, it was established that the preferred room in the Coach House for
the Chorley Remembers exhibition was the gallery. This was due to the room size, space
available, electrics and lighting of the room.

During July and August six individuals / groups that had bookings in the gallery from
October were contacted to advise them that the room may no longer be available and to
arrange a suitable alternative. Although this process took longer than expected, due to
availability over the holiday period and the focus on the cenotaph element of the project at
the time, satisfactory alternatives have been agreed with everybody contacted.

Due to staff availability at the Council and Chorley Remembers it was not possible to brief
the Astley Advisory group at their scheduled quarterly meeting on 15" August. Therefore, a
separate one-off meeting was arranged for the 5" September to discuss the Chorley
Remembers project and the use of the gallery room. There were a number of concerns
raised and following this meeting it was agreed that Council officers would meet with
affected groups to discuss their concerns. A letter was also received on 12" September
from Maurice Houghton, Vice Chair of Friends of Astley Park requesting further consultation
(see Appendix 1).

On 27" September the Council wrote to members of the Astley Advisory group to seek their
views and feedback regarding the proposed future use of the galley. A total of eight
responses have been received and are attached in Appendix 2. A meeting has also been
held with Rosemary Boyd to discuss the use of rooms in Astley Hall to house the Chorley
Remembers Exhibition and further letters have been received (see Appendix 3) from
Chorley Paintbox a group of local amateur artists (w/c 5" November) and Marion Rawnsley
(w/c/ 12" November) (see Appendix 3).




17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Agenda Page 11 Agenda ltem 5

The general feedback and points raised include:

Lack of consultation and objection to the loss of the gallery.

General support for the Chorley Remembers project overall.

Concern regarding the future viability of a permanent exhibition in the gallery.
Lack of disabled access at Astley Hall gallery.

The Chorley Remembers exhibition should be situated in Astley Hall

Loss of gallery space for local groups / organisations

Lack of suitability of other rooms in the Coach House.

A meeting with the Lodge Artists has taken place and the use of Astley Hall as an
alternative with increased opening hours has been agreed for 2012. For 2013 a similar
solution has been proposed together with use of the other Coach House rooms to provide a
‘taster’ experience to draw visitors from the Coach House into the Hall.

A separate meeting was arranged with Glyn Davies from Chorley Photographic Society on
7" November. Attached in Appendix 4 are two letters received from the Chorley
Photographic Society outlining their objection to and concerns regarding the proposed
future use of the gallery. The society founded in 1894, has over a hundred members and
has a national and international reputation as an amateur photographic society. The main
concerns highlighted were the limited consultation, the loss of the gallery space and the
viability of a permanent exhibition that could lose its appeal and attraction over time. They
felt that there are other rooms within the Coach House that would be better suited for the
Chorley Remembers exhibition. During the meeting arrangements for the society’s annual
exhibition were discussed that is booked in the Astley Hall gallery for 6 weeks starting July
2013. An option to offer extended opening days during this period, such as a Tuesday was
discussed. The potential use of part of the Farmhouse was also discussed to potentially
accommodate a permanent rotating exhibition space to display various photographic works.

On 20™ November the Council Leader Alistair Bradley attended the Astley Advisory Group
to listen to the group’s feedback regarding the future use of the gallery for the Chorley
Remembers project.

Should the gallery space be provided for the Chorley Remembers exhibition the Council will
need to continue to work closely with affected local groups to provide suitable alternatives.
This could be achieved by:

Adapting the Farmhouse building to provide an additional exhibition space.

Prioritising exhibition space in the Astley Hall gallery for local groups / artists.

Extending the opening hours for the Astley Hall gallery for local exhibitions.

Providing temporary exhibition space in the two other rooms in the Coach House and in
the Townley Parker room at the Hall

e Exploring other alternatives such as the use of other Council buildings and sites in the
town centre.

The Chorley Remembers exhibition offers major investment of £78K and will provide a high
quality exhibition that will appeal to a range of different people and ages and includes
interactive displays and areas that can accommodate new and updated material.
Approving the use of the gallery room for the Chorley Remembers exhibition will ensure
that more funding is directed towards the display material rather than upgrading the
electrical supply and lighting as was the case with the original proposal using Astley Hall.

Although the space in the gallery would be used by the Chorley Remembers exhibition on a
longer term basis this would be subject to review after 2 years.



Agenda Page 12 Agenda ltem 5

PROPOSED WORKS

24.

25.

26.

The work to accommodate the Chorley Remembers Exhibition in the Coach House Gallery
is detailed in Appendix 5. The work will be commissioned and funded by Chorley
Remembers through HLF funding and the Chorley Remembers Appeal fund. It is envisaged
that this work will take approximately 8 weeks starting in January with completion in March.
As part of the exhibition the memorial room at Astley hall will also be redecorated and new
lights will be installed. This room will also include a new interpretation board outlining the
work undertaken by Susannah Knight to create the original memorial books, known officially
as the ‘golden books’.

The Council’s Planning Conservation officer has reviewed the proposed changes and has
not raised any concerns.

As the gallery is owned by the Council, a license will be granted to Chorley Remembers to
undertake the work and to ensure that the appropriate insurances are in place.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

27. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance X | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

28.

The Chorley Remembers exhibition is fully funded through the Chorley Remembers HLF
funding. The costs to provide alternative exhibition space or to adapt the Farmhouse will be
met within existing budgets where possible. Any additional funding requirements will be
reported to Members for approval.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

29.

None save to support the requirements included at paragraph 26.

JAMIE CARSON
DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE AND PLACES

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Jamie Dixon 5250 29-11-2012 EMD CR Coach House Gallery




Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 5

Following careful consideration and assessment of the contents of this report, | approve the
recommendation(s) contained in Paragraph 2 of the report in accordance with my delegated power
to make executive decisions.

Awg"ﬂv\/ Dated {1 !l‘?«l (Z .

Councillor
Executive Member Degignation




Agenda Page 14 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 1



Agenda Page 15 Agenda ltem 5

Jamie Carson,
Director People and Places,
Chorley Borough Council
12™ September 2012
Dear Sir,

I am writing to you on behalf of The Friends of Astley Park(FOAP) to ask that the
implementation of the element of the Chorley Remembers Project, which involves the sole
and permanent use of The Gallery in the Coach House, be suspended until a full and effective
consultation has been carried out.

Our members appreciate and support The Remembrance Experience Project, but are
concerned that the proposed development affecting The Coach House has not been subject to
consultation with all interested parties, a fact which was acknowledged by Peter Wilson and

Jamie Dixon at the special mee of The Astlev Advigsorv Groun held last week

Jamie Dixon at the special meeting of The Astley Advisory Group held last week.
We look forward to receiving your comments.

Yours faithfully.

Maurice Houghton

Vice Chair. Friends of Astley Park



Agenda Page 16 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 2



Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 5

Name Group Date
Rosmary Boyd Individual 14/10/2012
Joan Dickinson Individual 03/10/2012
John Harrison Individual 03/10/2012
Boyd Harris Individual 02/10/2012
Estelle Bryers Individual 28/09/2012
Yvonne Curwen Find your feet — walking for health 27/09/2012
Kath Almond Individual 26/10/2012
Mike Coppin Individual 19/11/2012




Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 5

Jamie Dixon

From: Jamie Carson

Sent: 15 October 2012 09:36

To: '‘Rosemary Boyd'

Cc: Alison Stringfellow; Jamie Dixon
Subject: RE: Re Astley Hall Coach House

Hi Rosemary ... Jamie Dixon is coordinating the responses. Jamie is on leave at the moment; he is back in work on
Tuesday, 23 October.

Alison ... please can you contact Rosemary and set a meeting up for when Jamie Dixon is back?
Rosemary ... is it possible to email your plan in advance of the meeting?
Thanks.

Jamie Carson
Director People and Places
Chorley Council

B 01257 515151 | T www.chorley.gov.uk

From: Rosemary Boyd [mailto:

Sent: 15 October 2012 09:28

To: Jamie Carson

Subject: RE: Re Astley Hall Coach House

Hello Jamie

Thank you for your email. What is going happen when the responses have been looked at will there be a meeting /
consultation. | did think you would be interested enough to look at the plan be evidently not but | do know people who
are interested who would like to

look at the plan and have Astley Hall as the main War Memorial as was intended.

| would rather go through the council than go to an outside body as | see it you have not got time to deal with this
situation so there is not much option.

Regards

Rosemary.

From: Jamie Carson [mailto:jamie.carson@chorley.gov.uk]
Sent: 15 October 2012 08:20

To:

Subject: re: Re Astley Hall Coach House

Hi Rosemary
Thanks for your email and comments, I'll make sure they are added to the other responses.

Sorry, but I've got back to back meetings most days this week.



Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 5

Regards
Sent from my Blackberry

Jamie Carson

Director of People and Places
Chorley Council

01257 515151

From: Rosemary Boyd [mailto;

Sent: Sunday, October 14, 2012 08:11 PM
To: Jamie Carson

Subject: Re Astley Hall Coach House

Dear Jamie

| am contacting you on an individual basis. | know the Friends of Astley Park have already responded to the letter
from Jamie Dixon but | would like to make a few points. | feel that Astiey Hall is the war memorial and is the most
fitting place for the Chorley Remembers group to have their exhibitions. | think the Chorley Remembers project is
wonderful but the choice gallery is wrong and will have devastating effects on other groups. There are 4 rooms that
can be used at Astley Hall

In the planning permission dated 4" May 2006 it states classroom, exhibition space and a shop associated with
Astley Hall. | have contacted the HLF they said to contact you in first instance they are logging all concerns from the
public on this matter. It is disappointing that Astley Hall has lost the shop. If the disabled access to Astley Hall is a
problem for the Chorley Remembers visitors it would be the same for the local community and art groups going up
stairs. The whole scheme of things needs to be re assessed as it is it very unfair the local artist and community..

| have made a plan which | would like you to see using Astley Hall for the purpose of a war memorial which was
Reginald A. Tatton wish.

If you are free Monday on morning | can come in and see you.
Regards

Rosemary

This e-mail and any attached files are confidential and may also be legally
privileged. They are intended solely for the intended addressee. If they have come to
you in error you must not use, copy or communicate them to anyone. Please advise the
sender and permanently delete the e-mail and attachments.

Please note that while Chorley Council has policies in place requiring its staff to
use e-mail in an appropriate manner, any views expressed in this message are those of

the individual sender may not necessarily reflect the views of Chorley Council.

Chorley Council may monitor e-mails sent or received.



Jamie Dixon

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 5

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Joan Dickinson

03 October 2012 16:08
Jamie Dixon

JOHN HARRISON

Astley Hall Coach House.

Hello Jamie, | am contacting you on an individual basis, to add my support to John Harrison and Boyd Harris's
comments regarding Astley Hall Coach House. | also was under the impression that the Coach House was to serve
the needs of all local organisations, when required, not one specific body constantly. Every commumity organisation
is special to its group, but this shouldn't be at the exclusion of others. Regards Joan Dickinson. Heathfields Heath

Charnock.



Agenda Page 21 Agenda ltem 5

Jamie Dixon

From: JOHN HARRISON

Sent: 03 October 2012 10:24

To: Jamie Dixon

Cc: PeterRobinson; JoanDickinson; RosemaryBoyd; BoydHarris; Clir Dennis Edgerley; ClIr
Marion Lowe; ClIr Adrian Lowe; ClIr Terence Brown

Subject: Re: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Hi Jamie,

Having read Boyd Harris's email to you about Astley Hall Coach House, | want to
add my support to his view of the Council's proposal. | am contacting you on an
individual basis and copying this to my ward councillors.

It was my understanding that the excellent exhibition space at the Coach House
was to serve the needs of all local community organisations. | do not think that it
would be fair for one group to be favoured by being given exclusive use of this
space and thereby disadvantaging all other local groups and organisations.
John Harrison

12, Epsom Close

Great Knowley

Chorley

From: Boyd Harris

To: "jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk" <jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk>

Cc: PeterRobinson JoanDickinson JOHNHARRISON
; ResemaryBoyd

Sent: 1uesday, 2 October 2012, 16:21

Subject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Hello Mr Dixon

I have received a copy of an email where you request feedback from various groups about the use of
the exhibition room in the Coach House for the ‘Chorley Remembers’ project.

I thought I'd send you my thoughts as a private individual even though I am a member of Chorley
Photographic Society and Chorley Historical and Archaeological Society.

It is usually difficult to get a group representation with such subjects as groups are a collection of
individuals with varying opinions.

After considering the various options in your ‘27 September 2012, Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery’
email I don't consider moving the exhibition space currently at the Coach House out to other venues
as a sensible solution.

As an exhibition rooms it should remain as such. If the ‘Chorley Remembers’ project needs a room I
don’t see what is wrong with the Townley Parker room at Astley Hall.

If further work is needed to improve access to the room then this should be funded by the ‘Chorley
Remembers’ project.

Boyd Harris
Whittle-le-Woods

----- Forwarded Message -----
From: PETER ROBINSON
To: JoanDickinson JOHN HARRISON BoydHarris

1



Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 5

Sent: 1hursday, 27 September 2012, 17:20
Subject: Fw: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Hi all,
Please see attached for any thoughts on the proposal.
Thanks

Peter

----- Forwarded Message -----

From: Jamie Dixon <jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk>
To:

Sent: Thursday, 27 September 2012, 16:31
Subiject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Dear Astley Advisory Group Member,

Further to the meeting on i September with the Astley Advisory Group to discuss the Chorley Remembers
project, please find below further information regarding the use of the Gallery at the Coach House.

Originally, the Chorley Remembers exhibition was going to go in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. The
main disadvantage of this is that there would be limited access for people with disabilities and it would
require significant funding to be allocated to upgrading the electrics and information technology links.
Therefore, the Council's preference is to house the exhibition in the Gallery room at the Coach House which
already has disabled access and electrics in place.

The potential downside of moving the exhibition to the Gallery is the impact it has on other temporary
exhibitions. However, the Council feel that this can be managed as follows:

° Focussing temporary exhibitions in the Astley Hall gallery on groups /artists with a local connection.
We currently buy in some exhibitions and by focussing on local groups/artists we will be able to meet local
requests in the spaces available.

o Purchasing some temporary exhibition display equipment that can be used in the two other rooms in
the Coach House and also in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. This will increase the capacity to hold
exhibitions at Astley Coach House and Astley Hall. This display equipment will also make it easier for
exhibitions to be held in other locations within the Borough in, for example, the Lancastrian, empty shops,
village halls etc.

The focus on local groups/artists and the potential to make better use of the 3 additional spaces, the gallery
in the Hall and other spaces will increase opportunities for groups that have previously exhibited in the
Gallery.

Together with the measures outlined above, the Council would also like to invite feedback and comments
from groups representing Astley Hall and Park users. This will help to identify any further measures that
can be considered to improve the exhibition space for local groups /artists. Please send any feedback
/comments to myself by 15th October 2012 either by email to jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk or to the address
below.

Jamie Dixon
Chorley Council
Town Hall
Market Street



Agenda Page 23 Agenda ltem 5

Chorley
PR7 7DP

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.
Thanks,
Jamie

Jamie Dixon
Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts
Chorley Council

& 01257 515151 | /0 http://www.chorley.gov.uk/

This e-mail and any attached files are confidential and may also be legally
privileged. They are intended solely for the intended addressee. If they have come to
you in error you must not use, copy or communicate them to anyone. Please advise the
sender and permanently delete the e-mail and attachments.

Please note that while Chorley Council has policies in place requiring its staff to
use e-mail in an appropriate manner, any views expressed in this message are those of

the individual sender may not necessarily reflect the views of Chorley Council.

Chorley Council may monitor e-mails sent or received.



Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 5

Jamie Dixon

From: Boyd Harris

Sent: 02 October 2012 16:22

To: Jamie Dixon

Cc: PeterRobinson; JoanDickinson; JOHNHARRISON; RosemaryBoyd
Subject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Hello Mr Dixon

I have received a copy of an email where you request feedback from various groups about the use of
the exhibition room in the Coach House for the ‘Chorley Remembers’ project.

I thought I'd send you my thoughts as a private individual even though I am a member of Chorley
Photographic Society and Chorley Historical and Archaeological Society.

It is usually difficult to get a group representation with such subjects as groups are a collection of
individuals with varying opinions.

After considering the various options in your ‘27 September 2012, Astley Hall Coach House — Gallery’
email I don't consider moving the exhibition space currently at the Coach House out to other venues
as a sensible solution.

As an exhibition rooms it should remain as such. If the *Chorley Remembers’ project needs a room I
don't see what is wrong with the Townley Parker room at Astley Hall.

If further work is needed to improve access to.the room then this should be funded by the ‘Chorley
Remembers’ project.

Boyd Harris
Whittle-le-Woods

----- Forwarded Message -----
From: PETER ROBINSON
To: .loanDickinson * JOHN HARRISON - BoydHarris

Sent: Thursday, 27 September 2012, 17:20

Subject: Fw: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Hi all,

Please see attached for any thoughts on the proposal.
Thanks

Peter

----- Forwarded Message -----

From: Jamie Dixon <jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk>
To:

Sent: Thursday, 27 September 2012, 16:31
Subject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Dear Astley Advisory Group Member,

Further to the meeting on L September with the Astley Advisory Group to discuss the Chorley Remembers
project, please find below further information regarding the use of the Gallery at the Coach House.



Agenda Page 25 Agenda ltem 5

Originally, the Chorley Remembers exhibition was going to go in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. The
main disadvantage of this is that there would be limited access for people with disabilities and it would
require significant funding to be allocated to upgrading the electrics and information technology links.
Therefore, the Council's preference is to house the exhibition in the Gallery room at the Coach House which
already has disabled access and electrics in place.

The potential downside of moving the exhibition to the Gallery is the impact it has on other temporary
exhibitions. However, the Council feel that this can be managed as follows:

o Focussing temporary exhibitions in the Astley Hall gallery on groups /artists with a local connection.
We currently buy in some exhibitions and by focussing on local groups/artists we will be able to meet local
requests in the spaces available.

° Purchasing some temporary exhibition display equipment that can be used in the two other rooms in
the Coach House and also in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. This will increase the capacity to hold
exhibitions at Astley Coach House and Astley Hall. This display equipment will also make it easier for
exhibitions to be held in other locations within the Borough in, for example, the Lancastrian, empty shops,
village halls etc.

The focus on local groups/artists and the potential to make better use of the 3 additional spaces, the gallery
in the Hall and other spaces will increase opportunities for groups that have previously exhibited in the
Gallery. '

Together with the measures outlined above, the Council would also like to invite feedback and comments
from groups representing Astley Hall and Park users. This will help to identify any further measures that
can be considered to improve the exhibition space for local groups /artists. Please send any feedback
/comments to myself by 15th October 2012 either by email to jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk or to the address
below.

Jamie Dixon
Chorley Council
Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley

PR7 7DP

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.
Thanks,

Jamie

Jamie Dixon

Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts
Chorley Council

@ 01257 515151 | 7 http://www.chorley.gov.uk/

This e-mail and any attached files are confidential and may also be legally
privileged. They are intended solely for the intended addressee. If they have come to
you in error you must not use, copy or communicate them to anyone. Please advise the
sender and permanently delete the e-mail and attachments.

Please note that while Chorley Council has policies in place requiring its staff to
2



Agenda Page 26 Agenda ltem 5

use e-mail in an appropriate manner, any views expressed in this message are those of
the individual sender may not necessarily reflect the views of Chorley Council.

Chorley Council may monitor e-mails sent or received.



Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 5

Jamie Dixon

From: e bryers

Sent: 28 September 2012 22:02

To: Jamie Dixon

Subject: Re: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery
Dear Jamie.

A few thoughts.

I was delighted when Chorley finally had a beautiful, accessable, appropriately situated exhibition space, the
Coach House.

I have been to most of the exhibitions, and brought other people to it.

The Access issues were the reason why it was so great that Chorley has an exhibition space in the Coach
House.

I agree that the other rooms seem to be under used, but they are meeting rooms, not gallery space. If
Chorley Remembers need information tec this would be better in these other rooms.

Estelle Bryers

From: Jamie Dixon <jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk>
To:

Sent: Thursday, 27 September 2012, 16:31
Subject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Dear Astley Advisory Group Member,

Further to the meeting on Cln September with the Astley Advisory Group to discuss the Chorley
Remembers project, please find below further information regarding the use of the Gallery at the
Coach House.

Originally, the Chorley Remembers exhibition was going to go in the Townley Parker room at ihe
Hall. The main disadvantage of this is that there would be limited access for people with disabilities
and it would require significant funding to be allocated to upgrading the electrics and information
technology links. Therefore, the Council's preference is to house the exhibition in the Gallery room
at the Coach House which already has disabled access and electrics in place.

The potential downside of moving the exhibition to the Gallery is the impact it has on other
temporary exhibitions. However, the Council feel that this can be managed as follows:

e Focussing temporary exhibitions in the Astley Hall gallery on groups /artists with a local
connection. We currently buy in some exhibitions and by focussing on local groups/artists we will
be able to meet local requests in the spaces available.

® Purchasing some temporary exhibition display equipment that can be used in the two other
rooms in the Coach House and also in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. This will increase the
capacity to hold exhibitions at Astley Coach House and Astley Hall. This display equipment will
also make it easier for exhibitions to be held in other locations within the Borough in, for example,
the Lancastrian, empty shops, village halls etc.

The focus on local groups/artists and the potential to make better use of the 3 additional spaces, the
gallery in the Hall and other spaces will increase opportunities for groups that have previously
exhibited in the Gallery.



Agenda Page 28 Agenda ltem 5

Together with the measures outlined above, the Council would also like to invite feedback and
comments from groups representing Astley Hall and Park users. This will help to identify any
further measures that can be considered to improve the exhibition space for local groups /artists.
Please send any feedback /comments to myself by 15th October 2012 either by email to
jamie.dixon @chorley.gov.uk or to the address below.

Jamie Dixon
Chorley Council
Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley

PR7 7DP

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.
Thanks,
Jamie

Jamie Dixon
Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts
Chorley Council

& 01257 515151 | 0 www.chorley.gov.uk

This e-mail and any attached files are confidential and may also be legally
privileged. They are intended solely for the intended addressee. If they have
come to you in error you must not use, copy or communicate them to anyone.
Please advise the sender and permanently delete the e-mail and attachments.

Please note that while Chorley Council has policies in place requiring its staff
to use e-mail in an appropriate manner, any views expressed in this message are
those of the individual sender may not necessarily reflect the views of Chorley
Connecamis

Chorley Council may monitor e-mails sent or received.



Agenda Page 29 Agenda ltem 5

Jamie Dixon

From: YVONNE CURWEN

Sent: 27 September 2012 18:24

To: Jamie Dixon

Cc: Sarah Leach; GwynethTench

Subject: Re: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery
Hello Jamie,

I am not sure about the background to this, but know that there is a permanent exhibition in Astley
Hall, commemorating the Chorley Pals, so | would presume the obvious place for the Chorley
Remembers project would be Astley Hall, assuming that it is to be a permanent exhibition. You
must forgive my lack of knowledge on this, but | was not at the meeting, so am trying to catch up,
and read your mind on it. If the Chorley Remembers project is to be a temporary display, during
winter months, then | can see no reason why it can not be positioned in the Coach House gallery,
which would mean it could be available for people to view all week, rather than two part days at
the week-end. An even better space could be the class-room downstairs in the Coach House, as
it would be very easily accessible to all visitors, whether they have a disability or not, thus leaving
the gallery room in the Coach House free as a class-room. Just a suggestion.

| hope the above has been helpful.

regards

Yvonne Curwen

Find Your Feet - Walking for Health.

From: Jamie Dixon <jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk>
To:

Sent: Thursday, 27 September 2012, 16:31
Subject: Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

Dear Astley Advisory Group Member,

Further to the meeting on 54 September with the Astley Advisory Group to discuss the Chorley Remembers
project, please find below further information regarding the use of the Gallery at the Coach House.

Originally, the Chorley Remembers exhibition was going to go in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. The
main disadvantage of this is that there would be limited access for people with disabilities and it would
require significant funding to be allocated to upgrading the electrics and information technology links.
Therefore, the Council's preference is to house the exhibition in the Gallery room at the Coach House which
already has disabled access and electrics in place.

The potential downside of moving the exhibition to the Gallery is the impact it has on other temporary
exhibitions. However, the Council feel that this can be managed as follows:

e Focussing temporary exhibitions in the Astley Hall gallery on groups /artists with a local connection.
We currently buy in some exhibitions and by focussing on local groups/artists we will be able to meet local
requests in the spaces available.

®  Purchasing some temporary exhibition display equipment that can be used in the two other rooms in the
Coach House and also in the Townley Parker room at the Hall. This will increase the capacity to hold
exhibitions at Astley Coach House and Astley Hall. This display equipment will also make it easier for

. exhibitions to be held in other locations within the Borough in, for example, the Lancastrian, empty shops,
village halls etc. :



Agenda Page 30 Agenda ltem 5

The focus on local groups/artists and the potential to make better use of the 3 additional spaces, the gallery
in the Hall and other spaces will increase opportunities for groups that have previously exhibited in the
Gallery.

Together with the measures outlined above, the Council would also like to invite feedback and comments
from groups representing Astley Hall and Park users. This will help to identify any further measures that
can be considered to improve the exhibition space for local groups /artists. Please send any feedback
/comments to myself by 15th October 2012 either by email to jamie.dixon@chorley.gov.uk or to the address
below.

Jamie Dixon
Chorley Council
Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley

PR7 7DP

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.
Thanks,
Jamie

Jamie Dixon
Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts
Chorley Council

& 01257 515151 | /% http://www.chorley.gov.uk/

This e-mail and any attached files are confidential and may also be legally
privileged. They are intended solely for the intended addressee. If they have come to
you in error you must not use, copy or communicate them to anyone. Please advise the
sender and permanently delete the e-mail and attachments.

Please note that while Chorley Council has policies in place requiring its staff to
use e-mail in an appropriate manner, any views expressed in this message are those of

the individual sender may not necessarily reflect the views of Chorley Council.

Chorley Council may monitor e-mails sent or received.



Agenda Page 31 Agenda Item 5

26" October 2012

Jamie Dixon

Head of Streetscene and Leisure Contracts
Chorley Council

Town Hall

Market Street

Chorley PR7 7DP

Dear Mr Dixon
ASTLEY HALL COACH HOUSE: GALLERY

| have only just become aware of the proposal to house the Chorley Remembers exhibition
permanently in the Coach House Gallery. Although | am a member of several societies, |
felt | should write to you as an individual, as it affects individuals who visit the Gallery in
addition to those who exhibit.

The Chorley Remembers project is magnificent, as was the Chorley Pals project. The statue
on the Flat Iron brought history to life, and, in my eyes, improved the status of Chorley.
The memorial in Astley Park will also be another important achievement, adding to
Chorley’s standing.

However, whilst | would have no objection to the Chorley Remembers project being
displayed in the Gallery temporarily, | think afterwards it should be found a permanent
room at Astley Hall, itself a memorial to the people of Chorley.

The Coach House Gallery is accessible and modern, and ideal for temporary exhibitions.

Whatever decision is made, one group of people will be disadvantaged by the fact that
there is limited access for people with disabilities.

Yours sincerely

Kath Almond



Agenda Page 32 Agenda Item 5

To :- Jamie Dixon

CBC

Astley Hall Coach House Gallery

| am sorry that | was unavailable for the meeting on 5™ September at the Coach House and | thank you
for your email to which my feedback is :-

il

I am unable to understand your logic for this change being due to electrics, IT & disabled access
as it is the same for both exhibitions surely ? What you really seem to be saying is that the
Council has a preference for the Chorley Remembers project ? But has the Chorley public been
consulted, and do they agree ?

My personal view is that the Chorley Remembers project is what one might describe as a ‘static’
show which once seen is not visited again for some length of time or until known that significant
additions/changes have occurred, whereas the current Gallery is a look on every visit to the
Coach House.

As the Chorley Remembers project is historical with minimal change it is surely more fitting in
the historical environment of Astley Hall.

I would have thought that the Council would wish to keep the Coach House as ‘multi-use’ as
possible for the encompassment of as big a range of activities as possible and not hamper this
objective by taking space out of use with a permanent exhibition.

I have no idea what the Gallery costs are for an exhibition but | have no doubt that they are
substantially less than the Lancastrian, empty shops, village halls etc with all the additional
advertising , organisation and directions to be done. Effectively this would reduce the number
of temporary exhibitions drastically unless the Council has some proposals of financial
equitation.

I assume that this change accords with the funding criteria given to rebuild the Coach House ? ie
was the funding bid made for a temporary exhibition or a permanent one ?

Finally | do declare that | have a sense of ‘imposition without discussion’....although | accept that
discussion is now happening, but it still feels as if this is a faite accompli. | remain to be
convinced that the Chorley citizenship would agree this change if asked !

Mike Coppin

Astley Advisory Group Member.



Agenda Page 33 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 3



Agenda Page 34 Agenda ltem 5

Jamie Dixon

Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts

Re - Astley Hall Coach House - Gallery

As a group of amateur artist, we note with interest and concern the plans for the Coach House
Gallery. Some of our members have exhibited work there in the past and are disconcerted by the
proposed changes and the way in which they have come about. We understood the gallery to be a
purpose built venue, for local artists on a rotational temporary basis and to allocate it to one
permanent exhibition of ‘any kind’ infringes the original intentions

Liaison with similar groups in Chorley informs us that there has been no consultation about the
proposed changes, even with those groups who had pre-booked the venue for displays. Surely, this
is bad practice and discourteous to say the least.

You have said by way of justification that the original intended venue for ‘The Remembrance
Experience Project’, i.e. the Townley Parker room, was found to be unsuitable because it lacked
access for the disabled and is too expensive to modify. Access for the disabled is obviously an
important consideration. However, this should have been taken into account when the
‘Remembrance Project’ was first proposed. Surely, a venue close to the town centre, near the
provision of disability vehicles and transport facilities would have ensured that a far greater
proportion of the disabled and the general public would have had the opportunity to visit the
exhibition. It would also have provided easier access for the majority of the educational
establishments in town.

A location at the far end of Astley Park, away from both the Market Memorial and the Cenotaph
demands that the public either have to walk a considerable distance or have to have access to their

own transport in order to see the exhibition as either an integrated or a single experience.

If the correct consultation procedure had taken place initially, the above points could have been
openly discussed and options may have been explored which avoided altering the designation of an
excellent purpose built venue for temporary Art Exhibitions. The alternative, retrospective
suggestions for these exhibitions, e.g. the Townley Parker room, just do not compare with the Court
House Gallery either in terms of light, practicality, expense or convenience and frequency of access.
It would also seem that disabled access is a priority for permanent exhibitions but not for temporary

ones.

We feei that it is an insult that these alternative suggestions are now being proposed at this late
date because of the letters of complaints from interested parties who were not originally consulted.

It is little wonder that people are apathetic about the quality of democratic processes at both
national and local level.

Members of Charley Paintbox, a local art group
Replies please to

‘Chorley Paintbox’,



Agenda Page 35 Agenda ltem 5

11 November, 2012

Dear Mr Bradley,

| am writing to register my great concern about the proposed change of use of
the Coach House Gallery. | have only just heard of this proposal and am
completely at a loss as to why the Council should think this is justified. As a
resident of Chorley for over thirty eight years, | very much welcomed the
development of the Coach House after seeing its years of decline. A bright spot
of culture in Chorley is exactly what the town needed.

There does not appear to have been wide consultation about this proposal. |
have not read of it in the press and, indeed, have only just heard of it by
chance. Presumably other residents and Council Tax payers are in the same
position.

| have just returned from the Service of Remembrance at St Laurence’s Church
and the ceremony held at the Cenotaph. | very much appreciate what has been
done in the park with regard to the wall of names and also the recognition
given to the Chorley Pals with the statue and garden on the Flat Iron. These are
all fitting memorials marking the suffering caused by war.

However, to wipe out the Arts as represented in the Gallery with yet another
display concerning war creates an imbalance which is a retrograde step for the
town as a whole. | trust the Council, under your leadership, will consider more
carefully the views of the people it represents before any action is taken.

Yours sincerely,

- 71

£ A /
L7 [,:’;@,‘l)ﬂl'( ( / (4“(\/:// \(/’)

Marion Rawnsley




Agenda Page 36 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 4



Agenda Page 37 Agenda ltem 5

Chorley Photographic Society

Registered Charity; 701819. Estabiished 1896
Affiliated to the Photographic Alliance of Great Britain through the Lancashire and Cheshire Photographic Union

® >z

Jamie Dixon 'y,
Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts ﬂ
Chorley Borough Council o
Civic Offices, Union Street LOTTERY FUNDED
CHORLEY, Lancashire
PR7 1AL

31 October 2012

Dear Sir,

The Gallery at the Coach House
| write to you on behalf of Chorley Photographic Society to request that the

Gallery be suspended until proper consultation has been undertaken.

Chorley Photographic Society views with alarm and dismay the potential loss of this
facility. Furthermore we are extremely disturbed by the complete lack of prior
consultation and would welcome the opportunity to express our strong opposition
to any proposal which reduces the availability of gallery and exhibition space in
Charley.

Yours faithfully

ALES

Glyn Davies BA (Hons), ASA, ASP
Past President, Chorley Photographic Society

Copy: Lindsey Hoyle MP
Councillor Alistair Bradley

CUsersiGlyniDocumentsiChorley Photographic Society{2012-13iCorrespondence\Coach House Gallery 30 Ocfober 2012.doc ~ Page 1 of 1



Agenda Page 38 Agenda ltem 5

Chorley Photographic Society

Registered Charity; 701819. Established 1896
Affiliated to the Photographic Alliance of Great Britain through the Lancashire and Cheshire Photographic Union

® i
Councillor Alistair Bradley Y.
84 Hamilton Road 3 ]4/
Chorley ot
PR7 2TJ LOTTERY FUNDED

08 November 2012
Dear Councillor Bradley,
The Gallery at the Coach House

| recently sent you a copy of a letter which | wrote to Jamie Dixon about the
Gallery at Astley Park Coach House.

| subsequently met with Jamie Dixon and Chris Bryan at Astley Hall. We had
a frank and thorough discussion about the change of use of the Coach House
Gallery. During the meeting Jamie offered in mitigation for the loss of the
facility with regard to Chorley Photographic Society, the possibility of
extending the opening of Astley Hall during the period of our Annual Exhibition
so that there would be two additional days in the week when the public would
be able to see our exhibition. He also suggested that we explore the possible
use of the “Farm House” to house a rotating exhibition of photographic work.

Despite these suggestions — which were welcome - Jamie remained unable to
allay our initial concerns and he was made aware that, at the behest of my
committee and members, | would be escalating the issue to you, as Leader of
the Council and final decision maker.

I understand that you will shortly be making a decision as to the future of the
Coach House and | would respectfully ask you to include in your deliberations
the following points which | raised with Jamie on behalf of my members:

o Firstly none of these comments imply any criticism of “Chorley
Remembers”’, who have done an admirable job with the “Pals
Memorial” and the Memorial in Astley Park.

¢ The criticisms are directed entirely at the actions of the Council.

o We are very disturbed by the lack of a proper inclusive consultative
process.

« “Chorley Remembers” is a voluntary organisation, and as such should
be treated in the same way as all the other interested parties.

e Although Chorley PS was not invited to the recent meeting with some
interested parties, we are led to understand that it was not a
consultation but a statement of the Council’s intentions.

C:\Users\GlyniDocumentsiChorley Photographic Society\2012-13\Correspondence\Coach House Gallery 2 - Bradley.doc Page 1 of 2



Agenda Page 39 Agenda ltem 5

Chorley Photographic Society

Registered Charity; 701815. Established 1896
Afiiliated to the Photographic Alliance of Great Britain through the Lancashire and Cheshire Photographic Union

e The Coach House was developed with Lottery funding, its purpose
being for Community use and for the benefit of the citizens of Chorley.
Ceding it to a single organisation prevents its use by the majority of the
town’s organisations.

e The Coach House Gallery has been the venue for an excellent series
of arts exhibitions and as such has been a beacon for the Arts in
Chorley. The Arts had been very ill-served in Chorley prior to the
opening of the Coach House. It is deeply regrettable that the Council
appears to view a return to that former state with equanimity.

e« We have yet to be presented with evidence of any merit in the
proposed reassignment of the Gailery.

« We do not believe that there is a valid reason for replacing a vibrant
series of ever-changing artistic displays with a static, single subject
exhibition which, experience shows, will over the course of time cease
to attract visitors or interest.

e There are other rooms in the same building which would serve equally
well as accommeodation without taking over the existing completed
facility.

* We are opposed to the change of use of the Coach House Gallery.

| should add that as a Society which has had over a hundred years of
association with Chorley and is becoming respected throughout the country
and abroad as one of the leading photographic societies in the UK, we are
outraged at the retrograde step which this move represents, and particularly
distressed by the high handed and undemoecratic way that the Council has
acted in pushing it forward without considering any feedback from the
interested organisations and citizens of Chorley.

Copy: Lindsay Hoyle MP
Jamie Dixon
Chris Bryan

Yours sincerely

@éwf@s

€ S

Glyn Davies BA (Hons), ASA, ASP
Past President, Chorley Photographic Society

C:\Users\Glyn\Documents\Chorley Photographic Society\2012-13\Correspondence\Coach House Gallery 2 - Bradiey.doc Page 2 of 2



Agenda Page 40 Agenda ltem 5

Appendix 5



Agenda Item 5

Agenda Page 41

Jlydessy mopuip
[BOWN Jep MON

soydei
@ uonIqIyx3 3yl Inoqy
-3W0d[3M
oydess jiep abie
35e) AR[ASI(] e
By
U93J0G YdNO[ /I0UUO}  memem 5§
g&
Sy dessy mopuim
mu.mnﬂu..usmuﬁ : g —H—D D g D D 9 D _H_ e D _H_ @ @
ungy ms\au qu&Em ydoiny SaHydoioy saydoi ° Jydosn
mm 408 Youaiy youasy
Zesy |
1 m\ ﬁ
\ ﬁ | i
. 1 A
= @ o
3y puy
o131y
| pajunow
e @ D E _H_ 0 D @ suny) @ WEMN.
Erm) 21ydosD aboluoy jjom mo7 buoy $a4doig $tydoio S3LI0IS uDWINY o
LM MM/ TMM / 310J10M UiapoN Swiy o110 24DjiopM uBPON YyousL
Eai b
- -

<)

N

s100p AianIag Uo e [ Nidoro @
SjAUIA DUDIQUIBLBY ] m& §~ 7o)

10 jjoMm Addog

uUa3.35
yonoy  jjom
jpuoway

o Lo \LY

$2uydpio uonigr J1ydpicy mopum
:8 mEo&w\N [ [DLIOWAY IO MIN

aulauly
uDisuoybly - LM

Iseqeieq
_m:oEws_ S 2
A00g usp|on O 0
\n~0
2
soydern
@ Addog
asen Aejdsiq
Q s s \ -
2HIGRIOWDIN JOf SMEIP wEwoum_w\s
e N0 3pIY R ased Aeydsig payeis
AR e — -
ERLILIETTEN] 40 paiob Gaig
Jsney
saiydesn mww
Ae|dsiqg sjqebueyr @
L @ mv_:nﬂw _
saydessy aiepeM
@ Jep 03 YO /SuLly 03 j|eD) uspow
CHIGRIOWDN 10} SMBIP mu._._nm.w
e @ -_:o.wn__ao.m d5e) ?_am_oc s vw.mum
soydei ! E-'...onl._ HHH __nﬁywcmm

LMM

u_u_w_mm...ﬂ.m @ soydeisy
el I Buny Buiis>
= : MM

soydessy
MM

soydesoy
youazy aduauadxy 9
oipny
= 0 Op,
e ued
=Sy Alquuass
l“ - s © o
y.\rl». mu_ﬁw_u
Aut,
. Buoeiy Sl
o SAPPRA/PII 04
g onydeis 00y
a2
& Bupiau 2t eary
Buied ® dn-Burssaig
abeynowe)

»EH@_U €3

Aspeyd,

soumayp | w
yusy




Agenda Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 43 Agenda ltem 6

Cheorley

Council

Report of Meeting Date

The Chief Executive
(Introduced by the Executive
Member for Resources, Policy
and Performance)

Executive Cabinet 17 January 2013

BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To set out the budget position for 2013/14 and forecast for the following 2 years to 2015/16
and also present the relevant proposals in respect of:

e Potential investment in the Council’s Corporate Strategy priorities in 2013/14.
e Increasing budget resilience in the longer term.
e Budget Consultation.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. That Members review the contents of this report in order to start the Budget Consultation
process.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has been updated. There have been a
number of significant changes locally and also within the public finance sector nationally
during 2012/13, the main changes being:

The election of a new administration in May 2012.

e The first updated Local Government Finance Settlement since CSR
2010 which published confirmation of actual core funding levels for
2013/14 and 2014/15.

e Wide ranging changes to fundamental public finance funding regimes,
namely Council Tax Support and Business Rates Retention.

4.  The recent Local Government Finance Settlement announced further significant reductions in
core grant for the years 2013/14 and 2014/15 adding to the previous cuts since the
Comprehensive Spending Review in 2010:

Reduction o
Year £000 %o
2011/12 1,154 -13.6
2012/13 857 -11.7
2013/14 435 -7.4
2014/15 824 -15.1
Total 3,270




Agenda Page 44

Agenda ltem 6

5. The above reductions have resulted in an anticipated increased budget deficit over the next
three years as summarised below despite the fact that early preparation for further funding
reduction has realised budgetary savings totalling £0.816m during this year.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Revised Budget Deficit 419 1,000 1,584
Recurring Budgetary Savings Already Achieved (743) (73) -
Budget (Surplus)/Deficit * (324) 927 1,584
* Excludes any new homes bonus generated from 14/15 onwards
6. It is important to note that the latest budget position is based on the following key assumptions:
Key Assumptions 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Reduction in Government Grant Settlement £857k £435k £824k £0k
Profiled Reduction in Grant Settlement -11.7% -71.4% -15.1% 0.0%
Payaward 0 1% 1% 1%
Pensions Increase 0.5% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0%
Increase in Council Tax -1% 0% 0% 0%
Grant for Freezing Council Tax £318k £159k £159k £0k
Grant for Freezing Council Tax 2013/14 £0k £65k £65k £0k
Use of New Homes Bonus (NHB) in the base £1.044m £1.044m £1.044m | £1.044m
budget to date
Additional Income Received — Business Rates ) ) ) )
Retention
Net Parish Precepts and Council Tax - Parishes £38k £38k £38k £38k
7. In addition to the above assumptions also within the budget the following approach has been

taken:-

e NHB receipts in respect of 2013/14 have not been built into the base budget as
recurring core funding to enable the Council to improve budget resilience and
flexibility to respond to future annual uncertainty inherent in the new public
finance funding regimes. Future years awards will be dependent upon the level

of housing development.

¢ No Business Rates retained income has been included in the budget forecast at
this stage as forecasted receipts will only be finalised at the end of January 2013.
At this point in time the final outcome will be dependent on movements in the
local tax base and also collection performance including the outcome of appeals.
This complex new system is summarised and explained later in the report.




10.

11.

12.

13.

Agenda Page 45 Agenda ltem 6

e Contained within the four year budget summary in Appendix One is the fact that
the new reduced Council Tax Base set as a result of the implications of the new
Council Tax Support Scheme has resulted in a reduced amount of income
generated in respect of the parishes when compared to that raised in 2012/13.

Despite the additional funding cuts announced on 19" December 2012 early and well
planned preparation has enabled the Council to achieve a notable level of cash resource to
invest in the corporate strategy in 2013/14.

This major achievement means that despite the significant reductions in grant funding the
Council has been successful in achieving a budget surplus next year, it is important to note
however, this is not a sustainable position. This presents the Council with an opportunity to
invest in the Council’s corporate priories, these aim to :

e INVOLVE RESIDENTS IN IMPROVING THEIR LOCAL AREA AND EQUALITY OF
ACCESS FOR ALL.

e CLEAN, SAFE AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES.

e AN AMBITIOUS COUNCIL THAT DOES MORE TO MEET THE NEEDS OF
RESIDENTS AND THE LOCAL AREA.

e A STRONG LOCAL ECONOMY.

Potential investment proposals are summarised in the report and set out in detail in project
mandates detailed in Appendix Two. Funding has been achieved by providing headroom in
the budget for 2013/14 and not building 2013/14 New Homes Bonus income into the base
budget. This approach has been taken to enable the council flexibility and resilience in order
to address the variable nature of future core funding. New homes bonus is top sliced from
the government grant pot, and whilst recurrent for a number of years, it is not guaranteed in
the future and is of course dependent on future housing development.

Reallocation of budget previously allocated to investment proposals in the sum of £80k has
also been taken into consideration.

The projected budget position in future years shows there remains a significant budget gap in
2014/15 and 2015/16 together with heighted uncertainty and risk in the form of year on year
variable new funding regimes, for example, New Homes Bonus and Retention of Business
Rates.

The financial forecasts shows that to plug the gaps caused by the reduction in grant funding
would require Council Tax increases, to be made up of the following:

2014/15 -7.5% 2015/16 — 14.2%

This assumes that it is not possible to make further efficiency savings. The Government
have indicated that Councils should not raise Council Tax by more than 2% before asking
residents through a referendum if a greater increase is acceptable.

For this reason small sustained increases which are more manageable would be the correct
approach to be adopted if Council Tax increases are to be used to plug some of the gap as
we move forward. This approach previously resulted in a very small average increase being
implemented annually. Paragraph 41 details the potential financial impact of such an
approach.

The decision on Council Tax becomes key as the Council over the last few years is
becoming less dependent on Government support. This trend is likely to continue with the
Council having to find innovative ways to become more self sufficient. This accords with the
Government’s approach to funding local government and the aspiration for localism.



14.

15.

Agenda Page 46 Agenda ltem 6

Emerging issues that will have a direct impact on the final budget position for the Council but
are presently unknown are:

¢ Business Rates Retention and finalisation of next year’s forward estimates.

¢ Impact on the Capital Programme of decisions on the investment projects put
forward for consideration.

e Triennial review of the pension fund.

Consultation on the proposed budget for 2013/14 will commence following approval of the
proposals by Executive Cabinet at this meeting. The consultation will focus on obtaining
feedback on the key investment areas in order to help prioritise activity. It will also highlight
the impact of a reduction in Council funds and ask residents to give us their views on the
levels of Council Tax. The consultation will invite responses from residents, partners, parish
groups and other stakeholders through a variety of methods including a short survey
(available both in hard copy and online) and events in the community such as the Flat Iron
market. Results will be analysed and published in February for consideration as part of
budget finalisation.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

Yes No

Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate

Yes No

Reason
Pl I iat — . .
ease bold as appropriate (3) A new or un-programmed (4) , Significant |mpact n
capital scheme of £100,000 or enwr_onmental, . social or
more physical terms in two or more
' wards.

(1) A change in service
provision that impacts upon | (2) A contract worth £100,000
the service revenue budget | or more.

by £100,000 or more.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

16.

To progress the Council's 2013/14 Budget Setting process to achieve an approved and
balanced budget.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

17.

Setting the budget is a statutory responsibility.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

18.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all

X | A strong local economy X

Clean, safe and healthy communities X | to meet the needs of residents and X

An ambitious council that does more

the local area




Agenda Page 47 Agenda ltem 6

BACKGROUND

19.

20.

21.

22.

The previous Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) covering the period 2012/13 to
2014/15 contained the following budget deficit projection. This being estimated on the basis
of the information published within the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review
(CSR) 2010 and the subsequent Local Government Finance Settlement announcement.
Unfortunately the announcement only covered two years to 2012/13 inclusively which gave
definitive core funding for just two years, therefore the MTFS was based on estimates and
key assumptions.

2013/14 2014/15
£000 £000

Estimated Forecasted Budget Gap 820 1,187

Since this time there have been a number of significant changes being:

e The election of a new administration in May 2012.

e The first updated Local Government Finance Settlement since CSR 2010
which published confirmation of actual core funding levels for 2013/14 and
2014/15.

e Wide ranging changes to fundamental public finance funding regimes,
namely Council Tax Support and Business Rates Retention.

Although the detailed figures within the Local Government Finance Settlement have only
recently been announced, preparation has been progressing since the spring of this year in
anticipation of the major changes in the pipeline. This has enabled the Council to achieve as
much as possible to mitigate the risk inherent in such fundamental and complex changes.

As a result of this approach the Council has positioned itself to, not only balance the budget
in 2013/14 but also, provide headroom in the budget for the forthcoming year to invest in the
corporate priorities in the new Corporate Strategy.

THE CURRENT BUDGET POSITION

23. The recent publication of the Local Government Finance Settlement resulted in a further
reduction in grant for 2013/14 in the sum of £0.435m (being -7.4%) and another £0.824m
reduction (equalling -15.1%) in 2014/15. This is in addition to the reductions in 2011/12
£1.154m (-13.6%) and 2012/13 £0.857m (-11.7%). Thus making the four year reduction in
grant total £ 3.270m or 38.5%.

24. The updated budget position within the latest MTFS is summarised below together with the
key budget assumptions that have been applied. The table below identifies that funds are
available for investment in 2013/14 but a significant budget gap is expected thereafter. More
details are included in the Four Year Budget Summary in Appendix One. Potential
investment proposals are set out later in the report with detailed project mandates listed in
Appendix Two.

Budget Assumptions 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Revised Budget Deficit 419 1,000 1,584

Recurring Budgetary Savings Already Achieved (743) (73) -

Budget (Surplus)/Deficit (324) 927 1,584

Uncommitted/Surplus NHB (739) (1,500)* (2,300)*

Funds available for investment in 2013/14 1,114

*assumes some growth in future years but this is not guaranteed.




Agenda Page 48

Agenda ltem 6

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Reduction in Government Grant Settlement £857k £435k £824k £0k
Profiled Reduction in Grant Settlement -11.7% -7.4% -15.1% 0.0%
Pay award 0% 1% 1% 1%
Pensions Increase 0.5% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0%
Increase in Council Tax -1% 0% 0% 0%
Grant for Freezing Council Tax in previous years £318k £159k £159k £0k
Grant for Freezing Council Tax 2013/14 £0k £65k £65k £0k
Use of New Homes Bonus (NHB) in the base £1.044m £1.044m £1.044m £1.044m
budget to date
Additio'nal Income Received — Business Rates £ok £Ok £Ok £Ok
Retention
Net Parish Precepts and Council Tax - Parishes £38k £38k £38k £38k

Please note that NHB monies received in previous years have been factored into the base
budget as recurring funding. In 2013/14, however, NHB receipts have not been built into the
base budget. The purpose of this approach is to maximise the Council’s ability to adjust its
As documented in
previous financial planning and preparation reports and strategies, public sector finance has
entered a new era of year to year uncertainty with annual fluctuations now built in
permanently to the total core funding regime. It is essential, now more than ever, that the
Council’'s budget is able to demonstrate resilience and be flexible in order to respond to
annual fluctuations in levels of core funding. It is for these reasons that new NHB received

With regard to the Business Rates Retention our projected additional retained income, over
and above the Start-Up Funding Assessment published in the recent settlement, remains to
be finalised as part of the submission of the NNDR1 return in January 2013. As reported
previously, the risks of in year tax base movements and also collection (including appeals),
will directly affect the income actually received for 2013/14, therefore the amount that the
Council will actually retain is very likely to change. For this reason no provision has been
made in the assumptions above at this stage. Further details of how this new system will

25.

budget to respond more quickly to future variations in funding levels.

will not be built into the base budget as permanent recurring funding at this stage.
26.

operate during the year are set out in the section below.
27.

Contained within the four year budget summary in Appendix One is the fact that the new
reduced Council Tax Base set, as a result of the implications of the new Council Tax Support
Scheme, has resulted in a reduced amount of income generated in respect of the parishes
when compared to that raised in 2012/13. The basis of this calculation is set out in statute
and the Government’s view is that all tiers of Councils should have to deal with the
consequences of welfare reform. The total amount of parish expenditure, however, has been
maintained at the same level as 2012/13. This means that the £38k shortfall is included
within the Councils overall budget within the current MTFS. The Government has given the
Council discretion to make this good from the Council Tax Support Grant it receives. It will
therefore be assumed in preparing the budget that parish income will be protected at its
2012/13 level of £567k.




Agenda Page 49 Agenda ltem 6

BUSINESS RATE RETENTION EXPLAINED

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

In the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2013/14, Chorley Council’s
Start-Up Funding Assessment was £6,431,275, of which £5,447,924 was Formula Funding
and £983,351 rolled-in grants (Council Tax Freeze Compensation, Council Tax Support
Funding, and Homelessness Prevention Funding). The funding of the Start-Up Funding
Assessment is split between Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and business rates in
proportions calculated nationally, taking account of the Spending Control Total and the local
share of the estimated business rates total. For Chorley, the split is £3,861,995 RSG and
£2,569,280 business rates (baseline funding level).

Provisional NNDR1 Return - The NNDR1 Return provides central government with an up-to-
date estimate of the Net Rate Yield for 2013/14, and calculates the amounts to be paid to
central government, Lancashire County and Lancashire Fire, the balance being retained by
Chorley. The starting point is the actual aggregate rateable value on the rating list as at 30
September 2012, which produces the Gross Rate Yield (£31,520,861) before reliefs and
other adjustments. Mandatory and discretionary reliefs are expected to total £3,921,776, and
the allowance for Cost of Collection would be £133,847.

The estimated figures included in the draft return are as follows:

e Losses in collection £ -350,000
e Estimated change in receipts 1/10/12 - 30/9/13 £ -86,565
o Estimated adjustment due to appeals £-1,000,000

Each of these figures is based on previous performance, known changes from 1 October to
31 December, and forecasts to 30 September 2013. In particular, the provisional return
includes an estimated reduction in receipts as a result of an estimated net fall in rateable
value. Deletions from the rating list for the year to 30 September 2013 are estimated to
exceed additions. These figures would be monitored during the year, and differences
between actual performance and estimated would be reflected in the year-end NNDR3
return.

After taking account of these adjustments, the Net Rate Yield for 2013/14 is estimated to be
£26,028,673. Of this total, central government would be paid 50% (£13,014,336), County 9%
(£2,342,581), and Lancashire Fire 1% (£260,287). The balance relating to Chorley
(£10,411,469) would have a tariff of £7,499,515 deducted, which is the difference between
Chorley’s baseline funding level (£2,569,280) and central government’s calculation of
Chorley’s business rates baseline (£10,068,795). This would give retained rates income of
£2,911,954, but there is a further comparison to the baseline funding level of £2,569,280,
showing growth of £342,674 compared to the figure assumed by central government. This is
subject to a 50% levy, which means that a further sum of £171,337 is paid to central
government. After deduction of the levy, Chorley could retain business rates of £2,740,617,
which is £171,337 more than the baseline funding level assumed in the Start-Up Funding
Assessment total, but this is subject to confirmation.

Certified NNDR1 Return - The certified NNDR1 return must be submitted by 31 January
2013, which means that there would be an opportunity to review the figures submitted in the
provisional return.

Differences from estimates - Payments to central government, County and Lancashire Fire
would be based on these estimated figures. At 2013/14 year-end, figures reflecting actual
collection losses, change in receipts, and appeals would be submitted in the audited NNDR3
return. Adjustments to payments would be made after the end of the financial year.




34.

Agenda Page 50 Agenda ltem 6

Sensitivity to changes in_rateable value - The provisional NNDR1 return includes an
estimated net reduction in rateable value of 0.27%. The effect of this is to reduce retained
business rates by £17,313 compared to a position of no change. If rateable value was not
expected to change, resources would increase by £188,650 rather than £171,337 per the
draft NNDR1 calculation. The sensitivity of the calculation to alternative scenarios has been
tested. If rateable value was expected to increase by 1%, and no other parameters changed,
then retained business rates would be £251,691 more than the baseline funding level, after
deducting the 50% levy on growth. The 1% increase would give £63,041 more income than if
rateable value did not change. On the other hand, a net reduction in rateable value by 1%
would mean that retained business rates would be only £125,607 more than the baseline
funding level. Rateable value could reduce by just under 3% before retained business rates
equalled the baseline funding level, the reason being that actual rateable value exceeds the
estimated figure used by central government in the calculation of the baseline funding level.
Should rateable value be expected to reduce by more than 3%, retained business rates
would be less than the baseline funding level. In such cases, central government would
make a safety net payment only for the reduction in resources excess of 7.5% of the baseline
funding level. This means that the maximum shortfall in resources compared to the Start-Up
Funding Assessment would be £192,696, after which the council would receive the safety net
payment. Up to that point, the council would suffer the loss of resources. A safety net
payment would be receivable should rateable value be estimated to reduce by just over
4.5%.

AN OPPORTUNITY FOR SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENT IN CORPORATE PRIORITIES

35.

36.

37.

38.

Early and well planned preparation has enabled the Council to address the recently
published funding cuts immediately in 2013/14 and also provide a notable level of cash
resource to invest in corporate priorities.

Previous budget investments have also been assessment and re-based according to the
actual resources now required. This has freed up £80k to re-investment in new corporate
priorities.

This major achievement means that despite the significant reductions in grant funding the
Council has been successful in achieving a budget surplus next year, it is important to note
however, this is not a sustainable position. This presents the Council with an opportunity to
invest in the Council’s corporate priories, these aim to :

e INVOLVE RESIDENTS IN IMPROVING THEIR LOCAL AREA AND
EQUALITY OF ACCESS FOR ALL.

e CLEAN, SAFE AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES.

e AN AMBITIOUS COUNCIL THAT DOES MORE TO MEET THE NEEDS OF
RESIDENTS AND THE LOCAL AREA.

e A STRONG LOCAL ECONOMY.

The potential programme of investments is summarised below and also set out in more
detail within individual mandates for each proposal in Appendix Two (attached). The
investment projects link to the Corporate Strategy and the priorities contained within it.



Corporate Priority: INVOLVING RESIDENTS IN IMPROVING THEIR LOCAL AREA AND EQUALITY OF ACCESS FOR ALL

Investment

Overview

Neighbourhood Working, involves the implementation of the neighbourhood working review and making further improvements which requires

investment in:-

Proactive Clean Up Team

A Team to deal with areas that repeatedly fall into disrepair in neighbourhood areas revisiting areas on a regular
proactive basis.

Neighbourhood Working Pot

To provide additional funding supporting works over and above business as usual.

Community Development Support and
Volunteering Project

Working with the social enterprise SPICE on a project that would:
o Develop and extension to the current project to make time credits system available to the whole borough.
¢ Provide additional community development capacity to support the launch and development of

neighbourhood working.
16/17 Year Old’s Drop In Scheme Proy|S|on of_ a drop_ln_serwce for 16/1_7 year olds to continue for another year. The drop in centre provides housing
advice, family mediation and counselling for young people.
Corporate Priority: CLEAN, SAFE AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Investment Overview
Tree Policy The current policy states that work will only be carried out on dead, dangerous and diseased trees, however, many

requests for service are for pruning overhanging branches and topping tress.

Extension and Improvement of Street
Furniture

Extension of the current replacement and refurbishment programme by another 300 bins (25% of stock) during
2013/14.

Active Generation

Enables the continuation of the Active Generation scheme for a further 12 months providing a variety of activities
aimed at encouraging the 50+ age group to be more active and promote healthier lifestyles.

Street Games

Facilitates the continuation of the Street Games scheme for another 12 months, a specific project aimed at
delivering doorstep sport in a low cost way with a key emphasis on the most deprived communities in the borough.

Improvements to Play Areas

Improvements to Astley park and four other play areas in the borough.

Free Swimming

Make available free afternoon swimming sessions for under 16’s during the summer holidays (Monday — Fridays) at
the Council’s leisure facilities: All Seasons Leisure Centre and Brinscall Swimming Baths. This project will run for 12
months.

|G obed epusaby

9 wa)| epuaby



Corporate Priority: AN AMBITIOUS COUNCIL THAT DOES MORE TO MEET THE NEEDS OF RESIDENTS AND THE LOCAL AREA

Investment

Overview

Employee Health Scheme

Continuation of the employee health care cash plan for a second year.

Campaigns and Events

Support the delivery of campaigns and events that are planned over the next 12 months, including:
e Civic Pride.
e Town centre marketing and revitalising the Town centre.
o Delivery of a Campaigns and Engagement Strategy.
e Christmas Lights switch on.

Corporate Priority: A STRONG LOCAL ECONOMY

Investment

Overview

Purchase of Key Town Centre Sites

Purchase of key Town Centre sites enabling the Council to proactively influence further retail development.

Car Park pay and Display Income
Reduction

Implementation of a revised and reduced car parking tariff system.

Inward Investment Pot

Enables the development and delivery of an Inward Investment Plan to bring forward key employment sites.

Town Centre Master Plan

The plan will form the foundations for a strategic and planned approach to attract future investment to key
development sites, enhance the public realm and improve the town centre offer.

Support the Expansion of Local
Business

Establishing a business advice and support service for existing businesses in the Borough who have been trading
for more than 3 years in order to help them to survive and grow.

Implement a Joint Employment
Initiative with Runshaw College

A budget to be used to help overcome some of the barriers that young people face in accessing and sustaining
apprenticeships.

2G abed epuaby

9 wa)| epuaby



Agenda Page 53 Agenda ltem 6

OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED TO ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE AND RECURRING BUDGET
RESILIENCE

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

As set out in the paragraphs above the Council still faces a significant budget deficit in the
medium term to 2015/16 with further possible reductions in future years thereafter.
Therefore further action is required to achieve a balanced budget after 2013/14.

An option that is available to the Council to progress towards a balanced budget position
across the lifetime of the MTFS is to increase Council Tax. An increase, together with
further savings options, would not only help to address the budget deficit but could also be
used to invest in ambitious projects that support delivery of the Council’'s new priorities, and
generate further revenues for the Council.

The table below shows the impact of increasing Council Tax between 0.5 % and 2% in
each of the three years, 2% is the current cap before needing to undertake a referendum.

% Each Year 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
0.5 £29,000 £58,000 £87,000
1.0 £58,000 £116,000 £174,000
1.5 £87,000 £174,000 £261,000
2.0 £116,000 £232,000 £348,000

The table also shows that below inflationary increases do have a significant, cumulative and
permanent effect, something that the Council Tax Freezing Grant option lacks as it is
awarded for a short term temporary period after which it is lost. Even over a short term
period approximately £348,000 can be raised.

The sum of £116,000 generated by the 2.0% increase can also be put into context with
regard to its impact per household in the borough. For example, based on the 2013/14
Band D tax base this amounts to approximately £3.54 per household or 7 pence per week
in 2013/14 (based on Council Tax Base). This increase facilitates a significant cumulative
sum, therefore, small sustainable council tax increases can generate significant levels if
income that can be used to bridge the budget gap. Over the last 5 years the average
increase is just below 1% taking into account the 1% cut made in 2012/13. Further cuts are
probably unsustainable given the scale of the forecast deficit by 2015/16.

OTHER RELEVANT ISSUES

44,

The feasibility of achieving additional income in 2013/14 with regard to Business Rates
Retention is currently being assessed and will be estimated on the information submitted in
the Council’s return to central Government (NNDR1) in January 2013. It should be noted
that the information submitted is estimated and being assessed for the first time under the
new regime. In the past income raised has varied during the year as a result of variable
factors, for example, closures, appeals and collections with values in nature, being
potentially significant. As a result of potential in year tax base shift this source of income is
attached with some risk, risk that is being transferred from Central Government to Local
Authorities with effect from 2013/14.



45.

46.

Agenda Page 54 Agenda ltem 6

This report has dealt with the Council’s revenue budget, however, implicit in the investment
programme set out above are the financial implications for the Capital Programme, for
example, investing in the local economy and buying Town Centre sites to boost /improve
the local economy. The budget forecasts include the cost of the current programme and
one of the investment opportunities is to enhance the capital programme, the impact of
which will be dealt with when the final budget proposals are made.

In addition to the large scale changes that have come into effect in 2013/14 there is also
another issue on the horizon that may well have a further negative implications on the
budget. The pension fund is due to be re-valued next year and although employer’s
pension contributions have increased steadily in the past few years it is still unknown if
these increases have plugged the fund’'s deficit position. This poses another possible
amendment to the key budget assumptions. The assumption table shows that after
2013/14 nothing has been factored into futures budgets for any increases in Employers’
Pension Contributions as this is at present unknown. Implicit in the recent changes made
to the pensions scheme was the desire to mitigate the costs to employers, but the impact
will not be quantified until the re-evaluation.

BUDGET CONSULTATION

47.

Consultation on the proposed budget for 2013/14 will commence following approval of the
proposals by Executive Cabinet. The consultation will focus on obtaining feedback on the
potential key investment areas in order to help prioritise activity. It will also highlight the
impact of a reduction in Council funds and ask residents their views on Council Tax levels.
The consultation will invite responses from residents, partners, parish groups and other
stakeholders through a variety of methods including a short survey (available both in hard
copy and online) and events in the community such as the Flat Iron market. Results will be
analysed and published in mid-February for consideration as part of budget finalisation.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

48. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance X | Customer Services
Human Resources X | Equality and Diversity
Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications X

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

49.

The financial implications of the above report are all contained in the text above but to
clarify all proposals are funded and can be accommodated within the 2013/14 Budget. The
report does contain some assumptions with regard to what the final out-turn position will be
for 2012/13, however, should this change due to unforeseen significant circumstances
arising before 31° March 2013 this will be reviewed and reported.



Agenda Page 55 Agenda ltem 6

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

50. There are no legal implications in adopting the Budget proposals for consultation.

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Susan Guinness 5101 01/01/13




Agenda Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 57

Agenda IterE:I,I ease in Council Tax

APPENDIX ONE
Four Year Budget Summary 2012/13 - 2014/15
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
CASH BASE BUDGET REQUIREMENT 13,668 13,727 12,962 13,426
Cash Movements:
Other Virements (Transfer below the line) 74
Inflation Pay (55) 71 78 88
Pensions (22) 64 13 17
Non-Pay 57 106 61 61
Contractual 517 195 177 205
Income 27 (10) 14 19
Increments 28 67 30 17
Volume Expenditure (127) (172) 130 0
Volume Income 16 207 100 45
Savings Identified 2011/12 (51) (4) 2) 0
Growth ltems 2011/12 (non-recurrent) (266) 0 0 0
Savings Achieved for 2012/13 (898) 2) 0 0
Additional Savings Achieved for 2012/13 (30) (6) 0 0
Mainstream Growth Items 2012/13 (recurrent) 278 (93) 0 0
Growth ltems 2012/13 & 2013/14 65 0 (65) 0
Growth Items 2012/13 (Non-recurrent) 445 (445) 0 0
Base Budget Review Savings 2013/14 0 (133) 0
Transformation Strategy Savings 2013/14 (610) (73)
DIRECTORATE CASH BUDGETS 13,727 12,962 13,426 13,877
Contingency:
- Management of the Establishment (200) (200) (200) (200)
- Other Corporate Savings Targets 0 0 0 0
Directorate & Corporate Budgets 13,527 12,762 13,226 13,677
Net Financing Transactions:
- Net Interest/Premiums/Discounts 0 (19) (12) (69)
Review of Investment & Debt Strategy 0 (75) (75) (75)
- MRP less Commutation Adjustment 344 416 442 469
- Debt Restructuring Saving (50) (50) (50) (50)
sub total 294 272 305 275
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 13,821 13,034 13,531 13,952
Financed By:
Council Tax - Borough (6,402) (5,810) (5,839) (5,869)
Localisation of Council Tax Support Grant 0 (753) (753) (753)
Grant for freezing Council Tax (318) (160) (160) 0
Grant for freezing Council Tax 2013/14 & 2014/15 0 (65) (65) 0
Parish Precepts 567 567 567 567
Council Tax Parishes (567) (529) (529) (529)
Formula Grant (5,883) (5,448) (4,624) (4,624)
New Homes Bonus (1,044) (1,044) (1,044) (1,044)
Performance Reward Grant (89) 0 0 0
Area Based Grant 0 0 0 0
LABGI Grant 0 0 0 0
New Burdens Grant 0 (16) (16) 0
Council Tax Transition Grant 0 (20) 0 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (40) (77) (7) (7)
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (31) 68 (63) (39)
Local Services Support Grant (71) (71) (71) (71)
Transfer to/(from) General Balances 58 0 0 0
TOTAL FINANCING (13,821) (13,358) (12,604) (12,368)
Net Expenditure 0 (324) 927 1,584
Analysis of Net Expenditure (Budget Gap)
Net Expenditure in Year 0 (324) 1,251 657
[surplus New Homes Bonus 0 (739)] (1,500)] (2,300)]
Key Assumptions 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Reduction in Government Grant Settlement (AEF) £857k £435k £824k £0k
Profiled Reduction in Grant Settlement -11.7% -7.4% -15.1% 0.0%
Pay Award 0 1% 1% 1%
Pension Increase 0.5% 0.5% 0% 0%
Increase in Council Tax 1% 0% 0% 0%
Grant for Freezing Council Tax £318k £159k £159k £0k
Grant for freezing Council Tax 2013/14 & 2014/15 - £65k £65k £0k
Use of New Homes Bonus £1,044k £1,044k £1,044k £1,044k




Agenda Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 59 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council
APPENDIX TWO
Project Mandates
1 Proactive Clean Up Team
2 Neighbourhood Working Pot
3 Community Development Support and Volunteering Project
4 16/17 Year Old’s Drop In Scheme
5 Tree Policy
6 Extension and Improvement of Street Furniture
7 Active Generation
8 Street Games
9 Improvements to Play Areas
10 Free Swimming
11 Employee Health Scheme
12 Campaigns and Events
13 Purchase of Key Town Centre Sites
14 Car Par_k Pa_y and Display Income Reduction — no project mandate
as continuation of current arrangements
15 Inward Investment Pot
16 Town centre Master Plan
17 Support the Expansion of Local Business
18 Joint Employment Initiative with Runshaw College




Project Mandate

Agenda Page 60 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

PROJECT MANDATE

1 - Pro-active Clean-Up Team

Date: 10" December 2012
Author: Jamie Dixon

Responsible Directorate: People and Places



Agenda Page 61 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

1. Project Overview
This project will deliver improvements across the borough through a dedicated clean-up
team to monitor and take remedial and improvement action in areas where repeat
environmental issues are experienced.

2. Project Background
Across the borough there are a number of areas that require on-going action to address
environmental issues such a litter, dumped rubbish and over-grown vegetation. This is
currently addressed through an ad-hoc reactive approach and requires a dedicated team
that can undertake pro-active remedial action followed by regular monitoring and further
action to ensure standards are maintained.

The dedicated team will also provide additional resources to support neighbourhood
working and target areas and issues that are identified through the neighbourhood
meetings.

3. Corporate Priorities
The project would contribute to the following objectives:

e Clean safe and healthy communities.
e An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

4. Objectives

e Improve environmental and cleanliness across the borough.

e Proactively target and monitor areas to ensure standards are maintained.

e Increase in the percentage of people satisfied with their neighbourhood as a
place to live.

5. Scope
The scope of the project includes establishing a permanent dedicated clean-up team
consisting of two operatives and van. The service will operate year round and will
undertake regular monitoring and environmental improvements as required.

6. Constraints
The permanent dedicated team will be established from 2013/14.

This project requires a budgetary investment.

7. Impact on other Directorates/Projects
This project will work closely with the neighbourhood team and directly support
improvements to neighbourhood working alongside the Health, Environment and
Neighbourhoods team.



Agenda Page 62 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

2 - Implement improvements to neighbourhood working

Date: 10" December 2012
Author: Simon Clark

Responsible Directorate: People and Places



Agenda Page 63 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

8. Project Overview

This project will deliver improvements to neighbourhood working as set out and agreed in
the review of neighbourhood working that will be presented to Executive Cabinet in
November 2012.

9. Project Background

In 2007 the Council commissioned a report from Partners in Change entitled “The
Scope and Prospects for Neighbourhood Working in Chorley”. This led to the
creation of the a neighbourhood working model with seven neighbourhood areas initially
supported by a neighbourhood profile which was intended to inform an annual
neighbourhood action plan.

Over the last 4 years the neighbourhood working model has evolved to a point where
Members have a twice yearly neighbourhood area meeting with officers; undertake
regular Ward walks with Neighbourhood Officers as required and can submit
‘Expressions of Interest’ to resource particular and discreet work packages and projects
in their particular area, together with ‘business as usual’ delivery of neighbourhood,
community development and street scene services.

Therefore the original concept of providing a neighbourhood profile and developing a
project/action plan for each neighbourhood area has been superseded. The current
neighbourhood working model is supported by a modest budget and delivered by
integrating actions and plans into officers ‘business as usual’ work streams.

The new administration initiated a review into neighbourhood working in order to
consider how existing arrangements could be more clearly defined, improved and linked
to other key initiatives such as civic pride. This project follows on from the review and
aims to implement the recommendations in order to improve neighbourhood working in
Chorley.

10. Corporate Priorities

This project supports the Council’s priorities to involve residents in improving their local
areas and equality of access for all and clean, safe and healthy communities.

11. Objectives

e Members will have significantly more control and say in what happens in their
area and potentially direct access to resources to deliver.

e Increase the number of neighbourhood areas, from seven to eight in order to
address issues with eastern parishes covering large rural and urban
settlements.

e Increase in the percentage of people satisfied with their neighbourhood as a
place to live.

e Increase representation from parish and county councillors at neighbourhood
meetings in order to improve the effectiveness of the meetings and planning for
the areas.

e To increase the level of support to communities to facilitate the growth of
community groups and increase the volunteering capacity within communities.



Agenda Page 64 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

12. Scope

The scope of the project is limited to implementing the recommendations contained
within the review of neighbourhood working and extending the level and nature of
support to communities for community group growth and sustainable volunteering
capacity. More specifically this includes:

e The development of the annual neighbourhood plans;

e The reallocation of staff to the new areas;

e The establishment of neighbourhood meetings in the areas affected by the
change in neighbourhood footprint.

e Extending memberships/representation at the neighbourhood meetings to include
parish and county councillors.

o Development of a clear process and governance arrangements for devolving and
monitoring budgets to a neighbourhood level.

e The provision of additional resource through the existing Spice Uplift ‘time
banking’ project to support community development work and provide a means of
building on the work already done to implement a model to encourage
sustainable volunteering effort in communities.

e Develop an annual ‘Community clean-up programme’ to provide 12 ‘skip days’
(one per month) across the Borough.

13. Constraints

The project will be delivered during 2013/14 with some elements, if approved, extending
until 2016.

To implement the recommendations of the review and make further improvements will
require additional investment, which will be subject to approval at full Council.

It should be noted that the delivery of the community clean up programme will be funded
from existing streetscene budgets.

14. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

Neighbourhood working is not just the responsibility of Health, Environments and
Neighbourhoods. Other services will also have a role to play, including:

Democratic Services

Streetscene and Leisure Contracts
Policy and Communications
Planning

Housing

This project also has close links to the projects to develop and implement a civic pride
campaign and the member accreditation scheme.



Agenda Page 65 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

3 - Strengthening the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector in Chorley

Date: 02/01/13
Author: Vicky Willett

Responsible Directorate: People & Places



Agenda Page 66 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

15. Project Overview
The Voluntary, Community and Faith sector has a vital role to play in delivering services
for the benefit of Chorley residents, increasing levels of volunteering and encouraging
community engagement.

This project will look to provide additional support to the VCF Sector in Chorley through
strengthening the work of the Chorley VCFS Network as the over-arching organisation
responsible for coordinating the sector and therefore best placed to identify and address
local needs.

16. Project Background

In 2010/11 the Chorley Partnership commissioned an organisation to undertake a project
to organise more formal networks and communication channels for VCF sector
representation in Chorley, extending the work previously done by the SMIC (Stronger
More Involved Communities) thematic group and reducing the on-going support needed
from Chorley Council to keep the group running.

The VCFS Network Development Project was implemented with Chorley Partnership
funding to develop a sustainable and representative forum for the VCF Sector, giving them
a more coordinated and influential voice, coordinating advice support and being an
advocate for the sector.

This year the Chorley partnership commissioned another piece of work from the VCF
network with the overarching objective being to increase, retain and support volunteers in
Chorley.

Additionally, Lancashire County Council have recently commissioned Chorley’'s VCF
network to host one of six project coordinators to operate across Lancashire in order to
deliver a strategic county wide approach to volunteering.

17. Corporate Priorities
The project would contribute to the following corporate objectives:

e Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all.
e An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

18. Objectives

The objective of this project will be to further strengthen the VCF sector in Chorley
through supporting the VCFS Network to become more self-sustaining and effectively
achieve their priorities as follows:

e To continue to be the umbrella structure and focus for Voluntary, Community and
Faith Sector partnership work across Chorley in particular by the Chorley Local
Strategic Partnership.

o To expand our membership to ensure that all sectors are fully represented.

o To ensure that the whole sector is enabled to participate fully and is recognised
as a significant partner by statutory bodies and other organisations for all
activities in the Chorley borough for example in the establishment of a Faith
Forum linked to the work of the Equality Forum.



Agenda Page 67 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

e To explore improvement of current partnerships including opening up dialogue
and partnership including cross-boundary work with the South Ribble Voluntary,
Community and Faith Sector Network.

e To support the development of Volunteering in Chorley through the project that
the Network currently manages and through opportunities that arise via the
county council funding through One Lancashire. To ensure that the Network
Project embraces improving opportunities for volunteering and looks at new
initiatives including SPICE, employee supported volunteering and training.

e To continue to support the work being undertaken on Working Together with
Families project ensuring that “families” includes all members both younger and
older.

e To increase the ability of the sector to influence the Health and Well Being
agenda by being proactive and opening up opportunities to work with both Public
Health and the Clinical Commissioning Group at present in shadow format. To
seek to maintain the current post that the Network manages funded via the NHS.

e To support the work being undertaken on economic regeneration ensuring that
the resources and needs of the VCF sector are taken into account and supported.

e To improve our ability to communicate and promote information to the sector
using a variety of channels including word of mouth, information technology,
outreach, media outlets.

19. Scope

The project will include:

e Working with the VCFS Network to identify where activity and resources should
be targeted to achieve the priorities listed above.

e Supporting the Network to develop a project plan.

¢ Managing the delivery of the project plan by the VCFS Network to its successful
completion.

This project will be delivered in partnership with other key local initiatives, specifically the
Spice Uplift Time Credits programme although this will be run through a separate project.

20. Constraints

Resources are required to deliver the objectives of the project and should be completed
by March 2014. It is expected that this resource should be used to ensure the future self-
sustainability of the Network.

21. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

This work links in with the corporate strategy project, improving volunteering and should
also support neighbourhood working initiative.



Agenda Page 68 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

4 -16/17 Young Persons Drop-in

Date:
Author:

Responsible Directorate:



Agenda Page 69 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

22. Project Overview

The drop-in is for 16/17 year olds only and operates two days a week on Tuesdays and
Fridays from Lord Street in Chorley. It is the gateway (single point of access) for
referrals of 16/17 year olds from the Chorley and South Ribble area who are at risk of
becoming homeless.

23. Project Background

The service commenced in January 2012 and ceases in July 2013. The service was
funded by a on-off amount of from the Department for Communities and Local
Government. The drop in provides mediation and support to 16/17 year olds at risk of
homelessness.

The service was commissioned following significant issues arising during 2011 when
Chorley Council and LCC Children’s Social Care were in conflict regarding the support
requirements for young people. At that time, the number of 16/17 year olds presenting
as homeless was increasing and resulting in a reactive response where the approach
taken by the different agencies was in conflict and often resulted in young people being
placed inappropriately in temporary accommodation. Following extensive discussions
with Children’s Social Care(CSC) led by Chorley Council it was agreed that the focus
should be on prevention and that this service would be a single gateway for referral
which would focus on trying to keep the young people at home.

24. Corporate Priorities
The project sits under two of the four priorities Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all and clean, safe and healthy communities. The project
also supports the Council’s prevention of Homelessness Strategy, Supports the Working
with families project, supports the Council's work on Children’s safeguarding and
contributes to the reduction in NEETS and improving life chances of young people.

25. Objectives

From the information available (January — October 2012) 43 16/17 year olds have used
the service and the majority were helped to either stay at home, stay with other members
of their family in settled accommodation or accessed supported accommodation. The
number of 16/17 year olds accommodated in Cotswold have also reduced as this service
works with the young person to try and eliminate the need for temporary accommodation.
Previously young people would be referred directly into Cotswold by CSC.

It is anticipated that the continuation of the service would:

e Provide support to 70 young people (based on current performance)

o Keep the no of 16/17 year olds referred into Cotswold at a minimum

e Maintain the positive working relationship that has been established between
CBC and CSC



Agenda Page 70 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

26. Scope

To fund half of the cost of the service to March 2014. The funding would be used to pay
for the two part time mediation/support workers, the hiring of the venue, equipment and
some materials. .

27. Constraints

Provide details of any known constraints within which the project has to be delivered,
such as timescales, budget, staff resources or partnership working.

LCC currently provide an officer from CSC to attend the drop-in and we would look to
LCC to continue to provide that resource

28. Impact on other Directorates/Projects
The main impact will be on the Housing Options and Supported Housing Services.



Agenda Page 71 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

5 - Tree Policy

Date: 19/11/2012
Author: Jamie Dixon

Responsible Directorate: People & Places



Agenda Page 72 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

29. Project Overview

Revise the current tree policy to action work on all trees on Council land rather than just
dead, dangerous and diseased trees.

30. Project Background
The current tree policy that has been in place since 2010 states that the Council will only
action work only to dead, dangerous and diseased trees. Many requests for service are
for pruning overhanging branches / topping trees. The policy could be amended to
include Council trees overhanging private gardens / houses (including the roots)
regardless of tree health.

The estimated cost of this proposal is difficult to determine as it depends on requests and
demand. The work would be undertaken using a specialist tree contractor provide
additional tree work two days a week during the growing season (over 26 weeks). If
demand is less — spare capacity could utilised on other tree work and if demand was
greater this would require further funding or it could be undertaken the following season
(assuming the budget remains in place).

31. Corporate Priorities
The revised policy would contribute to the following objectives:

e Clean safe and healthy communities.

¢ Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all.

e An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

32. Objectives

To complete 52 days of tree work over a 26 week period.

33. Scope
Included Not Included
e Trees on Council owned land e Trees on other private land

o Two days work per week over 26
weeks starting April 2012

e Other tree work within Council owned
sites

e Trees on the highway

34. Constraints
The project requires budgetary resources.

35. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

Links into the work undertaken by the Streetscene Tree Officer and the wider
Streetscene and Parks team.



Agenda Page 73 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

6 - Street Furniture

Date: 06/12/2012
Author: Jamie Dixon

Responsible Directorate: People & Places



Agenda Page 74 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

36. Project Overview

Continuation of the litter bin replacement with a further 300 replacement litter / dog waste
bins

37. Project Background

The current bin stock includes approximately 1,115 litter bins (includes 189 dog bins).
During 2012 300 bins were replaced in the town centre and along the main arterial routes
and main roads though the various towns and villages. The new bins have improved
capacity by 10% which helps reduce litter and supports the operational efficiency of the
Streetscene service. The new bins are also signed up as litter / dog waste bins and this
supports initiatives to encourage residents to dispose of dog waste responsibly.

Replacement of a further 300 bins will targeted at the remaining high use sites such as
parks, play areas, car parks and to replace the old style red dog bins. The red dog bins
offer limited capacity and often appear to be full, when they aren’t, due to the opening
mechanism trapping bags of dog waste. Litter bin capacity will be improved by 10% and
it will also be much easier for residents to dispose of their dog waste

38. Corporate Priorities
The revised policy would contribute to the following objectives:

e Clean safe and healthy communities.
e An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the
local area.

39. Objectives

o To replace 300 litter bins with larger litter bins that can accept both litter and
dog waste. The additional bins will:

¢ Increase capacity by at least 10% to manage street waste including replacing
some sites that currently have multiple litter / dog bins with a litter bin that can
also take dog waste.

¢ Include a sticker to educate people that dog waste can now be included in
normal litter bins.

¢ Rationalise litter bin provision which improves operational efficiency and
provides more effective emptying arrangements.

o Replace existing red dog bins with larger capacity bins that can accept dog
waste and litter.

e Provide greater convenience for customers — less problems with overflowing
bins and more litter bins will be sited closer to bus stops.



Agenda Page 75 Agenda ltem 6

oriey
Project Mandate C ouncil
40. Scope
Included Not Included
¢ Replacement of Council owned litter ¢ Replacement of litter bins owned
and dog bins. by other organisations
. Replagement to improve litter bin « Additional litter bins
capacity
41. Constraints

Further litter bins could be included dependent on additional budget.

42. Impact on other Directorates/Projects
Links into the work undertaken by the Neighbourhoods team to improve litter and dog
fouling.



Project Mandate

Agenda Page 76 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

PROJECT MANDATE

7 - Active Generation

Date: 27 November 2012
Author: Lee Boyer

Responsible Directorate: People and Places



Agenda Page 77 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

43. Project Overview
Active Generation is a specific project aimed at encouraging the 50+ age group to be
more active physically, and to promote healthier lifestyles. The project could be
mainstreamed into business as usual service delivery.

44. Project Background
Having successfully delivered an externally funded Active Generation project over the
last 4 years, the current Administration is seeking to embed the principles of physical
activity and healthy lifestyle promotion as a mainstreamed service for older residents.

The mainstreamed service will continue to provide activity opportunities for older people
but will also link into the wide neighbourhood working model and seek to establish local
community groups that are self-sustaining and able to continue with the provision of local
activities and developments.

The information below summarises what has been delivered by the scheme so far this
year:

Active Generation 2012 (April — December statistics)

Number of Separate sessions delivered 111
Individual Sessions delivered 501
Visits to Active Generation sessions 3193
Number of people on average per session 6.373253
Number of Individual males attending 795
Number of individual females attending 961

Total individuals attending AG sessions 1756
Cost per visit to Active Generation session £1.26
Community Groups Supported 52

31 separate sports and activities have been delivered this last quarter

e Sports and Activities include, Tai Chi, Yoga, Pilates, Badminton, Crown Green
Bowling, Dances, Canoeing, Tennis, Table Tennis, Short Tennis, Cricket,
Running groups, Health Walks, Handball, Basketball, 50+ Games etc, Olympic
programme of activities and full programme of events during Older Peoples week
in Chorley.

52 Community groups supported include

o Chorley Older peoples forum, Art in Adlington, Age UK groups, Chorley Bowls
Forum, VCFS, Eaves Green Seniors and many more.



Agenda Page 78 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

45, Corporate Priorities

The project meets the clean, safe and healthy communities priority in that it will promote
arrange of activities for the over 50’s age group as well as tackling health inequalities.

The project will also contribute to the priority of involving residents in improving equal
access to all.

46. Objectives

The objectives of this project are:

e Increase the level of participation in physical activity amongst older people to the
national minimum of one session of physical activity (30 mins) per week.

o Engage further with those approaching older ager to ensure they are supported
with physical activity opportunities and health lifestyle messages.

e To increase the range of activities available through supporting local community
groups and encouraging volunteering effort.

47. Scope
The scope of this project is restricted to ensuring that Active Generation as a brand is
delivered. The project will not seek to develop further branded activity products for the 50
+ age group. However in developing Active Generation for this age group the project will
seek to determine and establish an extension to service delivery that ensures those
approaching 50 years are encouraged to either maintain appropriate levels of activity or
engage in service provision.

48. Constraints
The project will require support from the wider neighbourhood working resource provision
across the Council. In particular the community and volunteering elements of the project
will be contingent on available resources from the community development team. The
budget will be essentially used to fund a FTE Active Generation Officer plus a small
budget to seed fund activities as required.

49. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

A number of other Directorates will be impacted, in particular Communications Team and
the Housing Team to ensure the service is widely used and communicated.

There will be cross over with this project and the Volunteer Development project.



Agenda Page 79 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

8 - Street Games

Date: 27 November 2012
Author: Lee Boyer

Responsible Directorate: People and Places



Agenda Page 80 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

50. Project Overview

Street Games is a specific project aimed at delivering doorstep sport in a low cost way
with a key emphasis on the most deprived communities in the Borough. It is aimed
towards young people 5 years to 24 years. The project could be mainstreamed into
business as usual service delivery.

51. Project Background

Having successfully delivered an externally funded Street Games project over the last 3
years, the current Administration is seeking to embed the principles of physical activity
and diversionary activity amongst younger people as a mainstreamed service.

The indicators of success to date over the past 12 months of the Street Games service
are:

e 622 sessions of activity delivered, including evening, weekend, school, holiday

time, weekly evening session.

1237 hours of actual coaching delivery

5103 participants (these are counted as one on each activity)

8702 attendances

3221 Male participants

1880 Female participants

3242 Under 13’s

1251 13-15 years

93 over 16.

102 With a known disability. (2% although this is the base minimum not all data

that returns discloses this, so the actual figure is expected to be higher. )

76 estimated to be from BME community. (1.5%)

¢ In excess of 15 different sports delivered.

e Football the most popular activity. Others include Handball, Table Tennis, Rugby
Union, Rock Climbing, Orienteering, Dodgeball, Athletics, Streetgolf,

o Re ages not all ages are disclosed so we don’t have the full range of the 5103

In addition young volunteer successes over this year include:

34 young volunteers signed since start of streetgames but on books to date.

13 currently active 16 short term (one off or short events)

405 hours of volunteering this year completed.

1 Fundamnetals of movement course completed.

2 Safeguarding qualifications

1 NGB level one qualification Handball level One

6 Activator courses

Us, Girls, Chorley 2012 Schools, School Holiday activity’s, Great Manchester
Run, Sky Ride Manchester, Volunteer Conference’s. attended and residential for
Chorley Vols.

¢ One volunteer accepted for role at London 2012 for Coca Cola.

The service will continue to provide sport and diversionary activity opportunities for
younger people within their communities.



Agenda Page 81 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

52. Corporate Priorities
The project meets the clean, safe and healthy communities priority in that it will promote
arrange of activities with in communities. The project will also contribute to the priority of
involving residents in improving equal access to all as well as promoting volunteering.

53. Objectives

The objectives of this project are:

e To develop the legacy of the existing Streetgames project and ensure it is
provided as part of the mainstream activity offer..

e Engage further with younger people (14 to 25 age range) and direct them into
leadership and volunteering roles.

e To complement and support national initiatives around doorstep sport clubs,
active women (Us Girls project).

o Enable the further enhancement of the Get Up and Go offer

54. Scope
The scope of this project is restricted to ensuring that Street Games as a brand is
delivered. The project will not seek to develop further branded activity products for door
step sport.

55. Constraints
Existing resources (previously externally funded) will be utilised to deliver this project but
with support from the wider neighbourhood working resource provision across the
Council. In particular the community and volunteering elements of the project will be
contingent on available resources from the community development team. The budget
will be essentially used to fund 2 FTE and 2PTE officer posts, combining development
and delivery of doorstep sports.

56. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

A number of other Directorates will be impacted, in particular Communications Team and
the Housing Team to ensure the service is widely used and communicated.

There will be cross over with this project and the Volunteer Development project as well
as community safety teams.

ICT teams will be engaged to establish a means of mobile working within the
mainstreamed service.



Agenda Page 82 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

9 - Improvement of Play Areas

Date: 06/12/2012
Author: Jamie Dixon

Responsible Directorate: People & Places



Project Mandate

Agenda Page 83 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

57. Project Overview
The project includes investment into a number of existing Council owned play areas.

58.

Project Background

The project will be phased and will include the development and improvement of Council

owned

play areas at a number of key sites including Astley Park. Were possible the

funding will be used to attract further external funding to enhance the various schemes.

59.

Corporate Priorities

The revised policy would contribute to the following objectives:

e Clean safe and healthy communities.
¢ Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all.

e An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.
60. Objectives

To invest in improvements of Council owned play areas. To be confirmed but could to
include for example:

Astley Park - investment in creating a ‘destination’ play area (new play
equipment across a range of age groups and associated safety surfacing)

King Georges Field - investment in improving the play provision for 8-12 year
olds (replacement of play equipment, boundaries and safety surfacing where
necessary).

Tatton Rec. Ground - investment in improving the play provision for the toddler
to 8 year old age bracket (replacement of equipment, boundaries and safety
surfacing where necessary)

Harper’s Rec. Ground - investment in replacing equipment, boundaries and
safety surfacing in the toddler play area.

Coronation Rec. Ground - investment in resurfacing of tennis courts and
replacement of boundary mesh fencing and nets.

To levy in further additional external funding to enhance the various schemes.

61. Scope
Included Not Included
e Improving existing Council owned e Improving play areas at non
play areas Council owned sites
¢ Developing play areas at new
Council owned sites.
62. Constraints

This project required budgetary resources.

63.

Impact on other Directorates/Projects

Links into the work undertaken as part of the Open Spaces Study that identifies Council

owned

sites that require investment.

Also supports the development of Astley Park.



Agenda Page 84 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

10 - Free Swimming

Date: 02/01/13
Author: Vicky Willett

Responsible Directorate: People & Places



Agenda Page 85 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

64. Project Overview
This project is to make available free afternoon swimming sessions for under 16’s during
the school summer holidays (Monday — Fridays) at the Council’s leisure facilities: All
Seasons Leisure Centre and Brinscall Swimming Baths. This project will run for 12
months.

65. Project Background
Improving the health of Chorley’s local communities is a key focus for the administration
and in particular tackling health inequalities to enable young people to take part in
physical activity preventing a range of longer term health and social issues.

This project will remove a potential financial barrier to physical activity and enable young
people from any community including those that are more deprived, to access swimming
facilities. It will also complement the existing Get Up and Go programme, enhancing the
current offer to young people in terms of physical and diversionary activity.

66. Corporate Priorities
The project would contribute to the following corporate objectives:

e Clean safe and healthy communities.

¢ Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all.

¢ An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

67. Objectives

The project will aim to:

e Work with our partners Active Nation to put in place the free swimming
programme including monitoring and reporting arrangements.

o Promote the project through appropriate channels including Get Up and Go

e Increase the numbers of young people taking part in physical activity

68. Scope

This project will include liaising with Active Nation to set up and deliver the free
swimming project. Free swimming will be available on week day afternoons during the
school summer holidays for young people aged under 16 and living in the Chorley
Borough.

This project does not include free swimming during term time and does not extend to
other age groups at the present time.

69. Constraints

The budget required should cover all delivery costs and Active Nation will be the main
partner in ensuring effective delivery.

70. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

This work links in with the existing Get Up and Go programme, neighbourhood working
and other health and wellbeing initiatives.



Agenda Page 86 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

11 - Employee Health Scheme

Date: 10" December 2012
Author:

Responsible Directorate: Chief Executives Office



Agenda Page 87 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

71. Project Overview
This project is a continuation of a Health Cash Plan funded by the council. The council
pays a fixed contribution per employee which then enables employees to claim back the
costs of health related treatments such as dental charges, eye tests and glasses,
consultant appointments, professional therapy and many other benefits.
The scheme has proved to be very successful in its first year, and this project would
extend the scheme for a further 12 months.

72. Project Background
An employee health scheme was introduced in 2012/13 following two years of no pay
award for staff.
Although there had been little apparent impact of having no pay award, it was felt that
continued pay freezes could lead to disengagement, lower productivity and morale. The
health scheme was therefore introduced in an effort to offer some reward and benefit to
staff during this period.
Since June 2012, the scheme has been accessed 164 times and claims have totalled
approximately £6,037 for services including dental care, optical care, prescriptions and
wellbeing such as physiotherapy and acupuncture.

73. Corporate Priorities
This project supports the council’s priority to be an ambitious council that does more to
meet the needs of residents and the local area.

74. Objectives

The key objective is the continuation of this scheme for a further 12 months, which would
support:

e Improved employee health;

¢ Increased staff satisfaction and engagement;

¢ Improvements in staff benefits, creating a more attractive package for potential
employees; and

e Achieve a reduction in the current health and wellbeing expenditure.

75. Scope
The scheme would be applied to all employees, including agency workers who have
worked for more than 12 weeks, and temporary staff that are employed within the year.

76. Constraints
Budgetary resources are required to cover a period of 12 months.

77. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

The scheme is accessible to all staff, but has no specific impact on services other than
HR&OD who are responsible for coordinating the scheme.

This scheme would run alongside other health and wellbeing initiatives we are running in
the next 12 months which include:

Running Club

Pedometer Challenge

Flu Vaccinations

Smoking Cessation

Health Screening



Agenda Page 88 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

Project Mandate

PROJECT MANDATE

12 - Campaigns and Promotions

Date: 10 December 2012
Author: Chris Sinnott

Responsible Directorate: Chief Executives Office



Agenda Page 89 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

78. Project Overview

The investment would support identified campaigns and promotional activity for the town
centre and the borough.

79. Project Background

The changed focus of the policy and communications service means that it is possible to
clearly define and identify areas where undertaking further promotion and campaigns
could effectively support the council in achieving its priorities. A campaigns and
engagement strategy will be developed in early 2013 to guide the work of the team. Most
of the campaigns will be resourced from existing budgets. However, there are some
areas where an additional budget would mean that more could be achieved.

80. Corporate Priorities
The revised policy would contribute to the following objectives:

= A strong local economy.

= Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all.

= An ambitious Council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

81. Objectives

= To promote and increase engagement in the changed approach to
neighbourhood working and civic pride campaign.

= To support the economic development strategy, with a campaign to promote the
town centre — with an aim to; increase visitor stay, and diversify the reasons for
visiting the town centre.

» To promote the use of the collective fuel purchasing scheme (this is likely to be
iChoosr).

= To maintain the improved Christmas lights display.

82. Scope

Included within the scope of this investment would be;

= A promotional campaign of the civic pride campaign and neighbourhood working
(including as necessary, advertising, printed materials and other materials)

= A promotional town centre marketing campaign (including as necessary,
advertising, printed materials and evaluation work through surveys)

= A campaign to promote the use of the collective fuel purchasing scheme -
through advertising, printed materials and website development.

= Cost for the additional Christmas lights display used in 2012, for use in 2013.

The staff costs of developing and managing these campaigns is already available.

83. Constraints
Budgetary resources are required to deliver the project.



Agenda Page 90 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

84. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

These campaigns link closely with the work of Economic Development and Health,
Environment and Neighbourhoods. It links closely with the following projects and
initiatives:

Tackling fuel poverty (Corporate Strategy key project)

Develop a town centre master plan (Corporate Strategy key project)

Launch the civic pride campaign (Corporate Strategy key project)

Implement improvements to neighbourhood working (Corporate Strategy key
project)

= Develop volunteering in the borough (Corporate Strategy key project)



Agenda Page 91 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

13 - Purchase of key town centre sites

Date: 04 January 2012
Author:

Responsible Directorate:



Agenda Page 92 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

85. Project Overview
This project will progress proposals provided by Liberata for the purchase of key town
centre sites which would enable the Council to control and influence further retail
developments in the town centre with the overall aim of boosting trade.

86. Project Background
The percentage of vacant town centre floor space has seen a gradual reducing trend
since 2009. However, there are a number of long term vacant properties in key town
centre locations. This, together with public realm issues such as poorly maintained
premises and shop frontages, lack of seating and greenery, affect visitors’ experience
and give the perception that the town centre is in need of revitalising.

To address these issues the Council has already remodelled its town centre grant
programmes to support the establishment of new enterprises within long term vacant
properties but more still needs to be done.

Liberata have provided proposals for the purchase of key town centre sites which would
give the Council more control and influence over further retail developments in the town
centre. This follows the purchase of the old McDonald’s site and would aim to further
boost the town centre.

87. Corporate Priorities
This project supports the following priorities:

e A strong local economy
e An ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local
area.

88. Objectives

e To reduce the number of vacant premises in the town centre
¢ Achieve more control over future retail development
e Boost trade and strengthen the town centre offer.

89. Scope
This project will focus specifically on identifying and facilitating the purchase of key
vacant sites (and any associated redevelopment or refurbishment works) although it
should be noted that at this stage there is still the option to discount the work done by
Liberata

Activity to convert interested parties into occupied premises will be delivered through
business as usual of the economic development team as will any support to new
businesses that subsequently let Council owned retail premises.



Agenda Page 93 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

90. Constraints
There would be significant financial costs in the Council pursuing a strategy by
purchasing vacant units but this will secure more influence over the retail offer and
further development of the town centre. This would be covered by financing the cost of
borrowing up to £1million to invest in full asset purchase. Any purchases would also offer
the opportunity to generate rental income to mitigate some of the costs

The financing of any agreed solution will be dependent on the outcomes of the
forthcoming budget process. This could also impact upon project timescales.

91. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

This project could have implications for the Economic Development and Governance
teams.



Agenda Page 94 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

15 - Produce an Inward Investment Plan

Date: 26/10/2012
Author: Cath Burns

Responsible Directorate: Partnerships, Planning and Policy



Agenda Page 95 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

92. Project Overview
This project will produce an inward investment plan and deliver key actions. Activity will
include developing an inward investment web site, marketing package and a grant
scheme to support the capital injection from inward investors who are creating jobs for
local people.

93. Project Background
The emerging 2012 Economic Development strategy aims to promote and increase
inward investment in Chorley to support economic growth in the borough and provide a
mix of well paid, high and low skilled jobs.

The Chorley Local Plan will provide a future supply of employment land in Chorley upto
2026. This project will develop a plan for bringing forward development and inward
investment.

In a global economy and a very competitive market place, the challenge for Chorley is to
develop and articulate a succinct and targeted proposition to enable it to stand out from
its competitors, particularly from within the Manchester conurbation, and bring new
investment and jobs. Chorley has some fantastic assets but it needs to make sure that
potential investors hear about them.

Given the current recession, Chorley simply cannot afford to leave its inward investment
activities to other agencies. There is potential for Chorley to raise its game and be at the
forefront of the impending economic recovery that has the potential to bring new jobs and
investment to the borough.

The most important aspect of any inward investment campaign is an on-line presence.
By developing an inward investment web site, Chorley will send out a clear message that
it is a forward-looking, open and welcoming place for new investors.

Potential inward investors need to know specifically how Chorley can help solve their
business challenges and what particular industry and sector strengths the town has.
Firms need to know how Chorley can tap into wider supply-chains, particularly those that
would serve advanced manufacturing and engineering industries and support the
Enterprise Zone at Samlesbury and Warton. This is hugely important in helping to
position Chorley’s development opportunities in a more effective way to inward
investment intermediaries.

The potential to complement any existing provision and to provide a grant scheme to
support the capital requirements of inward investment companies who are creating local
jobs will be developed, subject to funding.

94. Corporate Priorities
Producing an inward investment plan and delivering key actions over the first year will
support the Corporate Strategy’s priority theme on ‘A strong local economy’, by helping
to create a strong business sector and providing access to high quality employment.



Agenda Page 96 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

95. Objectives

The project will aim to produce an inward investment action plan and delivery of key
actions identified in the plan. This may include, but is not limited to:

o Creating a database of target intermediaries to reach out to potential investors
and their advisors who are likely to be involved in expansion and relocation plans
of business that are suited to the town.

e Developing an inward investment web site.

Creating sectoral propositions and associated marketing material.

e Introducing and delivering a reward scheme, or suitable alternative to support the
expansion of existing companies who are creating/safeguarding jobs, subject to
funding.

96. Scope

Whilst this project will produce an inward investment action plan and deliver activity (as
outlined above), there will be other elements in the plan for delivery and resourcing that
fall out of the remit of this specific project.

The inward investment action plan will complement any other work of partner
organisations and agencies.

The development of the inward investment web site will complement Chorley Council’s
own web site.

The grant scheme to support the capital requirements of inward investment companies
who are creating local jobs will complement any existing provision.

97. Constraints
Timescales

Estimated key milestones are shown below, but the milestones and the dates will be
reviewed following delivery of the inward investment plan.

Key Action Milestone Date
Produce an inward investment action plan Feb 2013
Create a database of target intermediaries Feb 2013
Develop an inward investment web site Aug 2013

Create sectoral propositions and associated marketing material. | Apr 2013

Agree proposal for grant scheme for capital investment Feb 2013




Agenda Page 97 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

Resources

Economic Development will secure a third party to produce the inward investment action
plan, create the database of target intermediaries, provide a set of recommendations for
developing the web site and support the creation of the sectoral propositions. Support
will be required from the Communications Team in preparing the marketing material.
Additional staff resources will be required in Economic Development to deliver the grant
scheme for capital investment.

Budget

The project’s budget would enable the development of an inward investment plan and
provide flexible resources to be targeted at delivering priority areas identified in the plan.
This may include, but is not limited to:

e Creating a database of target intermediaries to reach out to potential investors
and their advisors who are likely to be involved in expansion and relocation plans
of business that are suited to the town.

e Developing an inward investment web site.

e Creating sectoral propositions and associated marketing material.

e Introducing and delivering a reward scheme, or suitable alternative to support the
expansion of existing companies who are creating/safeguarding jobs, subject to
funding.

98. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

The development of the inward investment web site will complement Chorley Council’s
own web site and integrate with the information technology requirements of ITC.

Support will be required from the Communications Team in preparing the marketing
material.



Agenda Page 98 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

Project Mandate

PROJECT MANDATE

16 - Develop a Town Centre Masterplan

Date: 31/10/2012
Author: Cath Burns

Responsible Directorate: Partnerships, Planning and Policy



Agenda Page 99 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

99. Project Overview

Producing, consulting and agreeing a long term plan for the future development of
Chorley Town Centre in order for it to maintain and grow its position in the retail hierachy;
providing consideration to the demarcation of the town centre boundary, land use zoning,
locations for new development, public realm and car parking.

100. Project Background

The Central Lancashire Core Strategy, adopted in 2012, will deliver retail and town
centre uses in Chorley Town Centre by ‘building on the success of the Market Walk
shopping centre, through investing in further retail development, supporting a range of
other retailers and services, as well as improving the centre’s appearance and
accessibility’. To support its Key Service Centre role, in addition, the 2012 Chorley Local
Plan states that ‘it will also preserve the market town character, encourage local
specialist shops to remain in the town centre....supporting town centre development
providing for tourists and visitors’.

The Central Lancashire Retail and Leisure Review 2010 identifies capacity for additional
and convenience shopping floor space, and the Chorley Local Plan identifies four key
sites for retail development.

The emerging 2012 Economic Development Strategy has a long term outcome ‘to create
a vibrant town centre that attracts people from both the local community and visitors in
the day and evening, for shopping, eating and entertainment’. In order to help realise
these strategies and plans, developing a town centre masterplan will provide the
foundations for a strategic and planned approach to attract future investment to key
development sites, enhance the public realm and improve the town centre offer.

This project will consider whether the size of the retail element of the town centre is fit for
purpose, more clearly define land use zones, provide investment-ready locations for
future development, identify locations for investment in the public realm, as well as car
parking provision.

101. Corporate Priorities

This project fits in with the Council’s Corporate Priority for ‘A strong local economy’ by
supporting a ‘Vibrant town centre’ and a ‘Strong and expanding business sector’.

102. Objectives

This project will aim to:

o Define the required size of the retail element of the town centre.

o Clearly define land use zones for a multi-functional market town.

¢ Provide masterplanned investment-ready locations for future development.
¢ Identify locations for targeted investment in the public realm.

¢ Provide adequate provision for car parking.



Agenda Page 100 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

103. Scope

This project will build upon the aspirations of the Core Strategy and Chorley Local Plan.

104. Constraints

Timescales

An indication of timescales are provided in the table below:

Task Timescale
Prepare brief Dec 2012
Seek quotations through The Chest | Jan 2012
Evaluate submissions and award Feb 2012
contract

Third party commences work Mar 2012
Final submission June 2012

Resources

This project will be managed by the Head of Economic Development and a third party will
be appointed to undertake the work.

Budget

This project requires budgetary resources.

105. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

Elements of this project will need to be consistent with planning policy and development
management, as such a multi-disciplinary task and finish group will be established to
oversee the work.



Agenda Page 101 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

17 - Implement a programme to support the expansion of local businesses

Date: 25/10/12
Author: Cath Burns

Responsible Directorate: Partnerships, Planning and Policy



Agenda Page 102 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

106. Project Overview

Establishing a business advice and support service for existing businesses in the
Borough who have been trading for more than 3 years in order to help them to survive
and grow. A newly appointed Business Advisor will work closely with the start-up
Business Advisor and other business support organisations/programmes to provide a
fully integrated business support infrastructure. This will include establishing a ‘Choose
Chorley Business Network’ and a quarterly business newsletter. A reward scheme to
support the expansion of existing companies who are creating/safeguarding jobs will also
be introduced, subject to funding.

107. Project Background

In the past, the majority of business advice and information for existing businesses was
provided by Business Link which employed 51 Business Advisors across Lancashire to
intensively assist companies. With the restructure of Business Link, the provision of free
dedicated one to one business advisory support to existing businesses in Chorley
ceased in November 2011. Central Government has, instead, put in place a Business
Link on-line resource. This resource is proving to be very limited. This is substantiated
by the June 2012 Survey by the Open University Business School which found that “the
internet is not necessarily the best way to deliver business advice, which often needs to
be tailored to the specific needs of a particular organisation”.

Furthermore, the closure of the Regional Development Agencies in March 2012 has
been a factor in the worsening supply of quality business advice and information from
qualified and experienced business advisors.

The provision of quality one to one business advice and information to our existing
businesses is fundamental to the Chorley economy for the following reasons:

° Maintaining the existing business and employment base which is more vulnerable
in these uncertain economic times. Clients receiving formal business support have
a higher chance of business survival than those receiving no support.

° Improving competitiveness and supporting the growth of existing businesses.

. Many businesses remain unaware of the support which is on offer, as do
intermediaries such as banks and accountants.

. Complements Chorley Council’'s new business start up scheme. New businesses
increase competition in the market place, forcing ‘business churn’- existing
businesses need to be able to raise their game if they are to compete in the
market.

Existing and planned support for the provision of quality business advice and information
is limited. There is some initial thinking on the development of a Business Growth Hub
for the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership area. The Hub will support SMEs in Lancashire
with 5%-20% annual growth potential. An ERDF bid is being prepared to help resource
this initiative. If taken forward, the Hub will work with a cohort of 100 key businesses
across Lancashire from the following priority sectors: Aerospace, Advanced
Manufacturing, Professional and Financial, Environmental and Green, and



Agenda Page 103 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

Creative/Digital. It is anticipated that the Hub will be accessed by 8% of Lancashire’s
business base every year. A significant proportion of Chorley businesses will not be
served by the emerging Business Growth Hub with its current focus on priority sectors.

Whether this is a chargeable service is still yet to be determined. Furthermore, Winning
Pitch is providing a Growth Accelerator Programme targeting existing businesses with
20% annual growth potential over 3 years. This is a paid service after an initial free
meeting. It is estimated that only a limited number of Chorley businesses will be
supported in this way.

There are a plethora of private sector led Chorley-based business networks but with
access restrictions on gender, fee charges and trade duplication. By Chorley Council
establishing a ‘Choose Chorley Business Network’, which complements and integrates
with existing provision, will help Chorley Council improve relationships with SMEs,
achieve a improved understanding of the trading environment and their business needs,
help inform future provision of business support and provide a networking opportunity to
exchange SME experiences and enhance trading positions.

The potential to complement existing provision and to provide a reward scheme to
support the expansion of existing companies who are creating/safeguarding jobs will be
developed, subject to funding.

108. Corporate Priorities

This project fits in with the Council’'s Corporate Priority on ‘A strong local economy’ by
supporting a ‘Strong and expanding business sector’ and providing ’Access to high
quality employment’.

109. Objectives

The project will aim to:

o Establish a business advice and support service for existing businesses in the
Borough who have been trading for more than 3 years in order to help them to
survive and grow.

e A Business Advisor will be appointed to deliver a high quality bespoke service
to existing businesses, working closely with the start-up Business Advisor and
other business support organisations/programmes to provide a fully integrated
business support infrastructure.

o Establish a ‘Choose Chorley Business Network’ which complements and
integrates with existing business network provision.

e Produce a quarterly business newsletter so that business are informed of the
support available and current economic news.

e Introduce and deliver a reward scheme to support the expansion of existing
companies who are creating/safeguarding jobs, subject to funding. Estimated
outcomes from the reward scheme include:

Support for 23 expanding companies;

23 companies committed to the employment charter;

10,000 sq ft floor space improved or created;

100 jobs created; and

£400,000 of private sector investment.

abron=



Agenda Page 104 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

110. Scope

Whilst the Business Advisor Service will support all existing businesses the focus will be:

o To work in partnership with the emerging Lancashire Business Growth Hub to
ensure that referrals are made into the Chorley service, and vice versa.

. To target businesses in the average and high risk sectors with a view to

maintaining stability in these uncertain economic times as a first priority, and then
to seek out untapped potential.

. Some focus on non-priority sectors, but not exclusively, to support growth and job
creation.
° Particular targeting to our retail businesses within the Town Centre and Local

Service Centres which do not belong to priority sectors.

The role of the Business Advisor will complement that of the start-up Business Advisor
and partner agency services.

111. Constraints
Timescales

Key milestones include:

Key Action Milestone Date

Business Advisor in post November 2012

First formal meeting of the ‘Choose Chorley Business Network’ | January 2013

First issue of ‘Choose Chorley Business Newsletter’ January 2013
Agree proposal for reward scheme for capital expansion January 2013
Resources

A Business Advisor is being appointed to help establish the business advice and support
service, who will also support the business network and the preparation of the newsletter
along with other staff in the Economic Development Section. Support from the
Communications Team will be required in the production of the newsletter. A temporary
resource will be required for approximately 3 months to develop our database of
businesses for receipt of the newsletter. Additional staff resources will be required in
Economic Development to deliver the reward scheme.



Project Mandate

Budget

Agenda Page 105 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Council

This project’s budget would need to comprise of the following:

1.

2.

112.

Business Advisor budget to cover networking memberships, marketing
and guest speakers

Choose Chorley Business Network and Annual North West Business
Insider Event

Maintaining business database for the Choose Chorley Business
Newsletter

Reward scheme for capital expansion of existing businesses

Impact on other Directorates/Projects

The role of the Business Advisor will complement that of the start-up Business Advisor
and partner agency services.

Support from the Communications Team will be required in the production of the

newsletter.



Agenda Page 106 Agenda ltem 6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

PROJECT MANDATE

18 - Implement a joint employment support initiative with Runshaw College

Date: 1 November 2012
Author: Gary Hall

Responsible Directorate: Chief Executive’s office



Agenda Page 107 Ag% altem6
oriey

Project Mandate Council

113. Project Overview
Working with Runshaw College and Lancashire County Council, this project will identify the
barriers to young people accessing and sustaining apprenticeships in the Borough of
Chorley.

114. Project Background
Evidence from Runshaw College suggests a number of young people are not able to access
the apprenticeship opportunities that exist in the Borough, for a number of reasons, the main
barriers being:

e Access to transport

e Start-up costs e.g. equipment, uniforms etc.

¢ Right skills and training

Currently there are 30 apprentice vacancies within the Borough that remain unfilled.
Identifying the barriers in more detail and breaking down these barriers so that these
opportunities are taken will directly impact on the Council’'s aspiration to reduce
unemployment and manage the number of NEETS within the Borough.

115.  Corporate Priorities

The project directly links to Corporate Project “Implement a joint employment support
initiative with Runshaw College” and the NEET target of 5.1.

116.  Objectives

The objective will be to reduce the number of reduce the number of young people,
particularly NEET young, people excluded from employment opportunities through the
barriers identified by 50%.

117. Scope

The project will be limited to those accessing opportunities through Runshaw College and
will need to be flexible enough to deal with individual circumstances. Assistance from
Lancashire County Council who provide support in a number of areas, particularly transport,
will also be required.

118. Constraints

Budgetary resources are required to fund the project. This budget would be used to
overcome some of the financial barriers that young people face in accessing and sustaining
apprenticeships by allocating budget to Runshaw College to make available a Chorley
Council employment support fund from which employers can access support towards costs
additional to wages; this may include travel, training, protective clothing, tools and equipment
to do the job dependent on the specific needs of the individual. The amount available would
be limited per apprentice from that employers can access (via Runshaw) as much or as little
as they require. Any surplus could be allocated towards developing the Runshaw Skills for
Work placement scheme to create placements in Chorley.

119. Impact on other Directorates/Projects

There would be limited resource implications internally, as once the scheme is set up, it
would be run and administered through Runshaw College.



Agenda Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 109 Agenda ltem 7

Executive Cabinet

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 October 2012

Present: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Executive Leader in the Chair), Councillor Peter Wilson
(Deputy Leader of the Council) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Terry Brown and Adrian Lowe

Also in attendance

Lead Members: Councillors Marion Lowe, Matthew Crow and Julia Berry

Other Members: Councillors Henry Caunce, John Dalton, Alison Hansford, Steve Holgate,
Kevin Joyce, Paul Leadbetter, June Molyneaux, Greg Morgan and Geoffrey Russell

Officers: Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of
Partnerships, Planning and Policy), Chris Moister (Head of Governance), Chris Sinnott (Head of
Policy and Communications) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services Officer)

12.EC.146 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Dennis Edgerley.
12.EC.147 MINUTES

RESOLVED - The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 13
September be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Executive
Leader.

An update was requested in relation to the Localisation of Council Tax Support. The
draft scheme had been approved for consultation at Council on 25 September and the
consultation was being undertaken by various mechanisms. These included a postal
survey to current recipients of Council Tax benefit and a random sample of additional
people totalling 12,000 people. The survey was available on the Council’s website
and would be one of the topics discussed with members of the public at the upcoming
Town Hall Open Day.

12.EC.148 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
No Members declared an interest in respect of items on the agenda.
12.EC.149 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The Executive Leader reported that there had been no requests from members of the
public to speak on any of the meeting’s agenda items.

12.EC.150 REVIEW OF 3 TIER FORUM

The Executive Member (Places) reported that when the decision had been taken to
participate in the 3 Tier Forum it had been on the basis that there would be a review
after 12 months. As there had only been three meetings it had been proposed to
delay the review for six months.

Members discussed the private nature and effectiveness of the Forum, but noted that
the meetings were evolving. The Council needed to be a member of the Forum to
influence Lancashire County Council on the way the Forum worked going forward,
both in terms of increasing the representation of Town and Parish Councils and for it
to be a public meeting.

It was noted that the Council was increasing communication with Town and Parish
Councils through the monthly intheboro electronic magazine and the Borough/Parish
Liaison meeting.

Executive Cabinet 1

Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 october 2012



12.EC.151

Agenda Page 110 Agenda ltem 7

Decision made
To delay the review the 3 Tier Forum for six months.

Reason(s) for decision
As there have only been three meetings of the Forum.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

CONSULTATION - PARKS AND OPEN SPACES MEMORIAL POLICY

The Executive Member (People) presented a report which highlighted the variety of
requests for memorials that were received by the Council and enclosed a draft policy
for consultation to guide future acceptance of memorial items across the Council’s
parks and open spaces.

Members noted the sensitive nature of the policy, but agreed that the policy was
needed to clarify the Council’s position regarding memorials and to provide officers
with an approved mechanism for accepting / refusing requests, and to manage
ongoing memorial maintenance. It was important that the policy had flexibility to deal
with exceptional circumstances.

Members discussed the key stake holders who would be consulted. Members would
contact Councillor Murray with the details of any organisations who might wish to
submit a consultation response. Any people who had submitted a request for a
memorial would also have the opportunity to submit a consultation response.

Decision made

To circulate the draft policy to key stakeholders for consultation, subject to the
inclusion of the following at the end of paragraph 5 of the draft policy “If they
are vandalised or require replacement, the donors will be asked if they wish to
replace the bench”.

Reason(s) for decision
To clarify the Council’s position regarding memorials and to provide officers with an
approved mechanism for accepting / refusing requests, and to manage ongoing
memorial maintenance.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

1. Continue to consider requests for memorial items on an ad-hoc basis. A
shortage of remaining space and the suitability of some requests would make
this option unsustainable.

2. No longer accepting any form of memorial requests for any of our sites - an
unnecessary measure.

12.EC.152 WEST LANCASHIRE LOCAL PLAN (PUBLICATION) AND DRAFT

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE DUTY TO COOPERATE

The Executive Leader presented a report which sought approval to support the West
Lancashire Local Plan and draft Statement of Compliance with the Duty to Cooperate.

The document provided robust evidence as to how West Lancashire Borough Council
had successfully cooperated and worked with neighbouring authorities and other
organisations in the preparation of their Local Plan in relation to issues with potential
cross — boundary impacts.

Executive Cabinet 2
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 october 2012



Agenda Page 111 Agenda ltem 7

The report sought approval for the Executive Member (LDF and Planning) to respond
on the Council’s behalf to future consultations to Local Plans and compliance with the
Duty to Cooperate from neighbouring local authorities.

Members noted that the Duty to Cooperate was a requirement of planning regulations
and would need to be prepared to catalogue the evidence of the wide range of
collaborative work with neighbouring authorities and other bodies that Council’s had
undertaken in preparing their Local Plan.

Decision made

1.  Approval granted to support the West Lancashire Local Plan and Draft
Statement of Compliance with the Duty to Cooperate.

2.  Approval granted to the delegation of powers to the Executive Member for
LDF and Planning to respond on the Council’s behalf to future
consultations to Local Plans and compliance with the Duty to Cooperate
from neighbouring local authorities where the response is to support the
proposed Local Plan. Where the proposed response to any such
consultation was to oppose the draft Local Plan this would be brought
back to Executive Cabinet for consideration.

Reason(s) for decision
To accord with planning legislation on the soundness of a Local Plan and the Duty to
Cooperate.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.153 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - To exclude the press and public for the following item of business
on the ground that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

12.EC.154 GARAGE SITES CHORLEY

The Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources, Policy and
Performance) presented a report which outlined the disposal of four pieces of council
owned land to Adactus Housing Group Ltd for the construction and letting of
Affordable rented housing.

Members noted that further work was ongoing in this area and another report would
be brought to Executive Cabinet in the future. The transfer of land was subject to
planning permission.

Decision made

1.  Approval granted to the transfer of the sites on the terms agreed and
detailed in the report.

2. Support given to the Social Housing Grant (SHG) awarded to Adactus
Housing Group by the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), by
approving the transfer of each site at nil value which was below the
market value of the individual sites

3. Authorisation granted to Liberata Property Services, in conjunction with
the Head of Governance, to proceed with the termination of the garage
agreements on the sites and note the loss of annual income in the region
of £4,804.80 per annum.

4.  Authorisation granted to the Head of Governance to complete a formal
deed of variation with the tenant of a piece of land and note the loss of
annual income in the region of £125 per annum.

Executive Cabinet 3
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 october 2012



Agenda Page 112 Agenda ltem 7

Reason(s) for decision

The transfer of the sites will result in the construction of 15 new Affordable rented
residential properties to be advertised and let through the Select Move choice based
lettings system.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

If the sites were not transferred to Adactus Housing Group, they would be in breach of
their contract with the Homes and Community Agency, and they would have to search
for alternative sites, which might not provide as well in terms of location and timescale.

12.EC.155 POLICY AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources, Policy and
Performance) presented a report which sought approval for changes to the structure
and budget of the Policy and Communications service.

These changes would provide savings and drive a change in the focus of the service,
to work on identified priority projects that support greater community engagement.

Decision made

1. Approval granted for consultation on the new structure (Appendix B), and
responsibility for the final approval of the structure following consultation
and approval granted to the delegation of powers to the Executive
Member for Resources, Policy and Performance.

2. Approval granted to the changes to the budget for implementation in
2013/2014.

Reason(s) for decision
To facilitate the effective functioning of the service, and to secure efficiency savings.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

To not undertake the changes. This was rejected as it would not support the priority of
delivering excellent value for money, or the objectives of the medium term financial
strategy.

12.EC.156 CHANGES TO STRUCTURE FOR THE TOWN CENTRE AND MARKETS

The Executive Member (Homes and Business) presented a report which sought
approval to consult on a new staffing structure for the Chorley Markets team.

The proposed structure was designed to enable the better delivery of markets and
town centre services due to increased operational scope, future service improvements
and additional projects.

A number of changes including the creation of a new post and revised working
patterns had been included.

Decision made

1. Approval granted for consultation on the new structure (Appendix B).

2.  Approval granted that following consultation, subject to only minor
alterations, the final decision to implement the proposals be delegated to
the Executive Member for Homes and Business supported by the HR
team.

Reason(s) for decision
To support the delivery and implementation of the Market Operational Review which
began early 2012 to ensure the service is fit for the future.

Executive Cabinet 4
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 october 2012



Agenda Page 113 Agenda ltem 7

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
1. To continue as we are.

a, Rejected - the service has no flexibility in capacity for future market service
improvements or additional projects.

2. To employ an additional position of ‘Markets and Town Centre Coordinator’ and
‘Market and Event Team Leader’ whilst deleting the ‘Markets Coordinator’ post
and leaving all other ‘Market Officer’ posts as existing.

a, Rejected — this would lead to additional staffing costs and the
Market Officer posts would remain inflexible in regards to working
availability and providing toilet cover.

Executive Leader

Executive Cabinet 5
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 18 october 2012



Agenda Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 115 Agenda ltem 7

Executive Cabinet

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 22 November 2012

Present: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Executive Leader in the Chair), Councillor Peter Wilson
(Deputy Leader of the Council) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Terry Brown, Dennis Edgerley
and Adrian Lowe

Also in attendance

Lead Members: Councillors Julia Berry

Other Members: Councillors Henry Caunce, John Dalton, David Dickinson, Anthony Gee,
Harold Heaton, Steve Holgate, Keith Iddon, Kevin Joyce, Hasina Khan, Paul Leadbetter,
June Molyneaux, Greg Morgan, Mick Muncaster and John Walker

Officers: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Partnerships, Planning and
Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places), Chris Moister (Head of Governance),
Simon Clark (Head of Health, Environment & Neighbourhoods), Chris Sinnott (Head of Policy and
Communications), Asim Khan (Head of Customer, ICT and Transactional Services),
Andrew Daniels (Communications Manager) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member
Services Officer)

Members of the public: One

12.EC.157 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence were submitted.
12.EC.158 MINUTES

RESOLVED - The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 18
October 2012 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Executive
Leader.

12.EC.159 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
No Members declared an interest in respect of items on the agenda.
12.EC.160 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The Executive Leader reported that there had been a request from one member of the
public to speak the agenda item relating to the trial re-opening of Market Street and
new parking layout for St George’s Street.

The question was read out by Peter Loughlin and the detail is set out below.

Could you please confirm that all surveys will be carried out before and after the re-
opening of Market Street (if it goes ahead) so that a fair comparison can be obtained;
and that the full details of all such surveys will be fully available to the public?

12.EC.161 TRIAL RE-OPENING OF MARKET ST AND NEW PARKING LAYOUT FOR ST
GEORGE'S STREET

The Chair brought this item forward on the agenda as it related to the question raised
by the member of the public.

The Executive Member (Homes and Business) updated Members on proposals for the
trial re-opening of Market Street and new parking layout for St George’s Street. The
report summarised the main points from the consultation process and sought approval
to progress the schemes through to delivery.

Executive Cabinet 1

Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 116 Agenda ltem 7

The plans for re-opening Market Street had been prepared with the full involvement of
highways practitioners at both Pendle Borough Council and Lancashire County
Council. The proposal addressed the highway’s requirements of Lancashire County
Council, as the Highway Authority. With the use of signage, raised table crossings,
bollards and planters (to restrict the carriageway width) traffic speeds would be at a
minimum.

There would be periodic monitoring and evaluation with qualitative feedback from
town centre stakeholders (pre-scheme scenarios would be drawn from consultation),
and quantative analysis of footfall surveys (from current footfall count practice),
pedestrian and vehicle flows (at Park Road, Junction of St George’s St/Market St and
other routes into Market St (namely St Thomas’s Road)) and parking usage (from
current monitoring of car park usage). There would also be monitoring of pedestrian
and vehicle flows for pre and post scheme analysis.

Monitoring and evaluation would be made fully available to the public, including
pollution monitoring which would be undertaken in a similar fashion.

It was clarified that there had been extensive consultation undertaken, including the
Council’'s Equality Forum and Shop Mobility to ensure that there was provision for
wheel chair users. Once the work had been undertaken feedback from members of
the public would also be monitored and the details of this were under consideration. It
was noted that the consultation had been targeted and extensive. The Citizens Panel
had been replaced by a Citizens Jury, and due to the targeted and extensive nature of
the consultation the Citizens Jury had not been consulted about the proposals.

It was hoped that the area would be safer going forward than it was currently as cars
currently weren’t monitored, road safety was of paramount importance for this
scheme.

Decision made

1. Approval granted to the proposals for the trial reopening of Market Street
and new parking layout for St George’s Street to be progressed through to
delivery as outlined in paragraphs 14, 15, 17 and 18 of the report, with
approval of any scheme amendments being delegated to the Executive
Member for Homes and Business.

2. The reversal of a decision in relation to the St George’s Street
Management Proposal in relation to an aspiration to reduce the impact of
cars in the Conservation Area be noted.

Reason(s) for decision

These schemes will help to revitalise the top end of Market Street and Chorley Town
Centre, provide additional parking which in turn will attract more shoppers and boost
trade in the area.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.162 REFRESH OF CHORLEY'S ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and
Governance) presented a report which updated Members on the refresh of Chorley’s
Economic Development Strategy, summarised the main changes and sought adoption
of the Strategy.

It was noted that the strategy would be updated to include the installation of rural
broadband.

Executive Cabinet 2
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 117 Agenda ltem 7

In response to a query the Executive Leader advised that one of the motivations
behind the Strategy was to encourage independent businesses and to expand the
offer of shops. There were a lot of potential visitors who lived within half an hour and
Chorley needed to attract these people. The wording of the Strategy regarding
competition would be reworded to reflect this.

To monitor the progress in delivering against the priority areas, key long term
outcomes and measures had been identified, which would be reported on an annual
basis, at the same time as refreshing the strategy and actions. The base level for the
measures would be set shortly and would take into account the kind of measures that
businesses within Chorley would find useful.

Decision made

1. Approval granted to adopt the refreshed Economic Development Strategy
(contained in Appendix A of the report).

2. Delegated powers granted to the Executive Leader to make minor
amendments to the Strategy.

Reason(s) for decision
The refreshed Strategy will ensure that our priorities and actions are clearly aligned to
current issues and strengths facing the borough.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.163 98-102 MARKET STREET - FORMER MCDONALDS SITE: PROPOSED
REFURBISHMENT WORKS

The Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and
Governance) updated Members on the purchase of and proposals for the future use
and occupation of the former McDonalds site.

One of the key factors within the proposal was to retain influence over the type of
shops within the town. The development would be of an arcade style and the design
of this would be considered carefully. The development of a car park would give the
Council’s options, both in terms of a potential commercial partner in the operation that
car park and potential to use current Council car parks for other purposes.

Members noted that the site would form a key part of the Town Centre Master Plan. A
further report would be presented to Executive Cabinet with firm proposals for the
redevelopment of the buildings and car park in the New Year.

Decision made

1. That the report be noted.

2.  Agreement granted, in principle, to refurbish 100-102 Market Street for
retail units, to the demolition of 98 Market Street and the creation of a car
park in the area between the Fleet Street Car Park and Gillibrand Street.

Reason(s) for decision

Market Street is a link between the two retail centres, Market Walk/ Market/ Booths
and the proposed Asda development. On this basis retail is the better option for this
site. The need in Chorley is for smaller retail sites rather than larger stores and it is
appropriate to split the site into smaller units. The creation of the arcade provides a
direct access to the car park behind and means a more attractive shop frontage.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

1. Create 2 retail units one at 100 Market Street and the other at 102 Market Street.
Although a cheaper alternative to the recommendation there is not the need for a
large retail unit in this location and there is concern over its subsequent letting.

Executive Cabinet 3
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 118 Agenda ltem 7

2. Demolish the whole site and rebuild purpose built units. The existing units at 100
and 102 Market Street, are sound, and whilst they require some works the
recommendation proposed is more cost effective.

12.EC.164 REFRESH OF THE KEY PARTNERSHIPS FRAMEWORK

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented the
updated key partnerships framework for approval.

The Council’s key partnerships framework had been approved in 2007 in response to
Audit Commission feedback. The framework identified the extent of the Council’s key
partnerships and put in place effective governance controls and monitoring
arrangements to ensure the success of the partnerships and the achievement of the
Council’s priorities.

Responsibility for the key partnerships framework and its monitoring transferred from
Procurement to Policy and Communications in late 2011 as part of the review of
shared financial services. This was in order to free up some capacity in the
procurement team and strengthen the performance and equality monitoring, while also
reducing the duplication in reporting. The review of the framework had included an
update to the list of key partnerships.

Decision made
Approval granted to the updated key partnerships framework.

Reason(s) for decision

To ensure that the Council has an up to date and robust framework in place to support
the effective governance and monitoring arrangements of the Council's key
partnerships.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.165 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 REPORT 2 (END OF SEPTEMBER
2012)

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which set out the current financial position of the Council as compared against the
budgets and efficiency savings targets it set itself for the financial year 2012/13.

The Council had expected to make overall target savings of £200,000 in 2012/13

from management of the establishment and the full savings target for 2012/13 had
been achieved. The projected outturn currently showed a forecast underspend of

around £ 312,000.

The Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy proposed that working balances were
to be no lower than £2.0m due to the financial risks facing the Council. The current
forecast to the end of September showed that the General Fund balance would be
around £2.334m. This put the Council in a strong position and should help to

mitigate against future risks associated with the Local Business Rates Retention
scheme from April 2013.

Members noted that projects to improve Chorley Town Centre, to be funded from the
£ 300,000 reserve created for that purpose, had commenced.

Executive Cabinet 4
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 119 Agenda ltem 7

Decision made
The report be noted

Reason(s) for decision
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.166 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2012/13 - 2014/15

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which requested an update to the Capital Programmes for financial years 2012/13 to
2014/15 to take account of proposed budget changes and the rephasing of
expenditure to 2013/14. The report gave details of the budgeted receipt and use of
contributions from developers for the period 2012/13 to 2014/15.

Members discussed that Network Rail had moved closer to finalising payments for
Buckshaw Parkway Station, which would be financed with the Section 106
contribution held by this council. It was likely that the 2012/13 budget for the project
should be available to provide enhancements to the station, but expenditure would not
be committed until the construction contract was finalised. This could mean that some
budget provision would have to be rephased to 2013/14 later in the year if
improvements could not be implemented during 2012/13.

Decision made

1. That Council be recommended to approve the proposed amendments to
the Capital Programmes for 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15, as presented in
columns (3), (7) and (10) of Appendix 1.

2. That Council be recommended to approve the rephasing of capital
budgets between 2012/13 and 2013/14, as presented in columns (2) and (6)
of Appendix 1.

Reason(s) for decision

1.  The 2012/13 to 2014/15 Capital Programme should be increased to include
budget provision for refuse and recycling bins that reflects increased costs and
meets demand for new and replacement bins.

2. A home repair grant is repayable, and the usual practice is to top up the Housing
Renewal budget with the repaid grant. The cash has not yet been received so
expenditure should not be committed until it is.

3. Two small sums should be transferred to the revenue budget to cover minor
repairs to the Town Hall (£2,030); and minor improvements to the Covered
Market (£7,110). These relate to existing capital projects, but this particular
expenditure should not be capitalised.

4. The likelihood of completing the Chorley East Health Centre during 2012/13 has
reduced because agreement has not yet been reached with the NHS. Three
small Streetscene schemes cannot be completed over the winter so budget
provision should be rephased.

5. Improvements to fire doors at Cotswold House are required on health and safety
grounds.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

Executive Cabinet 5
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 120 Agenda ltem 7

12.EC.167 CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE MONITORING - SECOND
QUARTER 2012/13

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance updated the meeting
on the performance of the Chorley Partnership during the second quarter of
2012/2013, from 1 July to 30 September 2012.

Performance of the Chorley Partnership in achieving the key performance targets
remained good, with latest figures available for alcohol related hospital admissions
showing a year to date reduction of 11% at quarter four 2011/12 compared to quarter
four 2010/11. Figures for primary fires in Chorley were lower than anticipated.

Crime overall had increased by 6.7% in quarter one and two compared to the same
period last year, although there had however been a significant decrease in anti-social
behaviour, and domestic abuse detections was performing above target.

Overall performance on the key projects / priorities in the Chorley Partnership delivery
plan was good, with 74% rated green or completed.

Members noted that discussions were ongoing with the Police regarding the crime
figures. When the percentages were so low a slight change could have a distorted
effect on the figures.

Decision made
That the report be noted.

Reason(s) for decision
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Chorley Partnership’s
performance and delivery of funded projects.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.168 CHORLEY COUNCIL PERFORMANCE MONITORING - SECOND QUARTER
2012/13

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance outlined the
performance against the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and key performance
indicators during the second quarter of 2012/13, 1 July to 30 September 2012.

Overall performance of key projects remained excellent, with a majority of the projects
on track or completed. Only two projects were rated ‘amber, ‘explore the
development of a service package for accommodation for 16/17 year olds’, and
‘Implement the framework for strategic partnerships’. Explanation of the reasons and
the actions being taken to bring the projects back on track was provided within the
report.

Following the refresh of the Corporate Strategy, the report provided a progress update
on all projects which have not yet been completed and identified those that would be
managed and monitored through service improvement plans from now on. The report
included details of the one project that had been carried over into the new corporate
strategy; to implement the customer services migration plan.

Decision made
That the report be noted.

Executive Cabinet 6
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 121 Agenda ltem 7

Reason(s) for decision
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.169 REVIEW OF NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING

The Executive Member (Places) advised Members of the outcome of a review into
neighbourhood working. The report requested approval to develop and improve
service delivery and community engagement at a neighbourhood level.

The current neighbourhood working model had evolved since its launch in 2008.
There were seven neighbourhood areas and each area had a Ward Member meeting
twice a year which discussed issues arising in the particular area and received
retrospective reports on neighbourhood activities delivered by Council and partner
services.

This review provided an opportunity to revise the delivery of neighbourhood working in
Chorley and Members discussed and welcomed the proposed arrangements,
particularly the redrawn boundaries and extended membership. The Parish
representative should not be the clerk, or someone who was not also a Borough
Councillor. There was potential for areas, like the town centre and Buckshaw Village
for a representative from the community to be involved.

Parishes would receive details of the new arrangements shortly and be invited to
submit their Parish Plans to form part of the information basis for the Neighbourhood
work plans. The proposals had been discussed at the Borough Parish Liaison
meeting the previous evening and had been well received.

Decision made

1. The definition of neighbourhood working approved as “Working with our
partners to improve the quality of life, health and wellbeing of all our
citizens and to improve the environment of the neighbourhoods in which
they live”.

2.  Approval granted to the redrawn boundaries of the neighbourhood areas,
increasing the number of areas from seven to eight as described in
paragraph 29 and Appendix 1 of the report.

3. Approval to the level of representation at the twice yearly round of
neighbourhood area meetings to include County Council Member
representation and Parish Council Member representation in accordance
with the Table 1 within the report.

4. Approval granted to the process described in paragraph 35 outlining the
establishment of annual neighbourhood work plans.

5. The business as usual activities undertaken as part of neighbourhood
working come from a number of service teams baseline budgets but that
work or services provided over and above will need to be provided
through a separate budget yet to be agreed with a means for Members to
access it be noted.

6. The resource implications arising out of this review be noted.

Reason(s) for decision
To ensure the neighbourhood working model continues to develop and meets the
needs of Members and the communities they serve.

Executive Cabinet 7
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 122 Agenda ltem 7

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

The option to retain the current neighbourhood working model and framework was
considered but it is appropriate to develop and adapt neighbourhood working as
described in this report.

12.EC.170 LANCASHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE - MEMORANDUM OF

12.EC.171

UNDERSTANDING RELATING TO ENFORCEMENT WORK

The Executive Member (Places) presented a report which sought authorisation for the
sign up to two Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) between Lancashire Fire and
Rescue Service and the Councils housing standards and workplace health and safety
enforcement function.

The Councils workplace health and safety enforcement and housing standards
enforcement teams had been approached by Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service to
sign up to two Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) between the two organisations.
These related to the Councils enforcement work in these areas.

The MoU’s sought to formalise an unwritten arrangement that had existed between
the two organisations so that there was clarity in terms of where responsibility lay in
relation to both enforcement of fire safety provision in domestic dwellings and
enforcement of electrical safety in workplaces that fell within Chorley Council’'s
enforcement responsibility.

Decision made

1. Acceptance of the terms of the Electrical Safety in Workplaces
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) and authorisation for the Director
of People and Places to sign.

2.  Acceptance of the terms of the Housing Standards Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) and authorisation for the Director of People and
Places to sign.

Reason(s) for decision

To ensure that partnership working in the areas of housing fire safety enforcement
and electrical safety in work places enforcement is effectively coordinated and the
roles and responsibilities of both organisations are fully understood.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

An alternative option would be not to sign up to the MoU’s and continue with the
informal arrangement between the organisations in determining enforcement
responsibility and the agency best place to take action.

LOW COST HOME OWNERSHIP (LCHO) SCHEMES - POLICY AMENDMENT
TO ALLOW OWNERS TO RENT OUT THE PROPERTY ON A TEMPORARY
BASIS

The Executive Member for Homes and Business presented a report requesting
approval to allow owners of LCHO properties to be able to rent out the property with
certain conditions attached.

There were currently 11 LCHO schemes in the borough representing 120 properties.
The option of deed of release i.e. the owner was able to buy out the discount was
available on 2 of the 11 schemes. Currently, there was no option for the owner to rent
out the property on any of the 11 schemes.

Due to market conditions some owners were having difficulty selling their property and
were asking if the Council would be willing to change the policy rules to allow them
flexibility to either buy out of the scheme or rent out the property.

Executive Cabinet 8
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 123 Agenda ltem 7

In reality it is unlikely that many owners would be able to afford to buy out the discount
but a number would be able to rent out the property which would ease their hardship.

Members noted that the recommendations would enable properties to be rented out at
affordable rates rather than being empty. It was not anticipated that there would be a
great demand for this. Each case would be determined on its own merits and the
policy would be kept under close review.

Decision made

Delegated authority granted to the Executive Member for Homes and Business
to consider each application on its merits to allow LCHO owners to rent out
their property at an ‘affordable’ rent until either their personal circumstances
change to allow them to return to the property to take up residence or until
market conditions improve and they are able to sell the property. If approved
LCHO owners renting out their home would need to meet the conditions listed
in section 8 of the report.

Reason(s) for decision
To give owners of LCHO properties the option to rent out the property with the
intention of easing hardship until market conditions improve.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

1. Retain the status quo, this option has been rejected because of the level of
dissatisfaction with the terms of the scheme and the difficulties owners are
having selling their home.

2. Allow owners to be able to buy out the discount on their home and sell the
property at a future date without any price restriction i.e. at open market value
.The Council would reinvest the proceeds from the buyout in affordable housing
elsewhere in the borough. This option has been rejected because it is unlikely
that any LCHO owners will be in a position to buy out the remaining equity in the
property.

3. The option of renting out the property will allow LCHO owners to obtain some
income to be able to continue to pay the mortgage and move elsewhere for
reasons of employment or because of a change in their circumstances.

12.EC.172 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - To exclude the press and public for the following item of business
on the ground that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.

12.EC.173 KEY PARTNERSHIPS MONITORING REPORT

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which updated Members on the progress on the performance of the Council’s key
partnership arrangements.

The key partnerships performance report was produced in accordance with the
requirements of the Council’s key partnerships framework. It informed Members of
the performance of the Council’s key partnerships against targets set for the current
year, any emerging issues including whether the contract was on budget or subject to
any overspend or underspend of budget. It also provided an assessment of the key
partner’s financial strength and stability.

Overall performance of all of the key partnerships was good and the financial
assessments of the partnerships were positive with the financial standing of all key
partnerships either remaining the same or improving.

Executive Cabinet 9
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 124 Agenda ltem 7

Decision made
That the report be noted.

Reason(s) for decision
To keep members updated on the performance of key partnerships and to ensure
effective governance arrangements are in place.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.174 EXTERNAL MAIL HANDLING - CREATING A VIRTUAL POSTROOM

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance advised Members of
proposed changes to the way the council handles external mail requirements, as part
of a wider programme of business transformation. The report advised Members of the
current costs associated with external mail handling and postage and suggested
various options and recommendations on how these could be reduced.

Decision made

1. Support granted for the drive to streamline mail handling through a
phased introduction of a hybrid mail solution across the council. Mail
received and sent by the Council would therefore be dealt with by external
suppliers.

2. Support and approval granted to the suggested changes for the
circulation of agenda papers to be distributed electronically and paper
copies available only at meetings. This would be supported by a review of
the technology used by Members in 2013.

3. Agreement that steps be taken internally to stop mail being sent by first
class post unless there were exceptional circumstances (to include mail
sent to Members) such as time related constraints or legal requirements.
However effective planning of mail despatch could help with the
management of this.

4. Support granted for the drive to reduce costs by increasing the level of
electronic applications for services through the provision of the new
website and intranet.

5. To note that where appropriate the Council would partner with existing
suppliers i.e. for the provision of rail cards where this would not
disadvantage the customer and reduces costs. Service improvements
would continue to be supported by a variety of existing access channels
such as by phone or in person for advice and support through the
Councils Customer Service Centre.

6. To note the efficiency savings that would be achieved through the
reduction in internal staff resource deployed to deal with mail and also the
copying equipment used to produce it.

Reason(s) for decision

1.  To enable the council to secure a better value mail handling solution to help drive
efficiency savings.

2. To help support the plans for reducing staffing numbers through the
organisational review.

3. To reduce the current cost of first class mail and other associated postage costs.

4. To help achieve our aspirations to create a virtual post environment within the
council.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

The current arrangements could be maintained but that would impact on the level of
efficiency savings attainable through the proposed organisational structure and would
mean the current unacceptable cost of external mail postage and associated costs
would also remain.

Executive Cabinet 10
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 125 Agenda ltem 7

12.EC.175 TRANSACTIONAL SERVICES REVIEW

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which advised that the drivers for the proposals outlined were to achieve the Council’s
strategic ambition to migrate services in to the front office, increasing flexibility,
productivity and customer satisfaction whilst reducing back office costs.

Decision made

To approve the new structure set out at Appendix’s C and D for consultation,
and grant delegated powers for the final approval of the structure following
consultation to the Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance.

Reason(s) for decision

To enable back office support to be realigned in the front office, therefore reducing
back office costs and increasing performance of the front office to deal with customer
requests efficiently and effectively.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

Executive Leader

Executive Cabinet 11
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 22 November 2012



Agenda Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 127 Agenda ltem 7

Executive Cabinet

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 13 December 2012

Present: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Executive Leader in the Chair) and Councillors Terry Brown,
Dennis Edgerley and Adrian Lowe

Also in attendance

Lead Members: Councillors Julia Berry and Danny Gee

Other Members: Councillors Eric Bell, John Dalton, David Dickinson, Harold Heaton,
June Molyneaux, Mick Muncaster and John Walker

Officers: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Partnerships, Planning and
Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places), Chris Moister (Head of Governance),
Simon Clark (Head of Health, Environment & Neighbourhoods), Chris Sinnott (Head of Policy and
Communications), Andrew Daniels (Communications Manager), Lorraine Mcintyre (Team Leader
(Supported) Housing Options) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services Officer)
Members of the public: None.

12.EC.176 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Bev Murray and Peter
Wilson.

12.EC.177 MINUTES

RESOLVED - The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 22
November 2012 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Executive
Leader.

12.EC.178 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
No Members declared an interest in respect of items on the agenda.
12.EC.179 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The Executive Leader reported that there had been no requests from members of the
public to speak on any of the meeting’s agenda items.

12.EC.180 BUSINESS RATES RETENTION

The Executive Leader presented a report which updated Members on the new
Business Rates Retention funding regime which would form a significant part of the
Council’'s core funding total with effect from 1 April 2013. The changes were the main
reason why the Local Government Finance Settlement would only be received just
before Christmas.

This was another fundamental change to the way Local Authorities received one of
their main funding streams. It would have a significant impact on the Council’s budget
and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) going forward. The two key issues for
Members to be aware of were the potential to significantly alter the monetary value of
this major source of income, and that this transformed the Council’s role in the
collection process in terms of managing the local business tax base.

Currently all Business Rates in Chorley were collected by the Council and passed to
Central Government who distributed it back out across the public sector via the Local
Government Finance Settlement and a complex funding formulae, but would also
have to pay a tariff to the Government if it thought the Council was retaining more than

Executive Cabinet 1

Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



12.EC.181

Agenda Page 128 Agenda ltem 7

it needed. The new regime meant that the Council retained 50% of the income locally
and distributed it to Lancashire County (18%) and Lancashire Fire Authority (2%).
The remaining 50% would be paid to Central Government. In effect it transferred the
risk of collection from Central Government to the local area.

The rationale for changing the current system was to incentivise councils to grow their
business community, although the impact of decline was greater than the financial
‘rewards’ for growth. A tax base which remained the same was likely to also result in
a reduction in funding and the level of tax base growth required to increase actual
income would be substantial.

There would be a mechanism to provide additional income to local authorities who
were adversely affected by the new regime by means of a safety net payment to top
up the funding total. This only applied if there was a reduction of more than 7.5%
which would be a significant amount.

It was positive for the Council that there was not one main employer, but a variety of
employers within the Borough as this reduced the risk.

Decision made
The report be noted.

Reason(s) for decision

This change is fundamental to the way Local Authorities are funded and will have a
significant impact on the council’s core funding, budget and Medium Term Financial
Strategy.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
No alternative options have been considered.

HEALTHY CITIES (TOWNS) NETWORK APPLICATION

The Executive Leader introduced a report which sought approval to proceed with an
application to join the Healthy Cities Network with Chorley Council area being
recognised as a Healthy Town.

The aims of the network were to enhance learning and build capacity through sharing
ideas, experience, best practice and widen participation of the Healthy Cities
movement, also to support member towns to develop and test innovative approaches
to emerging public health issues. In addition, the network aimed to become a strong
collective voice for health, wellbeing, equity and sustainable development and to
inform and influence local, regional, national and European policy on health matters.

Joining the Healthy Cities network would provide the Council with several benefits,
including the opportunity to learn from others who might be ahead in implementing key
policies that promote health and wellbeing and address inequalities and access to
assistance at a World Health Organisation (WHO)/European level for policy
development. The Council would also have access to toolkits and briefings on health
issues which would help develop skills and capacity to address health inequalities and
potential collaborative working opportunities with other towns and cities.

Membership of the network could be reviewed after a period of time. It was
predominantly larger authorities that were joining the network, but there was a wish to
embed health and well-being into all aspects of Council services.

Decision made

1. Endorsement of the Zagreb Declaration for Healthy Cities.

2. Approval for an application to the Healthy City Network to be made for the
reasons outlined in the report.

Executive Cabinet 2
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 129 Agenda ltem 7

Reason(s) for decision

1. To seek recognition of the work being undertaken by the Council and its partners
to deliver services with health and wellbeing as an integral part and to seek to
address the health inequalities that exist amongst Chorley citizens.

2. To access a wider network of Healthy Towns and Cities to gain knowledge and
share best practice.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.182 OPEN SPACE AND PLAYING PITCH SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING
DOCUMENT

The Executive Member (LDF and Planning) presented the draft Open Space and
Playing Pitch Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for endorsement.

Five Supplementary Planning Documents had already been adopted in October for
affordable housing, design, the re-use of employment premises, rural development
and access to healthy food.

The guidance in the document expanded on Policies which set out the minimum
provision standards for different typologies of open space and playing pitches. The
figures were based on the current standard and the aim was to maintain this standard.
There was a wide variation between the three authorities covered by the document
(Chorley, South Ribble and Preston).

The financial contributions for new provision/ improvements were noted as being in
addition to the CIL charges and would be secured through section 106 agreements.

Decision made

1. Endorsement of the draft Open Space and Playing Pitch Supplementary
Planning Document, as detailed in Appendix 1, and approval of the
document for consultation.

2. Delegated authority be granted to the Executive Member for LDF and
Planning to approve minor changes and amendments prior to the
consultation.

Reason(s) for decision

To ensure that further guidance is produced to supplement and provide advice on how
the open space and playing pitch policies as set out in the Core Strategy and Chorley
Local Plan are to be implemented.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

12.EC.183 ADOPTION OF CHORLEY COUNCIL'S TENANCY STRATEGY

The Executive Member (Homes and Business) presented the results of the
consultation exercise on the draft Tenancy Strategy which had been considered by
Executive Cabinet on 21 June and sought adoption of the revised Tenancy Strategy.

The Localism Act 2011 required each Local Authority to publish a Tenancy Strategy.
Registered Providers of social housing must have regard to the strategy when
developing their tenancy policies, but were not bound by it.

The report set out the principles of the Strategy and the Council’s expectations which
sought to minimise any negative impact on affordability and homelessness in the

Executive Cabinet 3
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 130 Agenda ltem 7

borough by making clear the Council’s position with regard to the tenure of Affordable
rent.

The consultation period ran for six weeks and all Registered Providers with stock in
Chorley were invited to comment, with comments received from Adactus/CCH, Places
for People and New Progress. The agreed strategy would be issued to each
Registered Provider and those who commented would be advised as to if and how the
strategy had been amended.

It was anticipated that around 900 hundred properties, under the control of Registered
Providers, were unoccupied. A meeting has been held earlier in the day to work with
Registered Providers to reduce this number.

It was suggested that a briefing note on the Tenancy Strategy be circulated to all
Members via intheknow.

Decision made
Approval of the attached Tenancy Strategy.

Reason(s) for decision

It is important that the Tenancy Strategy is adopted in a timely manner in order to
comply with legislation and to influence and inform the tenancy policies being
developed by Registered Providers.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to publish a Tenancy Strategy
consequently no other options were considered.

12.EC.184 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - To exclude the press and public for the following items of
business on the ground that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.

12.EC.185 APPROVAL FOR CONTRACT AWARD FOR DUXBURY PARK ACCESS ROAD

The Executive Leader introduced a report which sought approval to award the
contract for the resurfacing of the Duxbury Park access road.

Work on the access road would start in February 2013. The contractor would liaise
with the golf course operators and tenants of Duxbury farmhouse to minimise
disruption.

Decision made
Approval of the award of the contract for resurfacing the road to Lancashire
County Council.

Reason(s) for decision
Under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules approval of contract award is required

from Executive Cabinet for tenders greater than £ 75,000 in value.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
To not follow the agreed contract award procedure would be in breach of the Council’s
Procurement rules.

Executive Cabinet 4
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 131 Agenda ltem 7

12.EC.186 UPDATE ON THE INDOOR LEISURE CONTRACT

The Executive Leader presented a report which provided an update on the
performance of the indoor leisure contract and the savings negotiated for the duration
of the contract. The report also informed Members of the changes to the existing
contract which would be captured in the contract variation.

Active Nation were in year seven of a 15 year contract with the Council to manage the
Council’s indoor leisure facilities. The contract performance to date had been good
and by working in partnership, the Council and Active Nation had identified a number
of potential areas for savings whilst maintaining high service standards. The Council
had an “open book accounting” arrangement with Active Nation.

Decision made

1. The good performance of the indoor leisure contract to date be noted.

2.  Approval of the savings negotiated so far with Active Nation and the
agreed changes to be incorporated into the contract variation.

Reason(s) for decision

To ensure the current indoor leisure contract continues to provide high service
standards to users of the facilities, continues to encourage participation in sport and
leisure and offers good value for money.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
Other options such as reducing the opening hours of the leisure centres were
considered but these will impact on current service standards.

12.EC.187 UPDATE ON THE WASTE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Executive Member (Places) introduced a report which provided an update on the
performance of the waste contract and the savings negotiated for the duration of the
contract. The report also advised that some of the savings identified were subject to
extending the existing waste management collection contract by another two years.

Veolia Environmental Services were in year four of a ten year contract with the
Council to provide a waste collection service to households. The contract
performance to date had been good and by working in partnership the Council and
Veolia had identified a number of savings.

There have been no deductions for poor performance over the past 12 months as
99.9% of collections had taken place on the right day based on reports of missed bins.

Decision made

1. The good performance of the waste contract be noted and approval of the
savings negotiated so far with Veolia.

2. Authorisation for officers to start negotiations on extending the existing
waste management collection contract by another two years in order to
realise some of these savings.

Reason(s) for decision
To ensure the current waste contract continues to provide high service standards and
offers value for money.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
A number of alternative options for savings have been explored and these are detailed
in the report but were not considered viable.

Executive Cabinet 5
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 132 Agenda ltem 7

12.EC.188 PLANNING BREACH: LAND AT HEATH PADDOCK, HUT LANE, HEATH
CHARNOCK

The Executive Leader introduced a report which outlined the progress and
expenditure made to date with instigating legal proceedings relating to the land at Hut
Lane, Heath Charnock (known as Heath Paddock) since approval by the Development
Control Committee on 9 August 2011 to seek injunctive relief and by the Executive
Cabinet on 18 August 2011 to allocate financial resources.

Following the re-affirmation to continue enforcement action by the Development
Control Committee on 30 October 2012, the report requested endorsement and re-
affirmation the Council's budget provision and commitment to continuing with
enforcement action.

Members agreed that legal proceedings must continue due to the harm arising to the
green belt.

Decision made

1. To note the progress and expenditure to date in instigating prosecution of
the land owners for breach of the enforcement notices and for seeking
injunctive relief.

2. Re-affirmation and refer to the 8 January 2013 Council that the £115k (net
of expenditure to date) and the provision of £30k for any operational
necessity (approved by Cabinet on 18 August 2011) be set aside from
balances from the general revenue fund to cover the cost of this
enforcement action.

3. To recommend increasing the budgetary provision by a further £40k from
balances to fund a re-run of the Public Enquiry given the successful High
Court Challenge and for continuing enforcement action as detailed in this
report.

Reason(s) for decision
To continue enforcement action.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

The Council could refuse to fund the action. This was rejected on the basis that it
would have damaging reputational issues for the Council, could potentially open up
the Council to third party claims and encourage further breaches of planning control.

12.EC.189 PROCUREMENT OF THE NIGHT CARETAKING AND CONCIERGE SERVICE
AT COTSWOLD SUPPORTED HOUSING

The Executive Member (Homes and Business) presented a report which outlined the
procurement process undertaken for the concierge service at Cotswold Supported
Housing and sought approval to award the contract to the successful contractor.

A tender for the new contract had been advertised on the Councils e-procurement
portal, The Chest, in October. A number of bids had been received and a subsequent
evaluation process undertaken. A ranked list of bidders had been drawn up and a
preferred contractor identified.

Decision made

Approval of the decision to award the contract for the Night Caretaking and
Concierge Service at Cotswold Supported Housing, to the contractor who
achieved the highest scoring tender, namely Profile Security Services for the
period of 1 February 2013 to 31 January 2015.

Executive Cabinet 6
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 133 Agenda ltem 7

Reason(s) for decision
To continue to provide a high quality service and ensure the health and safety of the

customers, staff and the building is safeguarded.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None (there are no feasible alternatives).

Executive Leader

Executive Cabinet 7
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 13 December 2012



Agenda Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 135 Agenda ltem 8

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel

Monday, 17 December 2012

Present: Councillor Steve Holgate (Chair) and Julia Berry, Graham Dunn, Hasina Khan and

Kim Snape

Also in attendance

Officers: Jamie Dixon (Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts), Chris Sinnott (Head of Policy
and Communications), Victoria Willett (Partnership Officer) and Dianne Scambler (Democratic
and Member Services Officer)

12.0SP.14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Roy Lees and Terry Brown
(Executive Member for Places)

12.0SP.15 MINUTES

a)

Confirmation

That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel meeting
held on 17 September 2012 be held as a correct record for signing by the
Chair.

Matters arising from the minutes

10.0SP.10 — Business Plan Monitoring Statement — Partnerships,
Planning and Policy

Further information had been requested on the Supporting People model as
Members felt that it was difficult to hold Lancashire County Council to account
when not in possession of the full facts.

Members felt it would be useful if a report was provided that gave the
authorities position in relation to the work that they were involved in on this
issue, including the Councils policy in relation to people who present
themselves to the Council without recourse to public funds. This information
would provide a base from which to scrutinise more effectively going forward.

RESOLVED - That the Head of Housing Services present a report to a
future meeting of the Panel on the work of the authority on the
supporting people agenda.

12.0SP.13 — Transformation Directorate - Business Plan Monitoring

The Customer Satisfaction results were circulated at the meeting and were
discussed more fully further down the agenda.

Although the requested update ICT Plan was provided and circulated at the
meeting, the Panel felt that the information contained within warranted further

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
Monday, 17 becember 2012



12.0SP.16

12.0SP.17

Agenda Page 136 Agenda ltem 8

scrutiny and asked if it could be brought back as an update report to the next
meeting.

RESOLVED - That an update be provided on the progress made against
the projects in the ICT Plan for the next meeting of the Panel.

DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

No declarations of interest were received.

CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE MONITORING - SECOND
QUARTER 2012/13

The Group received a report of the Chief Executive setting out performance against
the Chorley Partnership delivery plan and key performance indicators for the second
quarter of 2012/13, 1 July to 30 September 2012.

The performance of the key projects/priorities in the delivery of the Chorley
Partnership plan was good with 74% rated either green or completed. The
performance of the key projects remained excellent, with all four projects currently
rated ‘green’.

Latest figures available for alcohol related admissions showed a year to date
reduction of 11% at quarter four 2011/12 compared to quarter four in 2010/11.
However Members asked if more detailed breakdown could be provided on the
different categories that were reported against and how our figures compared against
other authorities within Lancashire.

Crime had increased by 6.7% in quarters one and two compared to the same period
last year, there had been a significant decrease in anti-social behaviour, and domestic
abuse detections were performing above target.

Members were informed that several factors had contributed to the recent spike in
crime that included:
e a higher level of detection rates in recent months
e changes to the sentencing practice by the courts earlier in the year which had
led to alleged offenders being released with bail conditions instead of being
remanded
e adelay in the delivery of the integrated management framework
e an increase in opportunistic crimes

A number of actions had been put into place to improve on the increased figures;
however the Panel were concerned that the reasons given did not give sufficient detail
and asked how this could be achieved.

It was explained that it was the responsibility of Overview and Scrutiny Committee to
scrutinise crime and disorder related matters and that a designated meeting had been
arranged for January. The Chair requested that along with the issues already
highlighted in the work programme, the Committee scrutinise the increased crime
figures and asked that the relevant partners be invited to attend the meeting.

The Panel also thought that monitoring reports should be provided to the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on any crime and disorder reviews undertaken in the past
were specific issues had been identified and asked if an update report on the funding
of the Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) service could be brought to a
future meeting.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
Monday, 17 becember 2012



Agenda Page 137 Agenda ltem 8

RESOLVED

1. That the report be noted.

2. That a breakdown of the categories that are reported upon under the
Alcohol Related Admissions be provided at future meetings.

3. That an explanation be provided within future Chorley Partnership report
on crime related information figures.

4. That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be asked to review the
increase in the crime figures and the role of the Police and Community
Support Officers at its meeting in January.

5. That an update report be provided to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the funding of the IDVA service.

12.0SP.18 CHORLEY COUNCIL PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE MONITORING -
SECOND QUARTER 2012/13

The Chief Executive submitted a report setting our performance against the delivery of
the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the second quarter of
2012/13, 1 July to 30 September 2012.

Overall performance remained excellent, with the majority of projects on track or
completed. Only two projects were rated ‘amber and an explanation of the reasons
and action being taken to bring them back on track was provided:
e Explore the development of a service package of accommodation for 16/17
year olds
¢ Implementation of a framework for strategic partners

Following the refresh of the Corporate Strategy, the report provided the Panel with an
update on all projects which had not yet been completed and identified those that
would be managed through service improvement going forward. It was also explained
that one project, the implementation of the customer services migration plan had been
carried over into the new strategy.

Performance on the Corporate Strategy measures and key service delivery indicators
remained good with 67% of the measures and 80% of the key performance indicators
performing above target or within the 5% tolerance.

The Councils new website had been launched and had received good feedback. The
website will increase self-service functionality and encourage customers’ to transact
with the Council online. The new my account facility was still in the process of being
developed to ensure that the product was not only fit for purpose for Chorley
residents, but was a secure platform for the Council. Members thought that this was a
fantastic application for residents and asked to be kept informed on the progress of its
implementation.

The implementation of a framework for strategic partnerships had been delayed due
to dependencies on other projects such as the Transactional Services Review that
incorporated the new working arrangements for the Revenue and Benefits Service.

The development of an action plan to tackle social isolation in the borough had now
been completed and was now available on the Councils website.

Only four key service and delivery measures were performing below target:
e Percentage of 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment or
training (NEET)
o Percentage of new businesses established; and
o Percentage of customers satisfied with the way they were treated by the
Council
e Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for ‘minor’

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
Monday, 17 becember 2012



12.0SP.19

Agenda Page 138 Agenda ltem 8

In each case an action plan had been developed to outline what action needed to be
taken to improve performance.

The Panel were informed that the percentage of 16-18 years olds not in NEETS had
improved and as at 31 October 2012 the NEET figure was 5.2% young people against
a Lancashire target of 6.2% and a Chorley target of 5.1%. College enrolment figures
were now residency based which helps Chorley who has no 16-19 provision within the
borough.

The new Customer Satisfaction survey had not been particularly well answered in
terms of quantity but the Council had been able to act upon the information received.
One of the main areas for concern had been officers not getting back to people on
more detailed service issues and steps have been taken to address this.

Members felt that some elements of the Customer Care Policy needed updating and
the Head of Policy and Communications promised to look into this matter.

RESOLVED
1. That the report be noted.
2. That the Head of Policy and Communications assess what changes need
to be made to the Customer Services Policy.

SCRUTINY FOCUS -STREETSCENE MODERNISATION

The Panel received a report that provided some contextual information and initial
questions to help Members understand the performance of streetscene and it was
reported that performance against the key indicators for the service was excellent
compared to the targets set, with all being achieved.

The service had recently undertaken a modernisation project over the last year, to
review working practices and ensure they were fit for purpose. A strategy had been
developed and the Panel were provided with an action plan that provided details on
the development action taking place within the service. Under four main headings:

e Leadership Development

¢ Modern Working Arrangements

e Service Delivery and Support Services

o Business Development Opportunities

The Head of Streetscene attended the meeting and explained that the service were
currently undertaking a benchmarking exercise that would provide them with
appropriate data from which to develop a set of relevant performance indicators to
help further develop the service. Members asked if a performance indicator could be
implemented on grass cutting.

A customer satisfaction survey was now undertaken each month and against a
sample of customers who had been in contact with the service the previous month
resulting in a more meaningful feedback that could be used to improve services and
better manage staff by improving training methods or making appropriate changes to
maintenance schedules.

A new structure had been implemented that brought all the different teams together
under one overarching Manager and two team leaders. The result has been that the
service now has as a multi skilled pool of staff that can better respond to the needs of
the service. Staff are more engaged in the work of the service are actively encouraged
to suggest any improvements for service delivery.

The restructure of the services had generated £58,000 of savings in 2012/13, with a
further £154,000 identified for 2013/14. These had been identified as part of the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
Monday, 17 becember 2012



Chair

Agenda Page 139 Agenda ltem 8

corporate savings programme for the Council, although there would be budget
investment proposals for the service and the service had increased its income
generating possibilities.

The service was also working more closely with the Customer Services Team to
ensure that staff in Contact Chorley were adequately trained and informed on how to
deal with the different services within streetscene to ensure better customer
satisfaction.

The Council had invested in 300 (25% of total stock) new bins across the borough in
2012/13. The new bins had an increased capacity (20%) for the same price and can
also accept dog waste. The Clean-up Chorley campaign that included the Dirty Dog
Campaign had been well received with more skip days and increased patrols planned
for the New Year and the service had also rolled out a bus shelter improvement
programme across the borough.

Members asked when the new bus timetable information would be displayed at the
bus stops. Initial contact with the bus companies had led the Council to believe that
the timetables would be being displayed again but as they had not yet materialised,
further endeavours would be made.

The Chair on behalf of the Panel thanked the Head of Streetscene for attending the
meeting. The Chair also commented that he had been disappointed that Executive
Member for Places had been unable to attend the meeting and asked that the Cabinet
be asked to consider sending a substitute upon such occasions.

RESOLVED
1. That the report be noted.
2. That grass cutting be a performance indicator for streetscene services.
3. That the Director of People and Places find out when the bus timetable
will be displayed at bus stops across the borough.
4. That the Executive Cabinet considers sending substitutes to Panel
meetings when the relevant portfolio holder is unable to attend.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
Monday, 17 becember 2012



Agenda Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 141 Agenda ltem 9

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Call-in Panel

Monday, 17 December 2012

Present: Councillor Steve Holgate (Chair), Councillors Julia Berry, Graham Dunn and
Hasina Khan

Also in attendance
Councillors: Councillors Peter Wilson (Executive Member (Resources, Policy and Performance)
Officers: Chris Moister (Head of Governance) and Carol Russell (Democratic Services Manager)

12.081

12.0S8.2

12.08.3

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.
DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

CONSIDERATION OF CALL-IN REQUEST: 98/102 MARKET ST, CHORLEY,
FORMER MCDONALDS SITE, PROPOSED REFURBISHMENT WORKS

Members were advised of the request submitted by Councillor Peter Goldsworthy for
the call in of an Executive Cabinet decision of 22 November 2012 on 98/102 Market
Street, former McDonalds Site: Proposed Refurbishment Works. The call in request
was on the grounds that “the Cabinet had failed to consider sufficient alternative
options”.

The call in procedure allows for consideration of the request by a panel of three
members plus the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, where the
scheduled committee meeting is some time away. If the panel chose to call in the
decision of the Cabinet then it would be reconsidered at the next Executive Cabinet
meeting in January. If the panel did not accept the call in, then there would be no
further action taken.

The Chair advised that the panel should consider the report in light of the objection
submitted by Councillor Goldsworthy and consider his alternative proposal “that the
site be considered for housing or a combination of housing and retail/commercial use”.
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance
was also present to answer Member questions about the proposal.

Chris Moister, Head of Governance presented the report considered by the Executive
Cabinet on 22 November and outlined the process which had taken place in
recommending that in principle, 100/102 Market St be refurbished and that 98 Market
St be demolished with the creation of a car park in the area between Fleet St car park
and Gillibrand St.

The recommendation was seen as a medium term solution prior to the master
planning process which would shortly be undertaken. A more detailed scheme would
be coming to Executive Cabinet in February or March 2013. The conversion to retail
units was to meet a need identified by economic development officers for starter
businesses and met on of the Council’s strategic objectives of investing in the town
centre. Other options, including the provision of housing, had been considered but the
view had been taken that the cost of conversion to housing or of demolition and
redevelopment was prohibitive at the current time. In addition, the zoning of this area
of the town centre under the Local Plan was currently for retail use and whilst housing
use could be considered, this would require master planning of the whole of Market
Street. Whilst this level of detail had not been included in the report, options had been

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Call-in Panel
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 17 December 2012



Chair

Agenda Page 142 Agenda ltem 9

thoroughly considered with officers from Liberata, the Council’s property management
contractor.

Members asked questions of both Councillor Wilson and Chris Moister regarding
commercial interest and redevelopment of the site for either retail or housing
development. There had been no commercial interest in the site for 15 years which is
why the Council had opted to purchase it. If redevelopment of the site has been
financially viable when markets were more buoyant, then it would have taken place.
The option recommended, was seen as the best option at the current time in order to
provide business startup opportunities and to invest and improve Market St. It was
important to also bring in some rental income to see some return on the Council’s
investment. Options for the longer term were still to be considered and would be part
of the master planning process for the town centre.

Members concluded that there was still an opportunity to influence future development
on the site and that if there had been an economically sustainable housing solution it
would have taken place. Whilst the focus was currently on retail use there was an
opportunity as part of the master planning process to look at other options.

RESOLVED - That the request to call in the decision be rejected but Executive
Cabinet be asked to ensure that an evaluation of the option for housing on the
site be included as part of the master planning process.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Call-in Panel
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 17 December 2012



Agenda Page 143 Agenda ltem 10a

Chorley

Partnership

Report of Meeting Date

Chair of Safer Chorley and South

Ribble Partnership Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 January 2013

COMMUNITY SAFETY PERFORMANCE REPORT

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the performance of the Community
Safety Partnership (CSP) for quarter 3 and year to date 2012/13.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. Members are requested to consider and note the report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3.  This report sets out the current quarter 3 and year to date performance of the Community
Safety Partnership for 2012/13. The report focuses on the main crime categories of All
Crime, Serious Acquisitive Crime, Violent Crime including domestic abuse, Criminal
Damage (including Arson) and Antisocial Behaviour (ASB).

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

4.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more | x

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

5.  Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will recall at their last meeting they
requested a performance update from the Community Safety Partnership.

6.  This report sets out the current quarter 3 and year to date performance of the Community
Safety Partnership for 2012/13. The report focuses on the main crime categories of All
Crime, Serious Acquisitive Crime, Violent Crime including domestic abuse, Criminal
Damage (including Arson) and Antisocial Behaviour .

Performance

7.  Outlined below is the quarter 3 and year to date performance of the Community Safety
Partnership for 2012/13




Agenda Page 144 Agenda ltem 10a

Table 1
Chorley CSP
Category Qtr 3 Last Year| Qtr 3 This Year % Change YTD % Change
All Crime 1352 1392
Serious Acquisitive Crime 158 173
Burglary Dwelling 57 61
Vehicle Crime 93 109
Robbery 8 3
All Violent Crime 358 368
Violence Against the Person 330 347
Alcohol Related Violence 92 102
Domestic Abuse 161 173
Domestic Abuse Detections (70%) 76% 74% 76%
Domestic Violence Murder 0 0
Criminal Damage (inc arson) 250 253
Anti Social Behaviour 1128 1051
Detected Arsons (20%) 0.0% 20.0%
All Crime
8. In quarter three, All Crime is showing a 3% (n=40) increase. Year to date shows a 5.5%

(n=231) increase in all offences. All areas are showing an increase except robbery and ASB
reports.

Whilst the Community Safety Partnership has recorded an increase in the All Crime
category, upon review of IQuanta data which compares Chorley Community Safety
Partnership against 14 other similar Partnerships, Chorley’s All Crime figure is lower than the
comparative group mean average with our partnership being 7th out of the cohort of 15.

Serious Acquisitive Crime (SAC)

10.

Offences have recorded an increase of 9.5% in quarter 3 and 16.3% YTD. During this
quarter, vehicle crime has seen the greatest increase of 17.2% (n=16) with burglary
increasing by 7% (n=4).

Chorley had high levels of SAC during May (96 offences) and September (77 offences). YTD
increases are due to these exceptional results earlier in the year. Although the previous
quarter has seen an increase in SAC, these increases are not as great as those seen earlier

Serious Acquisitive Crime figures for Chorley have been compared with serious acquisitive
crime figures across the Lancashire force area and are seen to follow the trend of the rest of
the force, however, May and September show exception to this and it is because of
performance in these months that the YTD increase is so high. Performance in quarter three
is fairly good and lower than the levels being seen in the rest of the force area despite an

11.

in the year.
12.

influx of Merseyside offenders.
13.

Theft from motor vehicle shows a strong positive correlation to the increase in serious
acquisitive crime and is the main reason for the increase in this category. Burglary in a
dwelling also shows a positive correlation to the increase in SAC.



14.

15.

16.

Agenda Page 145 Agenda ltem 10a

During quarter three, stealing from motor vehicles was the main offence accounting for the
increase of SAC, 57% (N=84) of all SAC was stealing from motor vehicles and 33% (n=48) of
all SAC was burglary in a dwelling. Peak wards for SAC offending were Chorley SE 10%,
Chorley East 10%, Chorley SW 9.5%, Clayton le Woods & Whittle le Woods 8% and Chorley
NW 7.5%.

Monday and Thursday show slight peaks in terms of day of the week that SAC was
committed. 21% (n=31) of offences were committed on a Monday and 16% (n=24) were
committed on a Thursday.

Whilst the Community Safety Partnership have recorded an increase in the Serious
Acquisitive Crime, upon review of IQuanta data which compares Chorley Community Safety
Partnerships against 14 other similar Partnerships, Chorley’s Serious Acquisitive Crime
figure is lower than the comparative group mean average with our partnership being 6th out
of the cohort of 15.

Violence

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

During this quarter, violent crime has increased by 2.8% (n=10). Violence against the person
has risen by 5.2% (n=17) and alcohol related violence has seen a 10.9% (n=10) increase. All
violent crime saw an increase in October and December but November saw a 7.7%
reduction. Detections for violent crime are 53.1% YTD.

When scrutinising the recorded violence figure more closely there appears to be no
significant increase in violent crime and that all increases are within the bounds of normality.

The biggest increases have occurred earlier in the year and quarter three has seen the
lowest numbers. January is highlighted as a performance threat as already there is a 17.6%
(n23) increase. February could possibly improve performance slightly as there is one less
day in the month compared with last year. However, a further performance threat could be
Easter weekend being the last weekend in quarter four.

All violent crime figures for Chorley were compared with violent crime figures across the
Lancashire force area and the result is shown in the chart below. Chorley CSP appears to be
below the trend of the force with the exception of September and October.

During quarter three, assault with injury accounted for 50% of all violent crime in Chorley and
assault without injury for 23%. Peak wards for all violent crime are Chorley wards (SE, SW,
NW, East and NE). These wards account for 67% (n=224) all violent crime.

Weekends are peak days for violent crime being committed with 55% (n=184) being
committed between Friday and Sunday. 31% (n=105) of all violent crime was alcohol related
and 35% (n=117) was domestic related. Victims of violent crime a split female 51% (n=154)
and male 49% (146). 53% (n=176) of violent crime has been detected.

Antisocial Behaviour (ASB)

23.

Over quarter 3 the partnership has recorded a reduction of 6.8% in the category of ASB.
Whilst the year to date figure is disappointing showing a 28% reduction members of the
committee should note that the partnership were up against a very low baseline set in 2011
and events such as Euro 2012 have influenced the recorded figures.

Three Yearly Figures

24.

Although the Community Safety Partnership has recorded increases in both year to date and
quarter 3 these are the first increases experienced over a 3 year period. All crime and



Agenda Page 146 Agenda ltem 10a

Serious Acquisitive Crime have both seen cumulative reduction since 2009/10. Violence has
shown an increase over this period which is largely accounted for by a significant increase in
the reporting of Domestic Violence which is welcomed by the Community Safety Partnership.

Table 2

25.

All Crime, Serious Acquisitive Crime and Violent Crime 2009/10-2012/13

2009/2010{2010/2011|2011/2012|2012/2013
All Crime 5783 5687 5634 4440
% change -2% -1%
SAC 704 753 673 587
% change -11%
Violent Crime 1293 1454
% change

26. Whilst the Community Safety Partnership has experienced unwelcomed increase across
several crime categories it is important to consider what percentage of these crimes have
been detected. Detections of crimes are important as they can limit further offences being
committed by individual and also provide reassurance to our communities that criminal are
being caught.

Table 3

27. Year to date detection rates 2012/13

YTD detection rates 2012/13

All crime 38.9%
Serious Acquisitive 56.9%
Crime

Assaults 48.1%
Domestic assaults 68.9%

Criminal Damage 22.1%

Partnership Activity.

28.

290.

Chorley Community Safety Partnership is structured to ensure that statutory agencies and
wider partners are able to respond as effectively as possible to the strategic and often
dynamic priorities of the partnership. However 2012/13 has so far been a challenging year
for the Partnership as in addition to recurrent seasonal threats to crime and disorder there
has been a number of one off events such as the Olympics, Euro 2012 and the Queens
Jubilee which presented unique challenges for the partnership.

In addition to the core activity of the partnership which includes enforcement/prevention and
the delivery of the Community Safety action plan, a number of multi-agency operations and
initiatives have been conducted throughout 2012/13 which have contributed to the effective



Agenda Page 147 Agenda ltem 10a

tackling of crime and ASB across the borough. The following initiatives and operations
outlined are those which are predominantly designed to tackle Serious Acquisitive Crime,
Criminal Damage, ASB and violent crime.

Operation Firecrest

30.

Operation Firecrest looks to prevent and tackle rural acquisitive crime and is centred on
several locations throughout Borough. Visits to known offenders, farms and rural businesses
are made and crime prevention advice is offered, community meetings are held and officers
provide a high visibility presence to deter offenders. Furthermore farmers, landowners and
gamekeepers are encouraged to work collectively with the police to help identify, disrupt and
deter criminals through initiatives like Farm Watch and Rural Watch.

Operation Cannon/ Lock it or Lose It

31.

Operation Cannon is specifically designed to reduce the number of insecurity facilitated
Serious Acquisitive offences. Geographic areas which experience higher levels of insecurity
related offences are flooded with multi-agency teams who try window, doors, garages,
vehicles and sheds for insecurity. If partners find something insecure they speak to the
property owner and provide them with information and advice on how to reduce the likelihood
of becoming a victim of crime. The operation is branded as Lock it or Lose and has been
supported with a media and literature campaign.

Operation Contego

32.

Operation Contego is designed to tackle the issue of cross boarder offending. In addition to
increased police patrols ANPR stop checks are used to targets and disrupt offenders as they
enter the borough. Agencies and partners involved in this operation include Traffic Police,
VOSA, Environment agency Trading Standards, SRBC Community Safety, Benefits and
Licensing.

Summer Nights

33.

34.

Summer Nights is a multi-agency campaign that aims to tackle and prevent crime and ASB
across Chorley in the summer months.

Key outcomes/actions include but are not limited to

Reducing ASB during peak seasonal periods

Reducing violence in the night time economy

Protecting and supporting vulnerable people including DV
Community Beat sweeps street surgeries

Reduction of Serious Acquisitive Crime SAC

Provision of positive activities

Restorative justice

Bright Sparx

35.

Bright Sparx aims to make sure the public stay safe and enjoy themselves over the
Halloween and Bonfire Night period. The initiatives aims are 3 fold to engage, enforce and
educate over the period. Activities are centred around.

Combating criminal damage and ASB related to fireworks & bonfires
Educating young people about firework & bonfire safety

Ensuring that firework & bonfire injures and damage to property are reduced
Reassuring the public about firework & bonfire safety measures.

Highly successful this year contributing



Agenda Page 148 Agenda ltem 10a

Operation Shepherd

36. Operation Shepherd utilises and redirects existing services to combat the changing culture
during a peak period of the Christmas and New Year festivities. Services are shaped to
deliver additional resources to combat Violence, Domestic Violence, Serious Acquisitive
Crime and ASB. Additional actions include: -

Violence
e CCTV hours extended 21st 24th 26th December to 4am and 31st December to 6am
e Town centre radio system update
e Street Pastors to operate on the 21st 24th 26th December to 4am and 31st December to
6am. Outlying areas early evening town centre late evening.
e Gather intelligence and ensure drugs polices will be enforced and drug torches are used
over the period within licensed premises.

Domestic violence
¢ Notices in A+E, licensed premises etc. regarding domestic violence “spot the signs”
campaign.
o Additional IDVA cover.

SAC
e Street surgeries in hot spot
¢ Vehicle crime- Vulnerable vehicle checks
e Housing associations- Lock it or lose is signs in reception offices to raise awareness.
o Watch coordinator communicates to neighbourhood watches and business watches the
lock it or lose it insecurity message.
ASB

¢ High risk offender joint visits with Housing associations and Lancs
Deployment of CCTV van to hotspot areas.
e Diversionary activity provision.

Community Alcohol Network

37. The project was established with the aims of reducing young people's access to alcohol in
order to reduce risky drinking and alcohol fuelled anti-social behaviour. It also aimed to
reduce problems by tackling proxy purchasing through enhanced enforcement activity in
identified hotspots. In addition it aimed to raise awareness of alcohol related health and
social issues amongst young people, parents and the wider community.

38. Test purchase operations were conducted to ensure compliance and publicity was used to
raise awareness of the scheme within the community. The engaged the
parents/guardians/carers of young people who were drinking alcohol and reduced the risk of
young people becoming the perpetrators or victims of crime and ASB. The initiative
increased parents/guardians/carers awareness of the impact that alcohol has on anti-social
behaviour and crime and empowered them to discuss the impact of alcohol with their child.
This initiative was evaluated and directly resulted in a reduction of crime and ASB.

Operation Cherub

39. Operation Cherub is operated locally by Lancashire constabulary in conjunction with partners
and targets inebriated youths, and youths in possession of alcohol removing them from the
street, provide them with a brief alcohol intervention and return them to their primary carers.
Operation cherub is operated on an intelligence led basis making use of information from
such sources as Police Data, PACT and even Councillors. Typically Operation Cherub
carries out the following actions



40.

41.

42.

1

Agenda Page 149 Agenda ltem 10a

Police stop youths
A youth referral is issued

. A youth referral is a non-permanent reprimand and acts as the first marker into the criminal

justice system and clearly signposts the child behaviour is illegal and unacceptable

2. A youth referral highlights the child's school and helps us to track potentially problematic
schools and age groups so further interventions can be offered directly to the school.

3. A youth referral allows the parent of the child to take action against the child's behaviour
before their behaviour becomes problematic.

The child's parents are contacted and either the child is returned direct to the home or the
parent is asked to come to site. Asking the parents to come to site highlights to them the
circumstances of the child's detention and shows tem the individuals their child is
association with, and also the fact they may be part of large groups that promote fear of
crime.

The parent and child receive alcohol intervention literature and if necessary further alcohol
support groups are signposted.

Operation Cherub is a preventative measure and not an alternative to arrest, if a crime i.e.
ASB or Criminal damage is identified an arrest is made. For parents who engage positively
the initiative acts as a wakeup call, and for those who don't respond negatively it highlights to
the Partnership that further interventions at a later date may need to be considered i.e. social
workers or even nomination onto the Vulnerable Households (families first) project.

Whilst the initial part of Operation Cherub is reactionary it has a preventative effect. Taking
inebriated children off the streets prevent further drinking and ASB occurring. There is also a
duty of care issue and the initiative will help reduce strain on borough resources including,
Police response to ASB, reduced strain on NHS and reduced costs associated by the
repairing criminal damage caused by ASB. Furthermore the usage of an unmarked vehicle
frees up a marked vehicle required for front line duties.

Staysafe builds upon Operation Cherub by focussing primarily of vulnerability. Stay safe
operates on a multi-agency approach and includes social workers, youth offending team
representatives and the police. Stay safe identifies youth on the street who are deemed
vulnerable and returns them to a place of safety offering appropriate and immediate
intervention for them and their primary carers.

Operation Tornado

43.

Operation Tornado is the concentration of Road Policing units in conjunction with ANPR
multi-agency stop check sites operated by Chorley Council prioritising in the identification of
potential vehicles being used for the transportation of scrap metal. Checks are made to
identify if any carried waste is from the result of metal thefts. Scrap yards are visited by local
Neighbourhood Policing Units, waste and licencing teams to check registers, compliance and
identify potential unreported intelligence.

2012 Olympics and Euro 2012 Partnership Plans

44,

45.

The Olympic Torch bearing passing through Chorley was part of a national event and the
planning of it was heavily supported by local agencies. There were no reported incidents in
Chorley due to the multi-agency approach which took place. During Euro 2012 an increased
police presence at all town centre licensed premises together with identification of
environmental visual audits via the mini MATACs avoided any potential spikes in ASB or
violence.

Over the next three months the Community Safety Partnership will continue to work to
prevent and reduce crime and ASB. Future threats include the Easter period and school



Agenda Page 150 Agenda ltem 10a

holidays along with the competing against low crime and ASB figures recorded in quarter 4
2011/12.

46. Should Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee require further information in
relation to any of the areas of business, operations and initiatives outlined above
representatives of the Community Safety Partnership are happy to provide any further detail
necessary.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

47. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this X | Policy and Communications
area

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
48. There are no financial implications.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

49. There are no comments from the Monitoring Officer.

JAMIE CARSON
CHAIR OF SAFER CHORLEY AND SOUTH RIBBLE PARTNERSHIP

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Paul Lowe 5758 14" January 2014 N/A




Agenda Page 151 Agenda ltem 10b

Cheorley

Partnership

Report of Meeting Date

Chair of Safer Chorley and South

Ribble Partnership Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 January 2012

PCSO ROLE, DUTIES AND PRODUCTIVITY

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To inform members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the role, duties and the
productivity Police Community Support Officers (PCSO’s) deployed in the Chorley Borough
area and part funded by the Council

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider and note the
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will recall that the committee’s schedule
of business includes a review of the role, duties and productivity of PCSO’s.

4, This report outlines the role, duties and the productivity of PCSO’s in relation to the Council,
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) and Lancashire Constabulary areas of business
including their contribution to the CSP Strategic Assessment priorities, Council Corporate
Strategy and wider policing issues.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

5.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more | x

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

6. This report outlines the role, duties and productivity of PCSO’s in relation to the Council,
CSP and Lancashire Constabulary areas of business including their contribution to the CSP
Strategic Assessment priorities, Council Corporate Strategy and wider policing issues.

7. Police Community Support Officers were introduced in September 2002 by the Police
Reform Act 2002. Chorley Councils annual financial contribution to Lancashire




10.

Agenda Page 152 Agenda ltem 10b

Constabulary to support the employment of additional PCSOs is currently £297,000 per
annum. This financial arrangement is governed by a Service Level Agreement (Appendix 1)
and Memorandum of Understanding between Chorley Council and Lancashire
Constabulary (Appendix 2).

Day to day Lancashire Constabulary PCSOs carry out a number of varied duties which aim
to reduce crime, disorder and ASB along with helping to reduce reoffending; and work to
improve community confidence and reassurance.

PCSO powers vary from force to force and sometimes within a force itself. The powers of
PCSOs stem from the Police Reform Act 2002, as amended. Every PCSO since 2007 has
been provided a number of standard powers regardless of which force they belong to. This
is in addition to the discretionary powers that can be designated by the Chief Constable or
Commissioner of each PCSOs respective force.

The roll and function of the PCSO’s supports a number of Council, CSP and wider policing
issues.

PCSO’s Contribution to the Community Safety Strategy

11.

wnN =

12.

The priorities of the 2012/2013 strategic assessment are

Domestic Abuse

Child Sexual Exploitation

General ASB — Delinquent Peer Groups, Youth nuisance, ASBRAC (high risk repeat
victims of ASB), vehicle and motorcycle nuisance.

Night time economy, crime and anti-social behaviour

Reducing Reoffending concentrating on those perpetrators involved in violent crime and
burglary in a dwelling (BIAD).

Cross-cutting themes

Alcohol related harm
Drugs

Domestic Abuse

13.

The input of PCSO'’s into the Domestic Abuse area of business is limited due to the specialist
and high risk nature of the agenda. Due to strict guidelines on dealing with domestic abuse
the role of PCSO’s is limited to gathering and submitting Intelligence and making referrals
into Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARAC’s) and other supportive services.

Child Sexual Exploitation

14.

15.

The tackling and prevention of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) is a relatively new area of
business for the CSP, as historically it has been largely the primary concern of the
Constabulary. PCSQO’s are responsible for submitting vulnerable child referrals regarding
children/youths that are suspected to be at risk of exploitation. The intelligence used to
inform these referrals comes via the PCSO’s engaging with the community, conducting visits
to problematic or high risk families, direct observations, attendance of multi-agency meetings
such as Mini MATAC’s or liaising directly with agencies such as Young Peoples Services
(YPS).

PCSO’s support the monitoring of individuals at higher risk of CSE by monitoring police
systems including intelligence data bases, liaison with the Public Protection Unit (PPU) and
wider constituent agencies. Furthermore they also support the monitoring, visitation and also
feedback intelligence relating to high risk sexual offenders who are managed by PPU.



Agenda Page 153 Agenda ltem 10b

16. In addition PCSQO’s support the prevention of CSE by engaging with local schools and
discussing behavioural patterns which could be indicative of CSE taking place. Such
behaviours may include truancy, family issues, drug and alcohol usage, ASB and criminality.

Night time economy, crime and anti-social behaviour

17. In addition to daily patrolling activity PCSQO’s contribute a significant amount of time to the
tackling and prevention of crime and ASB associated with the night time economy.
Operations and activities the PCSQO’s support include.

Operation Staysafe

18. Operation Staysafe is run during peak periods of time when youth related and alcohol driven
crime and ASB is expected to be problematic across the Borough. This operation involves
the targeting of young people on the streets who are committing ASB and drinking alcohol.
Youths are offered brief alcohol interventions and then taken to a place of safety where they
are collected by their parent, guardian or carer. Other youths present are signposted to
positive activities or other youth services. Furthermore the presence of the PCSOs during
this operation provides reassurance and a high visibility presence which helps prevent further
issues arising.

Community Alcohol Network

19. PCSO’s support the delivery of Community Alcohol Networks (CAN’s) which is an initiative
used to help restrict the accessibility of alcohol to young people. Interventions are conducted
with licensees in partnership with Trading Standards, the Community Safety Team and the
licensing departments of Lancashire Constabulary and Chorley Council. Test purchase
operations are conducted to ensure compliance and publicity is used to raise awareness of
the scheme within the community. This initiative has resulted in a reduction of crime and ASB
and the risk to young people who are drinking alcohol in public places. The initiative also
engages the parents/guardians/carers of young people who are drinking alcohol; reduces the
risk of young people becoming the perpetrators or victims of crime or ASB; increases
parents/guardians/carers awareness of the impact that alcohol has on anti-social behaviour
and crime; empowers parents/guardians/carers to discuss the impact of alcohol with their
child.

20. As part of the operation PCSO'’s visit licensed premises and businesses and work with them
to help prevent underage sales and promote of safe working practices. They also obtain
intelligence around under age sales, proxy sales, problem individuals which is then
considered by the Community Safety Team and Multi-Agency Licensing and Tasking (MALT)

group.

21. A specific function of the Clayton & Whittle le Woods, Coppull and Adlington PCSO’s is the
organisation of the Boroughs Pub Watch which coordinates licensed premises holders and
supports the banning of problematic persons from licensed premises. This activity helps
prevent banned individuals from causing further problems for the community. The PCSO’s
also facilitate the sharing of information between licensed premises and the Constabulary.

22. Other operations that PCSO’s support in a similar capacity to those already described
include

Bright Sparks

23. Bright Sparks aims to make sure the public stay safe and enjoy themselves over the
Halloween and Bonfire Night period. The initiatives aims are 3 fold to engage, enforce and
educate over the period. Activities are centred around.



Agenda Page 154 Agenda ltem 10b

Combating criminal damage and ASB related to fireworks & bonfires
Educating young people about firework & bonfire safety

Ensuring that firework & bonfire injures and damage to property are reduced
Reassuring the public about firework & bonfire safety measures.

Highly successful this year contributing

Summer Nights

24. Summer Nights is a multi-agency campaign that aims to tackle and prevent crime and ASB
across Chorley in the summer months.

25. Key outcomes/actions include but are not limited to

Reducing ASB during peak seasonal periods

Reducing violence in the night time economy

Protecting and supporting vulnerable people including DV
Community Beat sweeps street surgeries

Reduction of Serious Acquisitive Crime SAC

Provision of positive activities

Restorative justice

General Antisocial behaviour (ASB) concentrating on behaviours which are prevalent in
Chorley, motorcycle nuisance, ASBRAC (high risk repeat victims of ASB).

26. ASB is one of the biggest crime and disorder priorities for our communities. As a result, the
CSP’s structure and resource allocation reflects the importance of the Issue. PCSO’s are a
highly visible part of neighbourhood policing and carry out a number of functions that help
prevent and tackle ASB.

Motorcycle Nuisances

e PCSO’s issue section 59 warnings and which can result in the seizure of vehicles including
motorbikes being used in an antisocial manner.

General ASB

e PCSO’s support and promote diversionary activities such as Get Up And Go by showing a
presence at events and engage with youths and Council colleagues.

¢ Introduce new initiatives to address ASB problems e.g. Junior Bobbies organised by
PCSO'’s in Coppull and Chorley Moor provided positive activities over the summer holidays
to reduce ASB, organised visits to Her Majesty’s Court Service (HMCS), Police Stations,
police dogs/horses/helicopter and the organisation of a Crime Scene Investigation (CSI)
workshop.

e PCSO’s issue Youth Referrals to young people involved in ASB, so this behaviour can be
monitored by the Community Safety Team and where applicable referred to Prevent and
Deter to help stop issues escalating.

e Conduct joints visits with Housing Associations to problem tenants involved in ASB/Crime —
sharing information to allow Housing Associations to take the appropriate action to support
the Police

e Should problems escalate Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABC’s) are compiled by the
Community Safety Team and served by PCSO'’s to individuals on the fringes of persistent
ASB.



Agenda Page 155 Agenda ltem 10b

PCSO'’s collect and gather evidence for the Community Safety Team to support the
application of and use of tools such as ASB Injunctions (ASBI's), ASB Orders (ASBO’s),
Drug and ASB Closure Orders etc.

ASBRAC (high risk repeat victims of ASB)

Follow up contact with individuals who report an ASB issue. This is normally by telephone
within 24/48 hours, identifying problems and trends

PCSO’s submit referrals for people/families that are vulnerable due to being a target of
ASB. Where applicable they conduct regular visits to vulnerable families, carry out agreed
multiagency actions, support the monitoring of the family and the coordination of key
partners in order to reduce risk and resolve presented issues.

Reducing Reoffending

27.

28.

Serious Acquisitive Crime (SAC) is a continuing priority of the CSP as its impact on
communities and individuals can be profound. PCSO’s support this area of business by
conducting visit’s to known SAC offenders and gather intelligence which is used to manage
and monitor them. Curfew visits are also carried out and PCSO’s report breaches to enable
offenders to be arrested and presented at court.

Other SAC operations and activities PCSQO’s support include but are not limited to.

Operation Cannon/ Lock It or Lose IT.

29.

Operation Cannon/Lock It or Lose It looks to reduce the number of crimes which are
committed due to insecurity. Residents and businesses are engaged with in a proactive way
and provided promotional material and advice on how to prevent themselves becoming a
victim of a theft offence.

Operation Firecrest

30.

31.

Operation Firecrest looks to prevent and tackle rural crime and is centred on locations
throughout Borough and targets acquisitive offences. PCSO’s conduct extra patrols, target
known offenders, make visits to farms and rural businesses to offer crime prevention advice,
host community meetings and provide a high Vvisibility presence to deter
offenders. Furthermore PCSO’s encourage farmers, landowners and gamekeepers to work
collectively with the police to help identify, disrupt and deter criminals targeting the
Lancashire countryside through initiatives like Farm Watch and Rural Watch.

Other actions that PCSO’s carry out to reduce SAC include

¢ The Gathering of evidence for Criminal Anti-Social Behaviour Orders (CRASBO’s)

o Completion of house to house and CCTV enquiries for Police Constables/Detectives
in order to identify further lines of enquiry and offenders which can lead to the
improved detection rates.

¢ Reuvisit victims of crime providing reassurance

e Auto number plate recognition (ANPR) Days identifying travelling criminals.

e Carry our Restorative Justice interventions



Agenda Page 156 Agenda ltem 10b

Wider policing issues

32. In addition to the role and duties previously outlined PCSOQO’s carry out a number of other
functions which are integral to the delivery of wider community and neighbourhood policing
issues. Additional responsibilities include.

The chairing of Police and Community Together (PACT) monthly meetings which
drive delivery against local priorities.

Street Surgeries — identifying areas with specific problems and organise surgeries to
gather information and identify solutions and provide key messages

Problem Orientated Partnerships (POPS) — the identification of problems and usage
of the SARA (Scanning , Analysis, Response and Assessment) model to resolve
them

Attendance at Police and Council Briefings which keep PCSO’s up to date with
legislation and key messages which are to be delivered to the community

Work to resolve neighbour conflicts which helps to prevent ASB escalation.

Support Council run events e.g. Picnic in the Park, Christmas lights switch on, Cake
Fair by providing a visible presence preventing problems occurring and engaging with
the public, providing reassurance

Operation Pathway- targeting traffic issues often highlighted by residents at PACT
meetings

Regular presence outside schools at the start and end of the day and engagement
with pupils, parents and teachers and the management of parking/traffic issues

Provide a visible and accessible uniformed presence to improve the quality of life in
the community and offer greater public reassurance

Manage Speed Indicator Devices (SpID’s) and the obtaining of funds for new devices.
This has been done in Clayton le Woods and Wheelton)

Low level missing from home (MFH) enquiries and follow up visits to young people
who have been missing

School visits — providing a wide range lessons on stranger danger, bullying, drugs,
alcohol, ASB and criminal damage.

Attend monthly Parish Council meetings providing key messages, local crime
information and crime prevention advice.

Operation Tornado - regional multi-agency operation to target metal theft. PCSO’s
help target those involved in the theft and handling of stolen metal and help to
reinforce legislative changes which ban payment in cash for scrap metal. Additional
activity includes road side check sites which inspect vehicles and the documentation
of persons transporting metal. scrap metal dealer inspections are also conducted.
Agencies involved in this operation include Environment Agency, British Transport
Police (BTP), Smartwater, Electricity North West, National Grid, British Telecom (BT),
Virgin Media, HMRC, Airwave, Calor Gas and BOC.



Agenda Page 157 Agenda ltem 10b

Support for vulnerable people e.g. those with mental health problems, by making
appropriate referrals to obtain support and visiting them to monitor identified issues

Scene preservation — provision of a cordon around crime scenes that need to be
preserved for Crime scene Investigation (CSI) and senior officer attendance. PCSO’s
also support the implementation of cordons for non-crime scene issues such as fires,
Operation Merlin which helps prevent the public coming to harm.

Assisting with road closures following Road Traffic Collisions (RTC’s)

Joint visits to families with Social Services and other agencies who require support
Visit local Children’s Homes including Gilsbrook House, White House Park and
Chorley Hall Road. PCSQO’s engage with staff, residents and residents as and when
specific issues arise e.g. drugs use, behavioural problems, ASB and CSE.

PCSO’s have a responsibility for Neighbourhood Watch and the setting up new
schemes and initiatives including Rural/Farm Watch which is now in place in all rural
areas of Chorley.

Complete background checks on abandoned vehicles, vehicle causing obstruction
and registered keeper enquiries.

Attend and support neighbourhood action days and clean up days

Apply for funding from LANPAC and other avenues for community initiatives and
POPs e.g. for new skate parks, lighting and signage.

Support the execution of drug warrants.

33. It has been identified that the contact PCSO’s have with local politicians could be improved
and the Community Safety partnership would welcome the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees thoughts in relation to improving this area of interest.

Corporate strateqy priorities.

34. As discussed Chorley Councils annual contribution to Lancashire Constabulary to support
the employment of additional PCSOs is £300,000. This contribution further supports the
clean safe and healthy communities aspect of the corporate strategy.

35. The Council receive a monthly performance update relating to environmental crime which
focuses on the following areas of interest..

Environmental Crime

1.

2.

PCSO hours spent on supporting and resolving Environmental issues on behalf
of Chorley Council

Number of people engaged with regarding the borough wide ‘Dirty Dog’
campaign.

The number of FPNs issued relating to litter, dog fouling, dog exclusion, dogs on
leads by direction and dogs on leads orders.

No of environmental issues such as graffiti and fly tipping which are reported to
Chorley Council

The number of joint PCSOs and Chorley Council neighbourhood officer patrol
hours.



Agenda Page 158 Agenda ltem 10b

Productivity

36. Outlined below are the last 13 months of PCSO activity in relation to these outlined
environmental crime area of business.

Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Hours spent
on
Environmental

issues on 425.25 584 602 733.50 1304.5 | 1803 1357.25 1678 1531.75 1316 1569 1562. 1518

behalf of The
Council.

Number of
people
engaged with
regarding
@PDirty Dog’
campaign.

740 1061 960 791

FPNs issued 9 9 16 14 7 14 10 9 7 7 6 0 6

No. of
Environmental

reports to 70 63 33 24 23 39 18 26 15 12 31 25 41
Council,

(Graffiti/Fly
tipping etc)

Hours of joint
patrol i/c
Neighbourhoo
d Officer

102.75 | 93.75 | 127.25 68.75 89 127 142 204.75 56.75 2250 | 46.25 | 131.25 | 32.50

37. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider and note the
report.

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

38. There are no financial implications arising from this report.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

39. There are no legal implications arising from this report.

JAMIE CARSON
CHAIR OF SAFER CHORLEY AND SOUTH RIBBLE PARTNERSHIP

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Paul Lowe 5758 11 January 2013 N/A




Agenda Page 159 Agenda ltem 10c

Chorley

Partnership

Report of Meeting Date

Chair of Safer Chorley and South

Ribble Partnership Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 January 2013

INDEPENDENT DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ADVOCATE SERVICE
(IDVA) FUNDING

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To update Members of the funding arrangements being sought for the Independent
Domestic Violence Advocate (IDVA) service in 2013/14 and beyond.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. Members are requested to note the report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3. Members will recall undertaking a review of the IDVA service and its funding arrangements
as part of the overview and scrutiny of the Community Safety Partnership of which the
Council is a Responsible Authority Group member.

4.  The Councils Executive Cabinet accepted the recommendations of a report of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on 24 November 2011.

5.  The main recommendations focussed on the provision of budgetary support for IDVA and
seeking to ensure partners made appropriate contributions in order for the service to
continue.

6. Subsequently a maximum budget of £14,000 (recurrent) for IDVA funding was included as
part of the 2012/13 budget growth package that was agreed at Full Council on 28th February
2012.

7. In the intervening period the Council sought support of partners through the Community
Safety Partnership and Lancashire County Council produced a report which identified the
level of benefit received by partners and agencies through the work of the IDVA service.

8. The produced report proposed funding arrangements for 2012/13 and beyond. Members
should note that the proposed arrangements were subject to final agreement by all agencies
and partners by June 2012.

9. The proposed arrangements resulted in the Council being requested to provide £1,630 for
financial year 2012/13 with and estimated recurrent contribution of £3,260 for 2013/14 and
beyond.

10. Several agencies declined to support the proposed financial arrangements and the budget
deficit for financial year 2012/13 was met by the now dissolved Safer Lancashire Board.

11. As some agencies declined to financially commit to supporting the IDVA service newly
revised funding arrangements have been proposed for financial year 2013/14 and beyond.

12. The new arrangements request that from 2013/14 Chorley Council Provide a recurrent
contribution of £9,000 per annum which is £5,000 below the already agreed 2012/13 £14,000
recurrent growth budget for IDVA service provision. It should be also be noted that the newly
proposed figure of £9,000 supports the funding of both the IDVA provision and wider
domestic abuse services.

13. It is anticipated that the new funding arrangements will be finally agreed by March 2013 and
Members will be updated accordingly.




Agenda Page 160 Agenda ltem 10c

Confidential report Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

14.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all

Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more | x

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

IDVA SERVICE LEVEL IN CHORLEY AND SOUTH RIBBLE

15.

A 2012 study commissioned by Lancashire County Council has identified that, based on the
number of domestic violence referrals into the multi-agency risk assessment conference
(MARAC), the level of IDVA service necessary to meet demand across the Chorley and
South Ribble footprint 2012/13 and beyond would cost in the region of £89,000. This was
twice the previous 2011/12 level of funding provided by partners.

FUNDING MODEL 2012/13

16.

It was agreed that for 2012/13 the level of IDVA service be increased to meet the demand
identified above and 50% of the funding came from the Safer Lancashire Board, with the
remaining funding being provided by partner agencies on a scale that identified the
percentile benefit they receive through the operation of the service. Chorley Councils
contribution for 2012/13 amounted to £1,630.

PROPOSED FUNDING MODEL BEYOND 2013/14

17.

18.

19.

In 2013/14 and beyond the required £89,000 funding provision for the Chorley and South
Ribble IDVA service will have to completely sourced from its constituent partner agencies.
as a number of these agencies cover the wider Lancashire footprint, as with the previous
2012 consultation discussions at a county level are underway to ensure these agencies
make budgetary provision on a countywide scale to include the portion necessary for the
local Chorley and South Ribble service to continue.

In the event that partner agencies commit to the proposed apportionment then Chorley’s
contribution for 2013/14 and beyond will £9,000 pa (subject to cost increases in line with
inflation and any service level increases required based on service demand). This requested
contribution is £5,000 below the Councils agreed maximum £14,000 recurrent growth budget
for IDVA support.

It should be also be noted that the newly proposed figure of £9,000 supports the funding of
both the IDVA provision and wider domestic abuse services. A business case for the
increased funding was presented to the Lancashire Chief Executives on the 23" of
November 2012. The business case presents £9,000 requested funding as a single figure so
it is unclear what proportion of the proposed monies is intended solely for IDVA provision




Agenda Page 161

FURTHER ACTION

20. It is anticipated that the final funding arrangements will be agreed by March 2013 and
Members will be updated accordingly.

21. Members are requested to note the report

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

22. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

Agenda ltem 10c

included:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal Integrated Impact Assessment

required?

No significant implications in this area

Policy and Communications

JAMIE CARSON

CHAIR OF SAFER CHORLEY AND SOUTH RIBBLE PARTNERSHIP

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author

Ext

Date

Doc ID

Paul Lowe

5758

10™ January 2013

N/A




Agenda Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 163 Agenda ltem 11

Chorley

Council
Report of Meeting Date
Chief Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee 22 January 2013

MONITORING OF RECEIPT AND USE OF DEVELOPERS’
SECTION 106 CONTRIBUTIONS 2011/12 ONWARDS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the progress made in implementing the
projects included in the revenue budget and capital programme that are to be funded with
developers’ Section 106 contributions.

2.  To brief Overview and Scrutiny Committee about proposed changes in legislation that could
affect planning obligations arising from S106 agreements.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

3. To note the progress made in implementing projects funded with developers’ S106

contributions.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

4.

A monitoring report showing receipt and use of contributions from 2010/11 to 2014/15 was
presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 September 2011. This report confirms
actual receipt and use of contributions in 2011/12 and budgeted receipt and use from
2012/13 to 2015/16.

The largest scheme to be funded with developers’ contributions in this period is Buckshaw
Parkway railway station, £3.325 million in total.

A new S106 Task Group met during December 2012, and will continue to meet quarterly to
monitor receipt and use of contributions.

Changes to existing planning obligations could arise as a result of the Growth and
Infrastructure Bill 2012/13 and proposed regulations that would require renegotiation of
planning obligations agreed up to 6 April 2010. This could have an impact on the Buckshaw
Group 1 and Group 4 North agreements.

Confidential report Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:




Agenda Page 164 Agenda ltem 11

Involving residents in improving their local | v* | A strong local economy v
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more | v

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

9.

10.

A monitoring report was presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 September
2011. The use receipt and use of contributions in the 2010/11 financial year was reported
for each category of contribution. Appendix 2 to the report indicated the contributions
expected to be received during 2011/12 and 2012/13, and the budgeted use of the
contributions up to financial year 2014/15. The appendix identified that £412,391
contributions had not been committed to be spent by 2014/15.

Appendix 3 to the report indicated that contributions totalling £6,207,500 before index
linking would be received as a result of the Buckshaw Group 1 and Group 4 North S106
agreements. The contributions would be received in phases according to the number of
dwellings occupation, which meant that it was not possible to estimate when the
contributions would be received. Use of the contributions was not yet included in the
council’s budget.

RECEIPT AND USE OF CONTRIBUTIONS IN 2011/12

11.

12.

13.

The receipt and use of developers’ contributions in 2011/12 is presented in Appendix 1.
Contributions received during 2011/12 exceeded the figure quoted in the 5 September 2011
report by £178,146. Contributions totalling £3.222 million were applied in the year to finance
schemes included in the council’s revenue budget or capital programme.

By far the largest project was the Buckshaw Parkway railway station, implemented by
Network rail in partnership with Lancashire County Council and Chorley Council. The
expenditure of £2.763 million included accrued expenditure based on the outturn figure
estimated by Network Rail. There was a dispute between Network Rail and the main
contractor as to the final cost of the scheme, which has delayed payment by this council to
LCC of the final cash sum (already accounted for in 2011/12). Now that the dispute has
been resolved, it seems likely that the actual cost of the station would be less than included
in the 2011/12 accounts. There would be an adjustment in 2012/13, which would mean that
more of the contribution would be available for Buckshaw Village transport improvements.

Other payments to third parties to support their projects included the affordable housing
contributions to housing association affordable housing schemes (£134,430); and Play and
Recreation Fund schemes implemented by parish councils and other bodies (£124,727).

RECEIPT AND USE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 2012/13 ONWARDS

14.

Appendix 1 also presents an updated estimate for contributions receivable from 2012/13 to
2014/15, and introduces figures for 2015/16. In total, contributions due between 2012/13
and 2014/15 have increased by £362,509 compared to the figure reported on 5/9/11. Of this
total, £229,202 is in respect of play and recreation facilities; affordable housing £53,702;
community facilities in Eccleston £22,764; and the Buckshaw Planning Officer £56,841
(including estimated index linking).



15.

16.

17.

Agenda Page 165 Agenda ltem 11

Budgeted use of contributions from 2012/13 to 2015/16 is also presented in Appendix 1.
The phasing of use to finance capital projects is the same as reported to Executive Cabinet
on 17 January 2013. However, use in 2012/13 could change before the end of the financial
year. Use of the balance of the Buckshaw station contribution could not be considered until
finalisation of the station contract, so rephasing of expenditure to 2013/14 seems likely.
Affordable housing projects are being developed in partnership with housing associations,
but it is not certain that the 2012/13 budget would be used in full by the end of the financial
year. Use of the budgets for a Collingwood Road puffin crossing (£47,820) and highway
improvements in the Pilling Lane area (£150,000) depend on implementation of the works
by Lancashire County Council, so phasing of expenditure is beyond the control of this
council. The Rangletts Recreation Ground project is due to commence during 2012/13, but
is likely to continue into 2013/14. Unfortunately an estimated split between years of the
expenditure is not available at present.

A budget of £224,089 for Play, Recreation and Public Open Space projects is included in
the 2013/14 capital programme. This consists of several contributions restricted to use in
specific areas rather than being available for Borough-wide use via the Play and Recreation
Fund. It will be allocated to specific projects, which could include support for appropriate
schemes implemented by other bodies such as parish councils.

The Appendix shows that £60,526 Play and Recreation contributions are not committed,
though £21,735 of this figure has not yet been received. Of the Pilling Lane contribution,
£363,570 has not been committed. However, it is likely that part of this sum would be
required to increase the budget for the Rangletts Recreation Ground project to include
additional facilities; and to provide CCTV in the area of the development. Approval of the
budget changes would be requested once estimated costs are available.

S$106 TASK GROUP

18.

The first meeting of a new S106 Task Group, consisting of officers from Planning, Legal,
People and Places, and Shared Financial Services, was held on 18 December 2012. The
group was convened in response to an internal audit recommendation. Meetings would be
held quarterly, the first full meeting being due during January 2013.

GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE BILL 2012/13

19.

20.

As reported in my Capital Programme monitoring report to Executive Cabinet of 22
November 2012 and Council of 8 January 2013, the Government has recently published the
Growth and Infrastructure Bill 2012/13. One purpose of the Bill is to unlock stalled housing
sites by allowing for affordable housing in S106 agreements to be reconsidered where the
agreements are “economically unrealistic”, particularly those negotiated at the height of the
housing boom. The intention of the Bill is to deliver more housing, but the potential impact on
affordable housing delivered on-site or off-site through S106 agreements is unclear at
present. The second reading of the Bill in the House of Lords was on 8 January 2013, and
the Lords committee stage will commence on 22 January 2013.

Consultation on the renegotiation of Section 106 planning obligations ran from 13 August to
8 October 2013. As at 9 January 2013, the DCLG web site indicates that responses are
being analysed. The DCLG’s proposal is that for all planning obligations agreed on or prior
to 6 April 2010, the relevant local authority could be required to renegotiate the terms of
planning obligations one month after the introduction of the new regulations (Town and
Country Planning (Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligations) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2012) required to implement the policy change. For all planning



21.

Agenda Page 166 Agenda ltem 11

obligations agreed after 6 April 2010, the period for a formal request to reconsider an
obligation would remain at five years, as at present. Such planning obligations could be
renegotiated voluntarily at any time, as allowed by Section 106A of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Planning obligations agreed up to 6 April 2010 include Buckshaw Group 1 (agreement
dated 22 December 2009); and Buckshaw Group 4 North (agreement dated 31 March
2008). Contributions totalling £3,397,500 before index linking would be receivable as a
result of the Group 1 agreement; and £2,810,000 before index linking in respect of Group 4
North. To date, only the 2011/12 Planning Officer contribution (£17,802) resulting from the
Group 1 agreement has been received. Voluntary negotiations about the obligations have
been taking place in advance of the proposed statutory change.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

22.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:

Finance v' | Customer Services

Human Resources Equality and Diversity

Legal v | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

No significant implications in this Policy and Communications

area

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

23.

Financial implications are set out in the body of the report.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

24.

The Monitoring Officer has no comments.

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

f th S106 Monitoring O&S Cttee Jan
Michael Jackson 5490 9" January 2013 2013 docx




Agenda ltem 11

Agenda Page 167

L xipuaddy

(89¢299) (89¢°2969)

(£29'v¥P) (£29'v¥P)

020°c29'2  L0E'8l 026°'l¥. ¥9.'22 2ve'2s 8/6'8 Sy 1659 LYE 129 62£'861

¥£2'20€ L0E'8 ) 0 ¥9/'22 0 0 19%°102 0 20.'€S

yee'ele LOE'8L 0 ¥92°22 0 0 19202 0 (862°9¢)

000°06 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000°06

98.'02€C 0 026'Lv. 0 erees 8/6‘S 8/9°LSY e 129 129'vbv

(818°tzg'e) (2082ZL)  (€59°L) 0 (9E/°L1) (Gge'al) (£18'012)  (GSL‘6282) (OEv'vEL)

(208°21) (20o8‘1)

(£59°1) (€59°1)

(98/°L1) (9E/°L1)

(gzzal) (G2z'al)

(026°2) (026°2)

(0L1'61) (021'61)

(056°€9) (056°€9)

(L2Lv21) (22L%21)

(902'99) (902'99)

(6¥629.°2) (6¥6°292°2)

(oev'vel) (oev'vel)

¥09'2vS'S  208°/1 €/5'€y. 0 8/6'€9 £02'G2 S6%'299 96%'0S¥'€  /S0'6.G

26L/ve 208 /1 0 0 0 0 0/5°181 028'LY 0

AN VAL 208 L1 0 0 0 v2s'sel 028V (ooo‘elt)

9¥0'69 0 0 0 0 9%0°95 0 000°Ct

Z2I'se2's 0 €8¢, 0 8/6'€9 £02'Se G26'08Y 9/920v'c  1S0°'6.G

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
|erol I dnoiy aue]  saiupoed Ao "A9Q Yinoa MOpE3|\ uoneasdosy Modsues] BuisnoH
meysyong bBuljd uoj}sajoo3 meys)ong auolsalin » Aeld a|qepiojy

uonels Aemjiey abejip meysyong jo Buioueui
sawayos BuisnoH ajqepJo)y Jo Buioueul

€1/c10c dlgejieAy
€1/2102 8lewise pasiney

1 1/6/G @ouls abuey)
L 1/6/G 1e se paloadxa suoinguiuod

Z102Z Yodep LE Je se aouejeg

(sewayos euded ¥ anuanal) g1/1 10g palddy

199110 Buluueld | dnoun meysyong jo Buioueuly
'sdwi| pulo) u,08y sps|buey jo Buoueul
suelb juswdojaaaq yinoA Jo Buioueui
sjuswanoidw) [ejuswuoliaug jo Buioueul
salljioe4 Ae|ld wie4 mainie jo Buioueuly
auoz Ae|d [einieN dDAA Jo Buioueui

[IOUNOD - SBWaYDS pund YRyd o Buioueuiq
[BUJBIXS - SBWAYDS pund Ywed 10 Buoueui
MIOMIBN 8]0AD) abe|ip meysyong jo Buioueui
uonels Aemjiey abejip meysyong jo Buioueui
sawayos BuisnoH a|qep.oyy o Buioueuly

Z1/1102 9|qe|ieAy
Z1/1 102 POAI8081 SUOINQUIUOD

L 1/6/G ®ouls abuey)
L 1/6/G Je se pajoadxa suonnguiuo)

1102 Iudy | Je se @oueleq

SPIEMUQ ¢1/1 102 SUONNQIIUOD 901G JO 9N



Agenda ltem 11

Agenda Page 168

L xipuaddy

8€E‘6EY 0 0.G'€9€ 0 ehe'st 0 92509 0 0 102 Yolep LE 1e se aouejeg
(9g1'912) (ov6'8L) 0O 0 (000°91) 0 (¥6¥'2€S) 0O (cos'evl) ¥1/€1L02 palidde aq o1
(ove'gl)  (ov6'8L) 1901J0 Buiuueld | dnosg meysyong jo Budueul
(000‘91) (000‘91) siuelb Juswdojgrsg YINoA Jo Buioueul
(680'v22) (680¥22) s100l01d eoedg

uadQ 211gnd pue uonealdsy ‘Aeld jo Buioueuly
(0oos‘ee) (0oos‘ee) IouUN09 - S8WaYds pun4 Yed jo Buroueuly
(Ger'eol) (Ger‘eol) saiioe Aejd uolbuipy jo Buioueuly
(08¥°981) (08¥°981) sall|ioe Ae|d usain sane3 jo buioueuly
(oL'ev ) (coz'ev)) sowayos BuisnoH a|qep.oyy Jo Buioueul
Y/¥‘GSLL  0V6'8lL 0/6€9€ 0 2ve'Le 0 020865 0 20.'evl Y 1/€10¢ dlqe|leAy
G/9°0€1 01681 0 0 0 0 GelL'le 0 00006 7 1/€10¢ 81eWllSs PSSInaY
G/9'0¢l 0v6'8l Gel'le 0 00006 L 1/6/G 8duls abuey)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 1/6/S 1e se psajoadxs suonnguuo)
66.v20'L 0 0.G°€9€ 0 ere'Le 0 G82'9.S 0 20L‘eS €102 Yo2Jepy LE Je se asuejeg
(1ee'ges’t) (1og'gl)  (ose'sLe) (v9.°2e) (000°12) (826'8) (098'28) (1pe'129)  (£29'v¥h) €1/210g paldde aq o
(tog'st)  (rog'gl) 190110 Buluuelq | dnoug) meysyong jo Buioueul
(05e'822) (0ge‘822) ‘sdw| puio u,0ey sne|buey Jo Buoueuld
(000°0S 1) (000‘0G1) eaJe aue Bul|ig sdw| skemybiH jo Budueul
(¥92°22) (¥92°22) selI9e4 Aunwwon uo}se|o93 jo Buoueul
(000‘12) (000‘L2) siuelb Juswdojgasg YINoA Jo Buioueul
(826'8) (826'8) sjuswaAoidw| [elUSWUOIIAUT JO Buroueulq
(028°¢c) (0z8‘e) auo0z Aeid [BIN1EN dDAA 10 Buioueui4
(000°81) (000°81) sall|ioe Ae|d usain sane3 jo buloueuly
(ov0‘L€) (0v0‘1€) IoUN09 - SaWaYds pun4 Yed jo Buroueuly
(000°0¢€) (000°0€) [BUISIXS - SBIBYDS pund Hd Jo Buipueul4
(028°LY) (028°L¥) pY poombui|jo Buissoi) uynd jo buioueuly
(€SL°LL) (€SL°LL) yiomiaN 8johD abeljiA meysxong jo Buroueuly

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
lelol | dnoun aueq saoe4 AlD  "A8@ YINOA  mopealy uoneasdoay Modsues)  BuisnoH
meysyong Buid uo0}sa|oo3 meysyong auoisayy % Aeld a|qepiopy



Agenda ltem 11

Agenda Page 169

960Vl 0 0/G6°€9€ 0 0 0 92509 0 0 9102 YoJle LE e se aouejeg
(062'02)  (062'02) O 0 0 0 0 0 0 91/G102 paljdde aq o]
(oe2'02)  (062'02) 190110 Buluuelq | dnous) meysyong jo Buioueul4
98E'viv 06202 0/6€9€ 0 0 0 92509 0 0 91/510¢ d|qe|leay
062°02 06202 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91/G10¢ S81ewllsSs PasInayY
062°02 06202 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L 1/6/G ®ouIs 8buey)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 1/6/G 1e se pajoadxs suoinqguIuo)
960'tvel 0 0.G°€9€ 0 0 0 925'09 0 0 GLOC Yole LE 1e se aduejeg
(ev8've)  (009'6L) 0 0 (eve'slh) 0 0 0 0 Gl/¥ 102 paldde aq o)
(009'6t)  (009°61) 190110 Buluuelq | dnoig) meysyong jo Buioueul
(eve'sth) (eve'sth) sjuesb awdojersq YinoA jo Buioueul
8€6'8SY 009°61 0/6€9€ 0 gve'Sl 0 92509 0 0 SH/¥10c dlqe|leay
009'61 009°61 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G1/¥10¢ S1ewllSs PSSInSY
009°61 009°61 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L 1/6/G ®ouIs abuey)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 1/6/G 1e se pajoadxs suoinqguIuo)
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
jelol Ldnosn  eueq senoe4 AllD  'AeQ@ YINOA  Mopes|y uoneasday Modsues]  BuisnoH
meysyong buid u0}s3[993 meysyong auoisoliiy % Aeid a|qeployy

L xipuaddy



Agenda Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



Chorley

Agenda Page 171

Agenda ltem 12

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2012/2013

Council
=13/ 8|58 288 5 2 B
o - (75} w — [ Sl o = <
R |« |5 R e
(6]
Holding the Executive to account

Performance Monitoring Panel

Meeting * * * *

(to consider Council projects,

Directorate and LSP monitoring)

Performance Monitoring Panel * * * *

Minutes

Update Report on Section 106 monies *

Notice of key decisions * * * * * *

Executive Cabinet minutes

Budget Scrutiny

*

Consideration of a call-in request

*

Policy Development and Review of Cot

uncil Services (Task and

Finish Groups)

Adoption of Estates

\Y

S

C R

Allotments

2M

3M

Asset Management

2M

3M

Highways

2M

Lancastrian

1™

2M

Private Rented Housing Inspection

Tourism and Promoting Chorley

F

™

Potential topics for future reviews

Reporting procedures through the
Contact Centre

Citizen Engagement

Budget Processes

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny

Crime performance

PCSO's role, responsibility and
performance

IDVA Service — funding update

Police and Crime Commissioners

Other

Work Programme

Annual Report

Reported Annually
Update report on Section 106 monies
Annual Report

Key

Policy Development and Review of Council Services

and External Scrutiny

=E<ZITMITO®

14 January 2013

Scoping

Collecting and considering evidence
Report

Feedback and action from EC
Monitoring 1 2 and 3

Verbal Update

Member Learning Session



Agenda Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Pubfe 98l AAeAY Pack Agenda ltem 13

€102 Menuer | :pajepdn jseq

aAlN29x3 Ja1y9 ‘|leH Aleo

“NN"ACG AS|IOUD@I0BIUOD [Iewsd 40 | GLGLS
/GZ1L0 Uo [1ouno) 8y 10eju0o ases|d ‘eleAlld ul paispisuod Buieg swaey o) suonoslqo Buipnjoul ‘ssuanb Aue ale aiey) J| YN AOD AS[IOUD MMM
'9)JISgaM S,[IDUNOD 8Y) U0 passadde aq Aew [10uno) ay) Jo sBun@sw |je 1oy sejnuiw pue epusbe pue uoiNIISUO) S [IDUN0) 8y} Jo saido)

9MO UBlpY JO[|1ouno) (ssauisng @ SOWOH) JoaquIa|\ SAIINDSXT
As|lebp3 siuua( Joj|IounoD (Buiuue|d pue 4Q1) Joquia|\ BAIINOSX]
umoug A1la | Joj|Iounod (seoe|q) Jaquwialy BAIINOSX]
Aeunpy Asjienag Jojjlouno) (e)doay) Jequiajy aAiNoaXg
UOS|IAA 1818d JOJj1ouno)  (8douewlopad pue Adljod ‘S824n0Say) JOquIB\ SAIINDSXT pue JapesT aAlnoax3 AindaQ
As|pelg Jiejsiy JojjIounoy (2uBUIBA0D) pue JuBwdojaAa( JILIOU0DT) JoqUIS|A BAIJNISXT PUB JapeaT] SAIINDaXT

:soljojiiod BuIMo||0) 8Y) YIIM Siaquus|y 8AINoaxXT Inoj pue Japea Aindeq ‘JepeaT aAilnoaxg ay) Jo dn spew si Jauige) aAINdaxX] ay |

‘suoisinoid Aousbin |eroadg pue uondeox3 [elauss) Yyjm ao0uUeplodde Ul Juawnoop
SIY} Ul papnjoul usaq jou aAey Asyl ybnoyy usas ‘epew g 0} suoisioap Aay jusabin 1o} apiroid uoinIsSuo) SIDUN0) 8yl pue me| ayl (p
‘JUBWINO0P SIY} Ul UBAIB usaq aAey a910u
sAep gz ssajun ‘uaye} aq jou Aew uoisioag Asy, B ‘UOIINJISUOD S,|IDUNOY) BY} Ul N0 }8S SB|NY 8INPadodid UOIBWIOU| 0} SS90y a8y} Japun (9
"UOIINIISUOYD S,[IDUNOY) BY} JO H 211 Ul JNO 18S Ylomawel4
Aoljod s |1ounod ayy jo Buiuesw ay) uiyim jou ade yoiym saibejeds 1o sued Aue sapnjoul SIy| "SpJem |BI0}09|9 aiow Jo oM} ul Bupjiom
JO BuIAll SBIjIlUNWIWIOD U0 SWIS) J1ILIOU0DD JO |Bl00S ‘|edisAyd ‘|eluawuocdiaug ul 1oeduwi Juediubls B aAey |IIM YdIym UOISIDap aAnoaxe Auy (g
‘alow J0 0000013 Jo dwayos |eydes pawuwelboisdun Jo mau e e
JO {8J0W 10 000‘00L3F YHOM JoejjuUOD B e
JO ‘a10W 10 000‘001 3 Aq 186pNnqg anuaal a821AI8s 8y} uodn syoedwi jeyy uoisinold 82IA18s Ul 8bueyo e e
:S1 a1ay} aleym sbuiaes Jo Bujew ayy Jo alnjipuadxe uesiiubis Bulnoul [1IoUN0D 8y} Ul }Nsal 0} A|9yI] SI YdIYm UOISIOap aAlNdaxa Auy ‘Y (e
:Se paulap siI uoisioaq A8y, v

'ddl 2¥d ‘Aeloyd o848
19)Je\l ‘|lBH UMO] 8yl Wolj J0 YN"ACB AS|IOUD MMM Je 8)iISgem S,JIouno) ay) uo aljgnd ay) 0} ajgejieAe sI pue palinbal se palepdn s Juswnoop
8yl -eye) 0] 10adxa siaquial\ SAIINDSXT pUB 1auIge) SAINaXg 8y} Yolym suoisiosp Jolew Jaylo pue Aay, Jo 8on0u sAep gz seAlb Juswnoop siy|

suolsioap A9y, Jo 9213J0N— [I1oUno) AajioyH
[IDUNOD

hapoyd



Agenda ltem 13

Agenda Page 174

alowl
10 000'0013 Aq

196pnq anuanal Juswoalby
9OINIBS BY} Bueys 1s0)
saoe|d uodn sjoeduwl 1uswabeuely
pue a|doad 1eyy uoisinoud (sa2e|q) a)sep
JO Joyoalg 90INIBS Jaquisy 1uIgR) allyseouen
3y} Jo uoday ON ON Loz uer /1 ul abueyo y 9AIINO8X] aAnoax3 | 8y} 0} sebueyn
(eouewlopad
pue Aoljod
‘s901N0S9Y)
alow Jaquisy SL-¥102
10 000°001 3 Jo BAlINoaX] 0l ¢lL-cloc
awayos |eudes ‘lopea Buriojiuop
9AIIN08XJ JoIyD pawwelboidun B9AIIN0SX] 1uiqe) awuwelboid
ay} Jo Joday ON ON cLoz uer /L 1O MaU Y AindaQ 9AIIN09X] [eyden
alow (eouewIOpad
10 0000013 Aq pue Aaljod
196pnq snuanal ‘s901N0S9Y)
92INIBS BY} Jaquisiy
uodn sjoeduwi B9AIN09X] Abajens
ey uoisinoid ‘Jopean [eloueul 4
aAIIN29XJ JoIyD 90INIBS B9AIIN09X] 1uIgR) wJa ] wnipsp
ay} Jo Joday ON ON cLoz uer /L ul ebueyd y AindeQg 9AIINDaX] pue 1e6png
Aenuep
13)e}
uoisioaqg Aq ¢ siaded uaye} aq J19p|OH uaye}
paJapisuod aq punouiboeq Zpapn|oxa aq ued uoisioap | A9y si uoisioap oljojuod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisidag
0} sjuawinsoq Aue aiay} aty | o1qgnd ayy [IM aje( jsaljieq 9y} uoseay JueA3|9y | aq 0} uoisidag 9y} jo sjie}ag




Agenda ltem 13

Agenda Page 175

Aenigay
(eouewlopad
pue Aoljod
‘s90IN0S9Y)
Jaquig|\
(Ienpiaiput SAIINOSX]
Aue 0y Bunejel ‘lopea uoljew.lojsuel |
9AIIN28X3 JoIyD uonew.oyul ‘| 9AIIN28X] uige) ssauisng
ay} Jo poday ON | ydeibeied) ‘sap cLoz uer /1 Aindaqg 9AIINO8X] 90UBUJBN0D)
Kopi0yn
(uonewuoyu ‘a)jua) ainsia]
Jeu Buipjoy suoseag ||V
Aoyine Je sweaq Jool
ay) Buipnpoul (eouewlopayg |jood Buiwwims
uosiad pue Aoljod 0] YJom
Jejnoied Aue jo ‘s90IN0S9Y) uonesiueneb
sJieye ssauisnq JaquIg| 10} elIB)LID
saoe|d Jo [eloueuly 9AIN0BX] uonen|eas
pue ajdoad ay} 0} bunejal alow o ‘lopea pue ainpasoud
JO Joyoalg uonewsolul) ¢ 0000013 yuom BAIINO9X] JpuIge) | pJeme JoBJU0D
ay} Jo Joday ON | ydelBeied ‘sop cLoz uer /L 10BJJU0D VY Aindaqg 9AIlNDaX] JO |eAosddy
|[oyoole
sooe|d Jo Buroud
pue s|doad (seoeld) wnwiuiw
JO Jojoaug Jaquisi\ JouIge) | UO UoNe}NSUOD
ay} Jo poday ON ON Loz uer /1L BAIINO9X] B9AIINOBX] 90110 dWOoH
J9ye)
uoisioag Aq ¢ si1aded uaye)} aq J9P|OH uaye}
paJapisuod aq punoubyoeq ipapnjoxa aq ued uoisioap | A3y siI uoisioap oljoyyiod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisioeg
0} sjuawnooq Aue aiay} aay | o1qnd ayj |IIM aje( jsaljieq 9y} uoseay JueAd|dy | aq o} uoisideg ay} Jo sjiejeqg




Agenda Item 13

Agenda Page 176

¢10¢ sansnels
Ayianod
[@n] uo podal

[enuuy ebuey)
“Sjewld

S ABIBUg

10 Jusweds(
S}epuely
"J09[01d

[PUN0Y) ASlioy)
2q01d Alddng

ABJaug,, wabjO
SoRHOUINY
8507 10}
570N Buijeng
— BATORII0D

2Wayds >UL®CM
9AI109]|0D
VINOV

V¥ Xeuuy wiog
“uonedlddy
“spundg
RIoyINy (69077

003Q :9buey)
SeWID

S ABIBUg

10 Juswedag
10} pIq Buipunj

~S|1duno) 10 Buia| (2ouBUIBNOD (soueUIBNOD

“allyseoue] saluNnWwwod pue pue

€102-2102 uo swia) swdojana uswdojanaq

“uonnadwon 2ILIOU0Dd 10 21WOoU093) 21WOU093)

Buiuue|d pue | “AjIoOyINy [BO0T [e1oos ‘[eaisAyd Jaquia|y BETe[VIETAY
sdiysiauped 5D3Q ‘Sspung ‘leluswuolIAUD 9AIINOBX] BAIINO9X] Buiyoymg
10 J0308u1Qg “Ajuoyiny ul Joedwi ‘lopeaT ‘Jopean ABisug
8y} Jo Joday '[e907003a ON €102 9o4 /L jueoyiubis v 9AN08X3 BANDeX3 9A1}03||00

J9ye)

uoisioaqg Aq ¢ si1aded uaye} aq J19pIOoH uaye)
paJapisuod aq punoubyoeq ipapnjoxa aq ued uoisioap | A3y siI uoisioap oljoyyiod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisioeg
0} sjuawnooq Aue aiay) aay | o1qnd ayj [IIM aje(q )saljdeq ay) uoseay JueAd|dy | aq o} uoisideg ay} Jo sjiejeqg




Agenda ltem 13

Agenda Page 177

(eouewlopad
pue Aoljod
‘s901N0S9Y)
Jaquisiy v1/€L0C XeL
B9AIN0SX] [IoUNOD pue
‘lopeaT 196png |euden
aAIIN29XT JoIyD 9AIIN09X] 1ouIqe) pue anuanay
ay) Jo poday ON ON €10z 994 1Lg Aindeq 9AIN09X] pun4 |elaua9
(eouewlIopad
pue Aolj0d
‘s901N0S9Y)
Jaquiay
B9AIN09X] Jauenb paiy
‘Jopean — Buriojiuop
aAIINo8X 3] Jolyn BAIIN08X] 1ouIge) diysieuped
8y} jo Joday ON ON €Locged Il¢ Andeq SAIINO8X3 Aspioyo
(eoueWIONEY
pue Aoljod
‘s901N0S9Y)
Jaquisiy
aAIlNoaXg Jauenb pay L
‘lopea — Buuonuopy
aAIIN29XJ JoIyD BAIINO9X] 1uIgR) aouewlopad
8y} Jo Loday ON ON €10z 94 Lg Andeqg BAIINOSX T louno)
19)e)
uoisioag Aq ¢ si1aded uaye)} aq J9P|OH uaye}
paJapisuod aq punoiboeq épapnjoxa aq ued uoisioap | Aay sl uoisioap oljojHod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisioaQ
0} sjuawnooq Aue aiay} aay | o1qnd ayj |IIM aje( jsaljieq 9y} uoseay JueAd|9y | 9q 0} uoisidaQ 9y} jo sjiejaq




Agenda ltem 13

Agenda Page 178

(eouewlopad
pue Aoljod
‘s90IN0S9Y)
Jaquis|\
B9AIN08X]
‘lapean
aAIIN29XT JoIyD BAI}NO9X] 1uIgR) Aianooay
ay) Jo poday ON ON €10z 994 1Lg Aindaqg 9AIINO8X] Jaysesiq
(eouewlIopad
pue Aolj0d
‘s901N0S9Y)
JaquisiN GL-¥102
BAlINoaX] 0l ¢lL-cloc
‘Japean Burioyuoy
9AIIN08XJ JoIyD B9AIN0SX] uigqe) awuwelboid
8y} jo Joday ON ON €10caed I¢ Andeq SAIINO8X3 leyde)
(eoueWIONEY
pue Aoljod
‘s901N0S9Y)
Jaquig|
aAIlNoaXg Jauenb pay L
‘lopea - Bulonuopy
aAIIN29XJ JoIyD BAIINO9X] 1uIgR) 196png
ay} Jo poday ON ON €10z 994 1Lg Aindaqg 9AIN09X] anuanay
19)e}
uoisioag Aq ¢ si1aded uaye)} aq J9P|OH uaye}
paJapisuod aq punoubyoeq ipapnjoxa aq ued uoisioap | A3y siI uoisioap oljoyyiod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisioeg
0} sjuawnooq Aue aiay} aay | o1qnd ayj |IIM aje( jsaljieq 9y} uoseay JueAd|9y | 9q 0} uoisidaQ ay} Jo sjiejeqg




Agenda ltem 13

Agenda Page 179

(eouewlopad

pue Aoljod
‘s90IN0S9Y)
Jaquisi\
B9AIN0S8X]
alow o ‘lopea e\ PUgAH
3AIIN08X 3] JaIyD 0000013 yuom BAIINO9X] 1ouIge) | Joj uswainooud
ay) Jo uoday ON ON €10z 994 Lg 10BJU0D VY Andeq B9AIN09X] JO 8Wo2IN0
(ssauisng
(uonew.ojul pue SaWoH)
Jey) Buipjoy Jaquisiy
Ajioyine 9AIN08X]
ay} Buipnjoul ‘(@ouewiopad
uoslad pue Aoljod
Jejnoiued Aue jo ‘s901N0S9Y)
slieye ssauisnq Jaquisiy
Jo |eloueuly B9AIIN09X]
ayy 0} Buneja. alow Jo ‘Japean
SAIINOSXT JOIYD uonewuojul ‘¢ 000°001 3 ylom SAIINOSX jauiqe) -
ay} Jo poday ON | ydesbelsed) sep €102 924 L2 10BJUOD VY AindaQg 9AIINO9Xg | pue| Jo |esodsiq
(uonew.ojul
Jey) Buipjoy [1PUN0H
Aioyine Aslioyo ‘syied
ay} Buipnjoul (eoueWIONEY Jed uoJ| je|4
uosJad pue Aolj0d pue S puejod
Jejnoiued Aue jo ‘s901N0S9Y) Jo Buioepunsay
slieye ssauisnq Jaquisiy 1o} eud)ID
Jo |eloueuly BAIIN08X] uonenjea]
ayy 0} Bunejau alow Jo ‘Jopean pue ainpadoid
SAIINO8Xd Jalyd uopewJojul) ¢ 0000013 yHom SAIINOSX Buiqe) | plemy joenuo)
ay} Jo Joday ON | ydeibeied ‘se €102 994 L2 10BJJUO0D VY AindaQg 9AIINDaX] 10} |lenolddy
19)e)
uoisioag Aq ¢ si1aded uaye)} aq J9P|OH uaye}
paJapisuod aq punoiboeq épapnjoxa aq ued uoisioap | Aay sl uoisioap oljojHod Aq uaye} | aq o} uoisioaQ
0} sjuawnooq Aue ajay} aay | 21qnd ayjy [IMm aje(q )salleq 9y} uoseay JueAd|9y | 9q 0} uoisidaQ 9y} jo sjiejaq




Agenda Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Consideration of call-in request: Chorley Remembers - Astley Coach House Gallery
	Chorley Remembers - Coach House Gallery Report

	6 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy
	AppendixOne
	AppendixTwo

	7 Executive Cabinet Minutes
	EC2211012minutes
	EC131212minutes

	8 Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel minutes
	9 Call-In Panel minutes
	10a Community Safety Performance Report
	10b PCSO Role, Duties and Productivity
	10c Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) Service Funding Update
	11 Monitoring of Receipt and Use of S106 Contributions
	Appendix 1 O&S Committee Jan 2013.pdf

	12 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2012/13
	13 Councils Notice of Key Decisions

